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1. Title
Name of the Programme: Master of Business Administration (MBA).

Nature of the Programme: MBA is TWO YEAR FULL TIME post-graduate degree programme.

2. Preamble: The revised curriculum for MBA is developed keeping in mind the national priorities and
international practices. It also attempts to align the programme structure and course contents with student
aspirations & recruiter expectations.

2.1 Need for Revision of the Curriculum: The MBA programme curriculum of the University of Pune
was last revised in the AY 2008 and there was a need for revision of the curriculum in view of the global
aspects of businesses and economies, dynamismin the industry practices, evolution of technology,
emergence of new business and organizational forms and the evolving expectations of key stakeholders
viz. students, the industry and faculty members at large.

Specifically, the triggers for the comprehensive revamp of the curriculum are -
a) New Skills & Competencies desired due to dynamic business environment: Jobs of today
were perhaps not created about 5 years ago. This aspect has a direct linkage with contents and
structure of syllabus across the Knowledge, Skills and Attitude (KSA) dimensions, which calls for
frequent and meaningful updating of the curriculum.
b) Concerns expressed by the Industry: The industry has expressed concerns about the need for
improvement in the communication skills, inter-personal skills, basic domain knowledge, awareness of
business environment, technology proficiency, and attitude of the MBA graduates. Newer and innovative
evaluation methods are necessary to address these concerns of the industry.
C) Application Orientation: There is a pressing need to imbibe application oriented thinking, based
on sound knowledge of management theories, principles and concepts. Management education needs
to move out of the classrooms and instead focus on group activity, field work, experiential learning, etc.
This can be achieved only through .a radical change in the evaluation pattern and course delivery
methodology.
d) Changing mindset of the Learner: The profile of the students for the management programme,
their learning styles and the outlook towards higher-education has undergone a gradual transformation.
The expectations of the students from the MBA programme have changed over the last decade.
e) Integrate a basket of skill sets: B-Schools are expected to imbibe varied aspects of ‘learning
beyond the syllabus’ through.innovative curriculum design, contemporary syllabus, effective delivery and
comprehensive evaluation.

Specifically the fallowing skill sets.are.in focus:

i. Reading & Listening Skills

ii. Problem Definition& Problem Solving Skills

ii. Application of Technology Tools

iv. Mastery of Analytics - Quantitative Aspects

v. ,Cross-Functional perspectives

vi. Sensitization to Cross-Cultural skills

vii. Orientation to Global perspectives

viii. Peer-based Learning —Ability to Work in groups

ix. Learning by application and doing — Experiential learning

2.2 MBA Programme Objectives: The MBA programme prepares a student for a domestics and global
careers in diverse sectors of the industry. The MBA programme facilitates learning in theory and practice
of different functional areas of management and equips the students with an integrated approach to
various functions of management. However, the demand for managerial skills is not limited to the
industry. Managerial talent is much sought by the Government Sector, NGOs, non-corporate sector as
well. Institutes, Faculty and Students need to move away from the excessive focus on industry and look
at needs and demands of broader sections of the society. Likewise entrepreneurial perspective of job and
wealth creation with a social context also needs to be integrated into various aspects of the programme.

University of Pune - MBA Revised Syllabus 2013



Specifically the objectives of the MBA Programme are:

1. To equip the students with requisite knowledge, skills &right attitude necessary to provide
effective leadership in a global environment.

2. To develop competent management professionals with strong ethical values, capable of
assuming a pivotal role in various sectors of the Indian Economy &Society, aligned with the
national priorities

3. To develop proactive thinking so as to perform effectively in the dynamic socio-economic and
business ecosystem.

2.3 Highlights of the New Curriculum: The New Curriculum intends to add immense value to all

stakeholders by effectively addressing their requirements in more than one way by:

1. Adoption of Choice Based Credit System (CBCS) and Grading System in line with National
policies and International practices.

Enhancing the brand value of the MBA programme of the University of Pune.

Providing the much needed flexibility to individual Institutes to carve a niche for themselves.

Emphasizing the centrality of the student and teacher-student relationship inthe learning process.

Focusing on ‘Concurrent Evaluation’ i.e. continuous evaluation throughout the programme.

Empowering the Institutes through cafeteria approach — by providing Generic Core, Subject Core,

Generic Elective, and Subject Elective Courses. This shall provide in-built flexibility in the

curriculum to help the institutes to offer tailor made courses preferred by students, from a wider

basket of courses.

7. Evaluating all Half Credit Courses completely on Concurrent Evaluation pattern.

Emphasizing Experiential Learning aspect through Half, Credit Courses.

9. Supplementing traditional classroom teaching/learning with focus on group activity, field work,
experiential learning, self-study, projects, etc.

10. Incorporating new specializations viz. Supply. Chain Management (SCM), Rural & Agribusiness
Management (RABM), Family Business Management (FBM), Technology Management (TM) —
thereby providing wider choice:to the students.

11. A thorough revamp of Systems&Operations Specializations to make them more meaningful and
attractive to BCA, BCS, BE students:

12. Providing opportunity to students to choose courses from other electives to explore
cross-functional issues.

13. Emphasizing on Research, Inter-personal, Analytical, Cross-Cultural, Global aspects of
managerial careers throughout the curriculum.
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3. Pattern: The Programme ‘comprises of 4 Semesters and adopts the Choice Based Credit System
(CBCS) and Grading System.

3.1 Choice Based Credit System: Choice Based Credit System (CBCS) offers wide ranging choice for
students to opt for courses based on their aptitude and their career goals. CBCS works on the
fundamental premise that students are mature individuals, capable of making their own decisions.

CBCS enables a student to obtain a degree by accumulating required number of credits
prescribed for that degree. The number of credits earned by the student reflects the knowledge or skills
acquired him / her. Each course is assigned a fixed number of credits based on the contents to be
learned& the expected effort of the student. The grade points earned for each course reflects the
student’s proficiency in that course.CBCS is a process of evolution of educational reforms that would yield
the result in subsequent years and after a few cycles of its implementation.

3.1.1 Key features of CBCS:

1. Enriching Learning Environment: A student is provided with an academically rich, highly
flexible learning system blended with abundant provision for skill development and a practical
orientation that he/she could imbibe without sacrificing his/her creativity. There is a definite
movement away from the traditional lectures and written examination.

2. Learn at your own pace: A student can exercise the option to decide his/her own pace of
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learning- slow, normal or accelerated plan. Students can select courses according to their
aptitude, tastes and preferences.

3. Continuous Learning & Student Centric Concurrent Evaluation: CBCSmakes the learning
process continuous. Likewise the evaluation process is not only made continuous but also made
learner-centric. The evaluation is designed to recognize the capability and talent of a student.

4. Active Student-Teacher Participation: CBCS leads to quality education with active
teacher-student participation. This provides avenues to meet student’s scholastic needs and
aspirations.

5. Industry Institute Collaboration: CBCS provides opportunities for meaningful collaboration with
industry and foreign partners to foster innovation, by introduction of electives and half credit
courses through the cafeteria approach. This will go a long way in capacity building of students
and faculty.

6. Interdisciplinary Curriculum: Cutting edge developments generally occur at the interface of two
or more disciplines. The interdisciplinary approach enables integration ‘of concepts, theories,
techniques, and perspectives from two or more disciplines to advance fundamental
understanding or to solve problems whose solutions are beyond the scope of a single discipline.

7. Employability Enhancement: CBCS shall ensure that students enhance their skill/lemployability
by taking up project work, entrepreneurship and vocational training.

8. Faculty Expertise: CBCS shall give the Institutes the much needed flexibility to make best use of
the available faculty expertise.

3.1.2 Programme Structure in Choice Based Credit System:

3.2 Time Schedule: An academic year is divided into two terms — | and Il. Term | shall have Semester |
and lll, whereas Term Il shall have Sem Il and IV. In each semester, courses are offered in 15 teaching
weeks and the remaining 5 weeks are to be utilized for conduct of examinations and evaluation purposes.

For the students, each week has 40 working hours spread over 5/6 days a week, consisting of lectures,
tutorials, assignments, class participation, library work, special counseling, Sports, project work, field visit,
youth welfare and social activities.
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3.3 Course: A “Course” is a component of programme, i.e. in the new system; papers will be referred to
as courses. Each course is identified by a unique course code. While designing curriculum, courses have
defined weightages, called credits.

Each course, in addition to having a syllabus, has learning objectives and learning outcomes. A course
may be designed to comprise lectures/ tutorials/ laboratory work/ field work/ project work/vocational
training /viva voce etc. or a combination of some of these.

3.3.1 Core Courses: The Curriculum comprises of Core Courses and Elective Courses.

Core courses are the foundation courses of management education. They are compulsory for all the
students. Core courses are of two types: Generic Core & Subject Core.

Generic Core: This is the course which should compulsorily be studied by a candidate as a core
requirement to complete the requirement of a degree in a said discipline of study. Therefore, Generic
Core courses are mandatory and fundamental in nature. These courses cannot be substituted by any
other courses. Such courses are also known as Hard Core Courses:

A Hard core course may be a Theory, Practical, Field based or Project Work based subject which
is a compulsory component in the Programme Structure.

Subject Core: A Core course may be a Subject Core if there is a choice or an option for the candidate to
choose from a broad category (grouping) of subjects (specializations / electives). These are also known
as Soft Core Courses.

Following Specializations shall be offered:
Marketing Management (MKT)

2. Financial Management (FIN)

3. Information Technology Management (IT)
4. Operations Management (OPE)

5. Human Resources Management'(HR)

6. International Business Management (IB)
7
8
9
1

=

Supply Chain Management (SCM)

Rural &Agribusiness Management (RABM)
. Family Business Management (EBM)
0. Technology Management (TM)

Students shall study 2" Full ‘Credit'Courses & 4 Half Credit Courses in Semester Il and IV each for
specialization courses i.e. a total of 12 specialization courses.
e Generic Core courses in Semester | provide foundations of management.
e Generic Core courses in Semester Il focus on functional areas.
e Generic Core courses in the Semester Il and IV are integrative in nature along with the Subject
Core subjects.

3.3.2 Elective Course: Elective course is a course which can be chosen from a pool of courses. It may
be:

a) Very Specialized or advanced course focusing on a specific aspect

b) Supportive to the discipline of study

c) Providing an extended scope

d) Enabling an exposure to some other discipline/domain

e) Nurturing candidate’s proficiency/skills.

Generic Elective: An elective course which is common across disciplines / subjects is called a generic
elective. ‘Generic Elective’ courses develop generic proficiencies amongstthe students.
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Subject Elective: A ‘Discipline centric’ elective is called ‘Subject Elective.’
e Generic Elective courses, in Semester | and Il facilitate self-development and skill building.
e Subject Elective courses, in the Semester Ill and IV are focused on a specialization.

Open Elective: A subject elective course chosen generally from an unrelated discipline/ subject, with an
intention to seek cross-functional exposure is called an Open Elective. A Subject Elective offered in a
specialization/elective may be treated as an Open Elective by other specialization/ elective and
vice-a-versa.

Choice of Cross Functional Half Credit Courses (Subject Elective chosen as Open Elective): Out of
the 8 half credit subject elective courses (to be taken collectively in Semester Il and 1V);.a student may
choose 2 half credit subject courses from another elective (i.e. other than his chosen elective). The
student may exercise this choice either in Semesterlll and/or in SemesterlV. The final say.in this matter
shall rest with the Director of the Institute.

Generic and Subject Electives will provide flexibility to each Institute to offer courses based on: -
a) Intended positioning of the Institute
b) Targeted Industry Linkages — sectoral requirements and networking at the Institute Level
c) Student Composition — rural/urban, commerce/engineering/others, freshers/experienced, etc.
d) Present & Future Faculty Competencies — generic and specialization areas
e) Locational Aspects - rural/urban/ semi-urban.

An Institute may offer varied combinations of Half Credit courses to various groups of students enrolled in
a particular academic year / enrolled for a particular specialization. based on student interests and
competencies, faculty availability.

3.4 Pre-requisites for successful implementation of CBCS: The success of the CBCS also requires
certain commitments from both the students and the teachers.

1. The student should be regular and punctual to his classes, studious in carrying out the
assignments and should maintain consistency in his tempo of learning. He should make
maximum use of the available library, internet and other facilities.

2. The teachers are expected to be alert and punctual and strictly adhere to the schedules of
teaching, tests, seminars, evaluation and notification of results.

3. All teachers should notify the tentative schedule of teaching and tests of the entire semester,
including the dates of tests, dates of score notification and all other schedules, which can be
planned in advance.

4. The teachers are expected to adhere to unbiased and objective evaluation and marking of
concurrent evaluation scores (internal examinations) which will not only maintain the confidence
of the students, but, at the same time, ensure that merit is given due credit.

5. Transparency, objectivity and quality are the key factors that will sustain a good CBCS system.

6. At the post-graduate level, and in a professional programme, the syllabus is to be looked
upon as the bare minimum requirement to be fulfilled and sufficient emphasis shall be laid
on contemporary aspects, going beyond the syllabus.

3.5 Credits

Credit: The definition of ‘credits’ can be based on various parameters - such as the learning hours put in,
learning outcomes and contact hours, the quantum of content/syllabus prescribed for the course.

The credit system requires that a student progresses in the academic programmes not in terms of time
(years or semesters), but in terms of courses.

Each course is assigned a certain credit, depending on the estimated effort put in by a student. When the
student passes that course, he/she earns the credits associated with that course.
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In the Credit system the emphasis is on the hours put in by the learner and not on the workload of
the teacher. Each credit can be visualized as a combination of 3 components viz. Lecture (L) +
Tutorials (T) + Practice ( Practical / Project Work ) (P) i.e. LTP Pattern.

The effort of the learner for each Credit Point may be considered to have two parts —
a) One part consisting of the hoursactually spent in class room / practical / field work instructions
and
b) The other part consisting of notional hours spent by the Learner in self-study, in the library, peer
interactions, case study, writing of journals and assignments, projects etc. for the completion of
that course.

Every course offered shall have three components associated with the teaching-learning process of the
course, viz.
a) Lecture (L): Classroom sessions delivered by faculty in an interactive mode
b) Tutorial (T): Session consisting of participatory discussion/ self-study/ desk work/ brief seminar
presentations by students and such other novel methods that make a student to absorb and
assimilate more effectively the contents delivered in the Lecture sessions
c) Practice (P): Practice session /Practical / Project Work consisting of Hands-on experience / Field
Studies / Case studies that equip students to acquire the much required skill component.

The teaching / learning as well as evaluation are to be interpreted in a broader perspective as follows:
a) Teaching — Learning Processes: Classroom sessions, Group Exercises, Seminars, Small
Group Projects, Self-study, etc.
b) Evaluation: Tutorials, Class Tests, Presentations, Field work, Assignments, Research papers,
Term papers, etc.

In terms of credits, for a period of one semester of 15 weeks:

a) every ONE hour session per week of L amounts to 1 credit per semester
b) a minimum of TWO hours per week of T amounts to 1 credit per semester,
¢) a minimum of TWO hours per week of P amounts to 1 credit per semester,

A course shall have either or all the three components, i.e. a course may have only lecture component, or
only practice component or a combination of any two or all the three components.

The total credits earned by a student at the end of the semester upon successfully completing a course
are ‘L + T + P'. The credit pattern of the course is indicated as L: T: P.

If a course is of 3 credits then the different credit distribution patterns in L:T: P format could be 3:0: 0,
1:2: 2, 2:0: 2, 2: 2: 0, etc. The credits of a course cannot be greater than the number of hours
(per week for 15 weeks) allotted to it.

Full Credit Course: A course with weightage of 3 credits is considered as a full credit course. (Except for
Summer Internship Project which is a full credit course with 6 Credits.)

Half Credit Course: A course with weightage of 2 credits is considered as a half credit course.

The MBA programme is a combination of:
a) Full Credit Courses (100 Marks each) : 3 Credits each
b) Half Credit Courses (50 Marks each) : 2 Credits each

3.6 Adoption of Credit and Grading System
As per national policy and international practices, it is proposed to adopt the Credit and Grading System
for the MBA programme w.e.f. AY 2013-14.
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3.6.1 Rationale for adoption of the Credit and Grading System:

a) Learner’s Perspective: The current practice of evaluation of student’s performance at the end of
a semester is flawed. The students are expected to express their understanding or mastery over the
content included in their curriculum for a complete semester within a span of three hours and their efforts
over the semester are often completely ignored. It also promotes unhealthy practice of cramming before
the examinations and focusing on marks rather than on learning.

b) Evaluation Perspective: The present system of evaluation does not permit the flexibility to
deploy multiple techniques of assessment in a valid and reliable way. Moreover, the current practice of
awarding numerical marks for reporting the performance of learners suffers from several drawbacks and
is a source of a variety of errors. Further, the problem gets compounded due to the variations in the
marks awarded in different subjects. The ‘raw score’ obtained by the learner, is, therefore, not a
reflection of his true ability.

In view of the above lacunae, it is desirable that the marking system used for the declaration of results is
replaced by the grading system. The system of awarding grades provides a more. realistic picture of
learner’s ability than the prevailing marking system. Excellence in guality education can be achieved by
evaluating the true ability of the learners with the help of continuous evaluation:

3.6.2 Salient features of the grading system:

1. In this system, students (learners) are placed in ability bands that represent a range of scores. This
ability range may be designated with alphabetical letters called as ‘GRADE'.

2. Grading reflects an individual learner’s performance in the.form of a certain level of achievement.

3. The Grading system ensures natural classification in gualitative terms rather than quantitative terms
since it expresses a range /band of scores to which a learner belongs such as O,AB,C.D.E & F

4. Grades can be interpreted easily and directly and can be.used to prepare an accurate ‘profile’ of a
learner.

5. A properly introduced grading system not.only provides for a comparison of the learners’ performance
but it also indicates the quality of performance with respect to the amount of efforts put in and the
amount of knowledge acquired at the end of the course by the learners.

3.6.3 Basics of Credit and Grading System:Grading is a method of reporting the result of a learner’s
performance subsequent to his evaluation. It involves a set of alphabets which are clearly defined and
designated and uniformly understood by all the stakeholders.

Grading is carried out in a variety of ways. The classification of grades depends upon the reference point.

With ‘Approach towards Grading’ as the reference point, Grading may be classified as:

a) Direct grading: When the performance exhibited by the examinees is assessed in qualitative
terms and the impressions so obtained by the examiners are directly expressed in terms of letter
grades, it is called, ‘Direct Grading'.

b) Indirect grading; When the performance displayed by the examinees is first assessed in terms
of marks and subsequently transformed into letter grades by using different modes, it is called,
‘Indirect Grading.’

With ‘Standard of Judgment’, as the reference point Grading may be classified as:

a) Absolute grading: The method that is based on a predetermined standard which becomes a
reference point for the learner's performance is called ‘Absolute Grading’. This involves direct
conversion of marks into grades irrespective of the distribution of marks in a subject.

b) Relative grading: Relative Grading is popularly known as grading on the curve. The curve refers
to the normal distribution curve or some symmetric variant of it. This method amounts to
determining in advance approximately what percentage of learners can be expected to receive
different grades, such as O,A,B,C,D,E,F. In this grading system the grade is not determined by
the learner’s performance but on the basis of group performance.
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Absolute grading has several advantages such as:
a) The procedure is simple and straightforward to use,
b) Each grade is distinctly understandable,
c) The learner has the freedom to strive for the attainment of the highest possible grade and
d) It enables the learners to know their strengths and weaknesses.

The few limitations of Absolute Grading method are:
a) The distribution of scores is taken at its face value regardless of the errors of measurement
creeping in due to various types of subjectivity.
b) Besides, the cut-offs of different categories are also arbitrarily decided.

It is proposed to use the Indirect and Absolute Grading System for the MBA programme, i.e. the
assessment of individual Courses in the concerned examinations will be on the basis of ‘marks. However
the marks shall later be converted into Grades by a defined mechanism wherein the overall perfermance
of the learners can be reflected after considering the Credit Points for any given course. Theoverall
evaluation shall be designated in terms of Grade.

3.7 Session Duration:Each teaching-learning, evaluation session shall be of 60 minutes. However,
institutes shall have the flexibility to define their time slots. in a manner as to,use their faculty and
infrastructure resources in the best possible way.

3.8 Courses Offered: Institutes are free to offer only a select number of specializations from amongst the
list provided by the University. Likewise, institutes may provide only a sub-set of the generic electives,
subject electives as prescribed semester-wise in the Programme structure. It is envisaged that Institutes
offer only those specialziations/electives for which they have the required faculty competencies and
relevant resources.

It shall be mandatory for the Institutes.to provide all information relating to the specializations offered,
generic electives, subject electives, their respective credits, evaluation pattern, etc. to all the students so
as to enable them to make an informed choice. Such information should be hosted on the
website/prospectus of the Institute in sufficient advance, prior to commencement of the classes. Other
information such as the credits, the prerequisites, and syllabus shall also be hosted on the website of the
institute.

3.9 Registration: It is mandatory for every student, to register every semester, for the courses opted
under CBCS system, for that semester.

Such registration shall be the basis for a student to undergo concurrent evaluation, online evaluation and
end-semester examination. Application forms for University examinations are to be filled up based on the
choices.finalized during the registration process and submitted to the University along with the prescribed
examination fee.

3.9.1 Registration Process:

i. Each student, on admission shall be assigned to a Faculty Advisor who shall advise her/him
about the academic programs and counsel on the choice of courses considering the student’s
profile and career objectives.

ii.  With the advice and consent of the Faculty Advisor the student shall register for a set of courses
he/she plans to take up for the Semester.

iii. The student should meet the criteria for prerequisites, if defined for a course, to become eligible
to register for that course.

iv. The Institute shall follow a selection procedure on a first come first served basis, determining the
maximum number of students and counseling the students if required to avoid overcrowding to
particular course(s) at the expense of some other courses.

V. It is expected that a student registers for 26 credits in Semester I, 1l, 29 Credits in Semester Il
each and balance 19 credits in Semester IV.
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Vi.

Vil.

Viii.

Xi.

Xii.

However fast learners (under accelerated plan), may be permitted to register for 2 full credit / 3
half credit courses in excess of the normal credits defined for a semester. However, registration
for Repeat courses (backlogs) is allowed in excess of this limit.

Likewise, slow learners, may be permitted to register for 2 full credit / 3 half credit courses less
than the normal credits defined for a semester.

A candidate may register for a minimum of say, 20 credits per semester, but it is possible that
he/she may earn less than 20 credits in a semester. It may be theoretically possible that he/she
may just earn ZERO credits in a semester. However, he/she should register for credits less than
or equal to permissible maximum and more than or equal to permissible minimum per semester,
excluding the courses of earlier semester(s), for which he/she has not earned the credits
(uncleared courses) if any.

Students shall have to register for the courses for the semester within first week of Semester |
and immediately after conclusion of the preceding term for subsequent Semesters - II, Il and IV.
i.e. The fresh inducted batch shall register for various courses at the end of the first week of their
Semester | after their induction. They will register for Semester |l courses immediately at the end
of Semester | and likewise for subsequent semesters. In Semester | the registration window shall
be open for sufficiently long duration to take care of late admissions.

The maximum number of students to be registered in each elective course shall depend upon the
physical facilities available. Every effort shall be made by the Institute to accommodate as many
students as possible.

Students who do not earn credits for an elective course (generic /'subject / open) are permitted to
opt for another elective course (generic / subject / open) in case they:feel to do so. In such a case
they shall be said to have dropped the original course and opted for a new one. Alternatively,
they are permitted to continue with the same elective course (generic / subject / open) i.e. If a
student secures a F Grade in say course no 111 for which he has opted in Semester I, during the
successive attempt he may drop course 111 and take up another course from 107 to 115, or
continue with 111.

The Institute may not offer a course.if a minimum of 20% of students are not registered for that
course.

4. Eligibility: The eligibility for admissions shall be defined by the Competent Authority viz. AICTE / DTE
Maharashtra State for the relevant academic.year.

5. Examination:

Pattern of Examination: The evaluation'scheme comprises of:

a) University.Evaluation
b) Concurrent Evaluation

For each full credit course —
a) 70 marks shall be evaluated by the University and
b) 30 marks shall'be evaluated by the respective Institute.

For each half credit course —
a) 50 marks shall be evaluated by the respective Institute.
There shall not be any University evaluation for half credit courses.

(Evaluation Scheme for Summer Internship Project is detailed separately.)

5.1 University Evaluation
There shall be University evaluation for each full credit course as per the time table announced by the
University. The evaluation by the University for Full Credit Courses shall comprise of two parts:

a) Online Examination for 20 marks.
b) Written Examination (subjective — concept plus case study / application oriented type) for 50

marks.
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5.1.1 Online Examination

The University of Pune shall conduct an online examination for each full credit course. This examination
shall be objective in nature and shall carry a weightage of 20 marks per full credit course. Students will
appear for the online examinations in their respective institutes. Online examination shall constitute a
separate head of passing for the full credit courses. Passing shall be at 40%, i.e. Grade E.The student
does NOT have a facility of Grade Improvement, in online examination, if he/she has secured any grade
other than F.

The Controller of Examinations of the University of Pune shall announce the online examination window
of 3 days per semester i.e. a window of 3 days for Sem | and another window of 3 days for Sem Il (in
term | and likewise for term IlI) for the examination, in consultation with the Dean — Faculty of
Management. The online test shall be conducted for all 4 semesters during each term. A similar window
of 3 days for Sem Il (backlog) and another window of 3 days for Sem IV backlog shall be announced in
term | and vice-versa for Sem | backlog and Sem Il backlog in term 1l for students who.score Grade F in
the online exam.

There shall NOT be any retest for those students who is absent for,the online exam during the declared
examination window period. Any student, who is absent for the enline test during the regular term, can
take the online test for the specific course in the next term and his grades evaluation shall be updated
accordingly in the revised Grade Card.

Generally the schedule for onllne examination will be as follows:
a) Semester I: In the 8' "19"week after the commencement of semester I.
b) Semester II, lil and IV: In the7' "/ 8"week after the commencement of respective semester.

The date declared by DTE for commencement of classes as per CAP process shall be the
reference date for Semester 1.Only for Semester |, in case of unforeseen circumstances the Controller
of Examinations (CoE), University of Pune, in/consultation with the Dean of the Faculty of Management
may postpone the examinations for Semester |. However the online examinations shall not be postponed
beyond 10" week after commencement of the classes / course for Semester I.

For Sem II, lll and IV the reference date shall be the term commencement date declared by the
UoP.

The syllabus for the online examination:shall be the first two units in each full credit course (2 out of total
5 units, i.e. 40% of the syllabus). The duration of online examination for each course shall be of 25
minutes.

There shall be one mark far.each correct response. There shall be 20 questions — each carrying
one mark.ALL THE QUESTIONS SHALL BE COMPULSORY. The questions shall be of different variety
within the objective format.

The Faculty of Management shall devise objective question bank comprising questions of varying degree
of difficulty, and of different types, in sufficiently large number for each course for the exclusive purpose of
the online examination. The objective question paper shall be developed in real time, randomly using an
ERP / Learning Management System.

The Institutes shall ensure the provision of necessary IT infrastructure and internet bandwidth, backup
power supply, for the smooth conduct of such online examination.

The score of each candidate for each course shall be known immediately after the conclusion of the
online test and the Institute shall display the scores of all students for the online test within 3 days of the
completion of the test.
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5.1.2 Instructions to External Paper Setters / Chairman/ Examiners: The syllabus for each course is
organized in 5 units. The end-semester University evaluation shall cover the entire syllabus prescribed for
the course. For University evaluation (Written Examination — subjective type of 50 marks) of each full
credit course, the question pattern shall be as follows:

Pattern of Question Paper:

1) There shall be five questions each of 10 marks.

2) All questions shall be compulsory with internal choice within the questions. i.e. There shall be 2
guestions from each unit of the curriculum with an internal option.

3) A Question may be subdivided into sub-questions a, b, c... and the allocation of marks depend on the
weightage of the topic.

ILLUSTRATIVE PATTERN OF QUESTION PAPER

Qo L (A) i based on Unit 1
OR

1O 20 R (=) based on Unit'l

Q.2 (A) e, based on Unit 2
OR

Q.2(B) cevveeiiiiiee i based gn Unit 2

Q.3 (A) e based on Unit 3
OR

Q.3(B) cevvie i based on Unit 3

Q4 (A) e e based on Unit 4
OR

QA4MB)........g. .. b .U, Q........... based on Unit 4

Q5 (A) o based on Unit 5
OR

Q5B) ... Gpwmmm .- B enenenannne based on Unit 5

Questions shall assess knowledge, application of knowledge, and the ability to synthesize knowledge.
The paper setter shall ensure that questions covering all skills and all units are set. She/he shall also
mandatorily submit a detailed scheme.of evaluation along with the question paper. Questions shall be of
three categories of difficulty level = low difficulty, average difficulty and high difficulty.

The duration of written examination shall be 2 hours. Students shall be provided a single answer sheet of
16 pages. They must ensure that their responses fit within the provided answer sheet. Additional
supplements shall NOT.be provided.

5.2 Concurrent. Evaluation: A continuous assessment system in semester system (also known as
internalassessment/comprehensive assessment) is spread through the duration of course and is done by
the teacher teaching the course.

The continuous assessment provides a feedback on teaching learning process. The feedback after being
analyzed is passed on to the concerned student for implementation and subsequent improvement.As a
part of concurrent evaluation, the learners shall be evaluated on a continuous basis by the Institute to
ensure that student learning takes place in a graded manner.

Concurrent evaluation components should be designed in such a way that the faculty can monitor the
student learning & development and intervene wherever required. The faculty must share the outcome of
each concurrent evaluation component with the students, soon after the evaluation, and guide the
students for betterment.
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Individual faculty member shall have the flexibility to design the concurrent evaluation components in a
manner so as to give a balanced assessment of student capabilities across Knowledge, Skills & Attitude
(KSA) dimensions based on variety of assessment tools.

Suggested components for Concurrent Evaluation (CE) are:
1. Case Study / Caselet / Situation Analysis — (Group Activity or Individual Activity)
2. Class Test
3. Open Book Test
4. Field Visit / Study tour and report of the same
5. Small Group Project & Internal Viva-Voce
6. Learning Diary
7. Scrap Book
8. Group Discussion
9. Role Play / Story Telling
10. Individual Term Paper / Thematic Presentation
11. Written Home Assignment
12. Industry Analysis — (Group Activity or Individual Activity)
13. Literature Review / Book Review
14. Model Development / Simulation Exercises — (Group Activity or Individual Activity)
15. In-depth Viva
16. Quiz

There shall be a minimum of three concurrent evaluation-components per full credit course and five
concurrent evaluation components for each half credit course. The faculty shall announce in advance the
units based on which each concurrent evaluation shall be conducted.Each component shall ordinarily be
of 10 marks. The Institute shall however have the liberty to. conduct additional components (beyond
three/five). However the total outcome shall be scaled down to 30/50 marks for full credit and half credit
courses respectively.Marks for the concurrent evaluation must be communicated by the Institute to the
University as per the schedule declared by the University.Detailed record of the Concurrent Evaluation
shall be maintained by the Institute. The same shall be made available to the University, on demand.

At the end of Concurrent Evaluation. (out of 30/50 marks) the student does NOT have a facility of Grade
Improvement, if he/she has secured any grade other than F.

5.2.1 Safeguards for Credibility of Concurrent Evaluation: The following practices are encouraged to
enhance transparency and authenticity of concurrent evaluation:

a) Involving faculty members from other management institutes.

b) Setting multiple question paper sets and choosing the final question paper in a random manner.

c) One of the internal faculty members (other than the course teacher) acting as jury during activity

based evaluations.

d) Involvement of Industry personnel in evaluating projects / field based assignments.

e) Involvement of alumni in evaluating presentations, role plays, etc.

f) . 100% moderation of answer sheets, in exceptional cases.

5.3 Summer Internship Project: At the end of Second Semester each student shall undertake a
Summer Internship Project (SIP) for8 weeks. It is mandatory for the student to seek advance
written approval from the faculty guide and the Director of the Instituteabout the topic and
organization before commencing the SIP.The SIP may or may not have a Functional Focus, i.e. the
student may take up a SIP in his/her intended area of specialization or in any other functional area of
management. Ideally the SIP should exhibit a cross-functional orientation. The student shall submit a
written structured report based on work done during this period.

SIP can be carried out in:
a) Corporate Entity
b) NGO
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c) SME
d) Government Undertaking
e) Cooperative Sector

SIP may be a research project — based on primary / secondary data or may be an operational assignment
involving working by the student on a given task/assignment/project/ etc. in an organization / industry. It is
expected that the SIP shall sensitize the students to the demands of the workplace. The learning
outcomes and utility to the organization must be specifically highlighted.

The report should be well documented and supported by —

Executive Summary

Organization profile

Outline of the problem/task undertaken

Research methodology & data analysis (in case of research projects only)

Relevant activity charts, tables, graphs, diagrams, etc.

Learning of the student through the project

Contribution to the host organization

References in appropriate referencing styles. (APA, MLA, Harvard, Chicago Style etc.)

ONoOA~WNE

It should reflect the nature and quantum of work undertaken by the student. The report must reflect 8
weeks of work and justify the same.

The completion of the SIP shall be certified by the respective Faculty Guide & approved by the Director of
the Institute. The external organization (Corporate / NGO/ SME/ Government Entity/ Cooperative/ etc.)
shall also certify the SIP work.

The student shall submit TWO hard copies & one soft copy (CD)of the project report before 30th
September in Sem lll. One hard copyis to be returned:to the student by the Institute after the External
Viva-Voce.

In the interest of environmental considerations, students are encouraged to print their project reports on
both faces of the paper.

SIP shall have a weightage of, 6 credits. The.Institute shall conduct an internal viva-voce for evaluation of
the SIP for 50 marks. The Panel shall.comprise of the Internal Faculty Guide & One additional faculty
nominated by the Director.

There shall be an external viva-voce for the SIP for 100 marks. The examiner’s panel for the same shall
include one external faculty.member nominated by the University and one internal faculty member
nominated by the Director.The external viva-voce shall be conducted for 15 minutes at least per
student.

The Internal & the External viva-voce shall evaluate the project based on:
Actual work undertaken by the student

Student’s understanding of the organization and business environment
Outcome of the project

Utility of the project to the organization

Basic analytical capabilities

arLONE

Copies of SIP report and records of evaluation shall be maintained by the Institute for a period of 3
academic years.

5.4 Dissertation: In Sem IV the student shall work under the supervision of the Faculty and carry out a
dissertation and submit a structured report in TWO hard copies & one soft copy (CD). In the interest of
environmental considerations, students are encouraged to print their dissertation reports on both faces of
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the paper.

The student is required to conduct advanced research on a topic related to one (or more) of
contemporary issues in management. The topic is chosen in consultation with the student's supervisor.
The student will prepare and present a detailed research proposal prior to starting the work. It is
mandatory for the student to seek advance written approval from the faculty guide and the Director of the
Institute about the topic before commencing the dissertation work. A dissertation outlining the entire
problem, including a survey of literature and the various results obtained along with their solutions is
expected to be produced. The student must submit the completed dissertation and make an oral
presentation of the same. Through the dissertation, the student is expected to furnish evidence of
competence in understanding varied aspects of the theme/topic selected and a deep understanding of the
specialty area. The completion of the dissertation / project shall be certified by the Faculty Guide &
approved by the Director of the Institute.

Dissertation shall have a weightage of 2 credits. The Institute shall conduct a viva-voce for evaluation of
the dissertation, for 50 marks. The panel shall comprise of 2 internal Faculty members (One who has
supervised the student and the other one as Jury) nominated by the Director. The Institute may invite an
additional external examiner from the industry. Copies of Dissertation report.and records of evaluation
shall be maintained by the Institute for a period of 3 academic years.

5.5Standard of Passing: Every candidate must secure at least Grade E in Concurrent Evaluation ,
University Examination & Online Evaluation (as applicable) as separate heads of passing for each
course.

Degree Requirements:

a) Earned Credits: A candidate who has ‘successfully completed all the Core courses and
accumulated, through elective courses, not less than minimum number of Credits prescribed shall
be eligible to receive the Degree. The degree requirements for the MBA programme is completion
of 100earned credits.

b) Final Grade Point Requirement: A student must obtain the Final Grade Point of a minimum of
00.50 to be eligible for award of theMBA degree.

5.5.1 Conversion of Marks to Grade Points & Grades: The marks shall be converted to grade points
and grades using Table | below.

Table I: Points Grading System

Sr. No. Marks Grade Grade Point
1 100 = 75 O — Outstanding 06
2 74 — 65 A — Very Good 05
3 64 -55 B — Good 04
4 54 — 50 C — Average 03
5 49 = 45 D — Satisfactory 02
6 44 — 40 E — Pass 01
7 39-0 F — Fall 00

The description of the final grades shall be as follows:

O: Outstanding (Excellent Analysis of the topic - 75% and above)

Accurate knowledge of the primary material, wide range of reading, logical development of ideas,
originality in approaching the subject. Neat and systematic organization of content, elegant and lucid
style.

A: Very Good (Excellent Analysis of the topic - 65 to 74 %)

Accurate knowledge of the primary material, acquaintance with seminal publications, logical development
of ideas. Neat and systematic organization of content, effective and clear expression.

B : Good (Good Analysis and treatment of the topic - 55 to 64 %)

Basic knowledge of the primary material, logical development of ideas. Neat and systematic organization
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of content, effective and clear expression.

C : Average (Some important points covered — 50 to 54%)

Basic knowledge of the primary material, logical development of ideas. Neat and systematic organization
of content, good language or clear expression.

D: Satisfactory (Some points discussed — 45 to 49%)

Basic knowledge of the primary material, some organization of content, acceptable language or
expression.

E: Pass (Any two of the above — 40 to 44%)

F: Fail (None of the above — 0 to 39%)

The performance of a student will be evaluated in terms of two indices, viz.
a) Semester Grade Point Average (SGPA) which is the Grade Point Average for a semester
b) Cumulative Grade Point Average (CGPA) which is the Grade Point Average for all the completed
semesters at any point in time.

Semester Grade Point Average (SGPA): At the end of each semester, SGPAis calculated as the
weighted average of GPI of all courses in the current semester in.which the student has passed, the
weights being the credit values of respective courses.

SGPA = Grade Points divided by the summation of Credits of all Courses:
> {C*GPI}
SGPA = for a semester.

5C

Where GPI is the Grade and C is credit for the respective Course.

Cumulative Grade Point Average (CGPA): Cumulative Grade Point Average (CGPA) is the grade point
average for all completed semesters..CGPA is calculated as the weighted average of all GPI of all
courses in which the student has passed up to the current semester.

Cumulative Grade Point Average (CGPA) far. the Entire Course
> {C*GPI}
CGPA = for all semesters taken together.

5C

Where GPI is the Grade and C.is credit for the respective Course.

Note:If a student secures:F grade in either or both of Concurrent Evaluation or University Evaluation for a
particular course_his /her credits earned for that course shall be ZERO.

5.5.2 Scaling Down of Concurrent Evaluation Scores: The marks obtained by the student for the
Concurrent Evaluation components conducted by the Institute (i.e. out of 30 marks), in the Full Credit
Courses, in Semester.| to SemesterlV, shall be scaled down, to the required extent, if percentage of the
marks of Concurrent Evaluation exceeds the percentage of marks scored in the end semester University
Examination:by.25% for the respective course. Scores of Online Examination are not part of the scaling
down formula. i.e. (percentage of marks scored out of 30 in concurrent evaluation) — (percentage of
marks scored out of 50 in university evaluation) should not exceed 25%.

The marks obtained by the student in Half Credit Courses are not subject to scaling down. Likewise, the
marks obtained by the student in Concurrent Evaluation for the Summer Internship Project (Course 304)
shall not be subjected to scaling down.

5.5.3 Attendance:The student must meet the requirement of 75% attendance per semester per course
for grant of the term. The Director shall have the right to withhold the student from appearing for
examination of a specific course if the above requirement is not fulfilled.
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Since the emphasis is on continuous learning and concurrent evaluation, it is expected that the students
study all-round the semester. Therefore, there shall not be any preparatory leave before the University
examinations.

5.6 ATKT Rules:A student shall earn the credits for a given course in MAXIMUM FOUR ATTEMPTS. If a
student drops a course (generic elective / subject elective) and opts for another course in lieu of the
dropped course the attempts utilized for the dropped course shall be included in the maximum 4 attempts
available to earn the credits for a course. The facility of dropping a course and opting for a new course in
lieu of the dropped course shall be availed by the student only once during these four attempts available
to him. A student may drop at the most 2 courses out of the 16 elective courses and select other courses
in lieu of dropped courses. i.e. Dropping a course can be done only twice.

Maximum Duration for completion of the Programme: The candidates shall complete the MBA
Programme WITHIN 4 YEARSfrom the date of admission, by earning the requisite credits. The student
will be finally declared as failed if she\he does not pass in all credits within a total period of four years.
After that, such students will have to seek fresh admission as per the admission rules prevailing at that
time.

5.7 Award ofGrade Cards: The University of Pune under its seal shall:issue to the student a grade card
on completion of each semester. The final Grade Card issued at the end of the final semester shall
contain the details of all courses taken during the entire programme for obtaining the degree.

Final Grades: After calculating the SGPA for an individual semester and the CGPA for entire programme,
the value shall be matched with the grade in the Final Grade Points Table (as per Table Il) and expressed
as a single designated GRADE such as O, A, B, C,D,E,F.

Table II: Final Grade Points

Sr. No. Grade Points Grade

1 05.00 to 6.00 O — Qutstanding
2 04.50 to 04.99 A= Very Good
3 03.50 to 04.49 B.— Good
4 02.50 to 03.49 C — Average

5 01.50 to 02.49 D — Satisfactory
6 00.50 to 01.49 E - Pass

7 00.00 to 00.49 F —Fall

A student who secures grade E or above in a course is said to have completed /earned the credits
assigned to the course. A student who completed the minimum credits required for the MBA programme
shall be:declared to have completed the programme.

NOTE:
The Grade Card for the final semester shall indicate the following, amongst other details:
a) Grades for concurrent evaluation (out of 30 for Full Credit Courses & out of 50 for Half Credit

Courses) , Online evaluation (out of 20 for Full Credit Courses only) and University evaluation
(out of 50 for Full Credit Courses only), separately, for all courses offered by the student during
the entire programme along with the grade for the total score.

b) SGPA for each semester.

C) CGPA for final semester.

d) Total Marks Scored out of Maximum Marks for the entire programme, with break-up of Marks
Scored in Concurrent Evaluation and University Evaluation (Semester Wise).

e) Marks scored shall not be recorded on the Grade Card for intermediate semesters.

f) The grade card shall also show the 7 point scale and the formula to convert GPI, SGPA, and/or
CGPA to percent marks.

0)] The final GPA shall not be printed unless the student earns the minimum 100 credits required for
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earning the MBA Degree.

h) B Grade is equivalent to atleast 55% marks.

i) If the GPA is higher than the indicated upper limit in the three decimal digit, then the student may
be awarded higher final grade e.g. a student getting a GPA of 4.492 may be awarded grade
A.The grade card shall also provide, on the reverse, the 7-point scale and the formula to convert
GPI, SGPA, and/or CGPA to percent marks.

5.8 Grade Improvement: A Candidate who has secured any grade other than F (i.e. passed the MBA
programme) and desires to avail the Grade Improvement facility, may apply under Grade Improvement
Scheme within five years from passing that Examination. He/she can avail not more than three attempts,
according to the syllabus in existence, for grade improvement. He /she shall appear.for University
Evaluation of at least 1/3"Generic / Subject Core Courses (except SIP) for the purpose, of Grade
Improvement. Generic or Subject Electives (Half Credit Courses) cannot be_ selected for Grade
Improvement.

5.9 External Students:MBA being a full time programme, there is no provision of external students.

5.10 Verification / Revaluation: Students can avail the verification / revaluation-facility as per the
prevailing policy, guidelines and norms of the University of Pune.There shall be Revaluation of the
answer scripts of Semester-End examination for Full Credit Courses but not of online examination , half
credit courses / SIP / Dissertation as per Ordinance no.134 A'& B:

5.11 Additional Specialization: A student may enroll for-additional specialization after passing out the
regular MBA programme. Such students will get exemption from all the generic core and generic elective
courses in First Year (Sem | and Il) and generic core courses in Second Year (Sem IIl and 1V). Such
students shall have to appear for the subject core and subject.elective courses i.e. 2 Full Credit Courses
& 4 Half Credit Courses in Sem Ill and IV each. i.e. a‘total of 12 subject electives (specialization) courses
of which 4 are full credits and 8 are half credits.

6. Structure of the Programme: The programme is a combination of:
a) Full Credit Courses (100 Marks each) ::3 Credits each
b) Half Credit Courses (50 Marks each).. 2 Credits each

Total Credits: 100 Credits (3000 Marks), Total Courses = 38.

a) 20 Full Credit Courses * 3 eredits per course = 60 Credits (2000 Marks)

b) 1 Full Credit Course - SIP" = 6.Credits (150 Marks)

c) 16 Half Credit.Courses *2.credits per course = 32 Credits (800 Marks)

d) 1 Dissertation (Half Credit )’ = 2 Credits (50 Marks)
The spread of courses across the 4 semesters for a normal learner is given below.
Table Ill: Break Up & Spread of Courses

Spread of Full & Half Credit Courses:

Semester Full Credit Courses (100 Marks) (A) Half Credit Courses (50 Marks) (B)
I 6 4

Il 6 4

1 5 4

11l 1 (SIP for 6 Credits) -

v 3 4

v - 1 (Dissertation for 2 Credits)

Total 21 17
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Break Up of Full Credit Courses:

Semester Number of Generic | Number of Subject | Total Number of Full Credit
Core Courses (A) (Specialization) Core Courses (B) | Courses (100 Marks) (C = A +
B)
I 6 0 6
Il 6 0 6
I 4" 2 6
v 1 2 3
Total 17 4 21

** includes SIP for 6 Credits &for 150 Marks
Break Up of Half Credit Courses:

Semester Number of | Number of Subject | Total Number of Half Credit Courses
Generic Elective | (Specialization) Elective | (50 Marks) (C = At B)
Courses (A) Courses (B)

I 4 0 4

Il 4 0 4

Il 0 4 4

IV 17 4 5

Total 9 8 17

# Dissertation for 2 Credits
Detailed Programme Structure is provided in Annexure |,

6.1 Pedagogy: It is expected that the faculty members adopt a variety of teaching methodologies, such
as case studies, role-play, problem solving exercises, group discussion, computer simulation games, etc.
during the programme delivery. Use of technology and innovative techniques beyond the lecture method
is desirable.

MBA being a post-graduate professional ‘Programme, students are also expected to assimilate certain
topics through self-study.

6.2 Medium of Instruction: The medium of Instruction & Evaluation shall be English.

7. Equivalence of previous syllabus. with the proposed syllabus: The equivalence of the previous
syllabus with the proposed syllabus shall'be announced separately.

8. University Terms:“The dates for.the commencement and conclusion of the first and the second terms
shall be as determined by the University Authorities. The terms can be kept only by duly admitted
students. The present relevant ordinances pertaining to grant of terms will be applicable.

9. Course wise detailed syllabus: Course wise detailed syllabus along with recommended text books,
reference books, websites, journals, etc. is provided in Annexure .

10. Qualifications of Teacher: The qualifications of the full-time teacher for the MBA Programme shall
be as per AICTE norms prescribed from time to time.

10.1Teacher Capacity Building: The faculty of management shall organize suitable programmes for
capacity building of teachers.
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Annexure | - Detailed Programme Structure

Table IV — A: Generic Core Courses

Generic Core Courses Credits [SemesterConcurrent |Online University [Total
Evaluation [EvaluationEvaluation Marks
(Subjective)

101 Accounting for Business 3 I 30 20 50 100
Decisions

102 Economic Analysis for 3 I 30 20 50 100
Business Decisions

103 Legal Aspects of Business 3 I 30 20 50 100

104 Business Research Methods 3 I 30 20 50 100

105 Organizational Behaviour 3 I 30 20 50 100

106 Basics of Marketing 3 I 30 20 50 100

201 Marketing Management 3 I 30 20 50 100

202 Financial Management 3 I 30 20 50 100

203 Human Resource 3 I 30 20 50 100
Management

204 Decision Science 3 I 30 20 50 100

205 Operations & Supply Chain 3 I 30 20 50 100
Management

206 Management Information 3 I 30 20 50 100
Systems

301 Strategic Management 3 I 30 20 50 100

302 Enterprise Performance 3 " 30 20 50 100
Management

303 Startup and New Venture 3 il 30 20 50 100
Management

304 Summer Internship Project 6 " 50 00 100 150

401 Managing for Sustainability 3 Iv 30 20 50 100

402 Dissertation 2 Iv B0 00 00 50

Note: Each Generic Core Course is a Full Credit course of 45 hours. Out of 45 hours, 35 hours shall be
devoted to teaching — learning sessions and 10 hours for evaluation/projects.

30 marks shall be reserved for concurrent evaluation to be carried out by the Institute, 20 marks shall be
reserved for online mid-term evaluation to be conducted by the University and 50 marks shall be reserved
for term end written examination to be conducted by the University.

Course 304 - SIP shall have 6 Credits and 150 marks. (50 Marks for Concurrent Evaluation & 100 Marks
for University Evaluation)

Course 402 — Dissertation shall have 2 Credits and 50 marks Concurrent Evaluation.
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Table IV — B: Generic Elective Courses

Generic Elective Courses Credits Semester |Concurrent [Total
Evaluation |Marks

107 Management Fundamentals 2 I 50 50
108 Business Communication Lab 2 I 50 50
109 MS Excel & Advanced Excel Lab 2 I 50 50
110 Selling & Negotiation Skills Lab 2 I 50 50
111 Business, Government & Society 2 I 50 50
112 Leadership Lab 2 I 50 50
113 Personality Development Lab 2 I 50 50
114 Foreign Language - | Lab 2 I 50 50
115 Enterprise Analysis - Desk Research 2 I 50 50
207 Emotional Intelligence and Managerial I 50 50

Effectiveness Lab 2
208 Statistical Software Lab 2 I 50 50
209 MS Project Lab 2 Il 50 50
210 Life Skills Lab 2 Il 50 50
211 Geopolitics & the World Economic System 2 I 50 50
212 Business Systems & Procedures 2 I 50 50
213 Computer Aided Personal Productivity Tools Lab 2 I 50 50
214 Foreign Language - Il Lab 2 I 50 50
215 Industry Analysis - Desk Research 2 I 50 50

Note: Each Generic Elective Course is a:Half Credit course of 30 hours. Out of 30 hours 25 hours shall
be devoted to teaching — learning sessions and 5 hours for evaluation/projects.

50 marks shall be devoted for concurrent evaluation to be carried out by the Institute.

There shall not be any-evaluation by the University (online / subjective) for all Half Credit Courses.
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Table IV — C: Subject Core Courses

Subject Core Courses| Credits | Semester | Concurrent| Online University | Total
(Marketing) Evaluation | Evaluation | Evaluation Marks
(Subjective)
305MKT |Contemporary 3 1 30 20 50 100
Marketing Research
306MKT |Consumer Behaviour i 30 20 50 100
403MKT |Services Marketing v 30 20 50 100
404MKT |(Sales and Distribution v 30 20 50 100
Management
Subject Core Courses| Credits | Semester | Concurrent| Online University | Total
(Finance) Evaluation | Evaluation | Evaluation Marks
(Subjective)
305 FIN |Financial Regulatory 3 " 30 20 50 100
Framework
306 FIN |Merchant Banking and 3 i 30 20 50 100
Financial Services
403 FIN (International Finance 3 v 30 20 50 100
404 FIN |Corporate Finance 3 v 30 20 50 100
Subject Core Courses| Credits | Semester,| Concurrent| Online University |Total
(Information Evaluation. | Evaluation | Evaluation Marks
Technology) (Subjective)
305 1T |I T Management 1| 30 20 50 100
306 IT |E-Business I 30 20 50 100
403 IT |Software Project v 30 20 50 100
Management
404 1T |Enterprise Resource 3 v 30 20 50 100
Planning (ERP)
Subject Core Courses| Credits | Semester | Concurrent| Online University | Total
(Operations Evaluation | Evaluation | Evaluation Marks
Management) (Subjective)
305 OPE |Planning & Control of 3 i 30 20 50 100
Operations
306 OPE |Inventory Management i 30 20 50 100
403 ORE |Operations Strategy v 30 20 50 100
404 OPE |[Total Quality: v 30 20 50 100
Management
Subject Core Courses| Credits | Semester | Concurrent| Online University | Total
(Human Resources Evaluation | Evaluation | Evaluation Marks
Management) (Subjective)
305 HR |Labour Laws i 30 20 50 100
306 HR |Performance i 30 20 50 100
Management
403 HR |Industrial Relations v 30 20 50 100
404 HR |Strategic Human v 30 20 50 100

Resource Management
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Subject Core Courses| Credits | Semester | Concurrent| Online University | Total
(International Evaluation | Evaluation | Evaluation Marks
Business (Subjective)
Management)
305 IB |International Business 3 i 30 20 50 100
Economics
306 IB |[Export Documentation 3 1 30 20 50 100
and Procedures
403 IB |International Business 3 v 30 20 50 100
Environment
404 1B |Indian Economy and 3 v 30 20 50 100
Trade Dependencies
Subject Core Courses| Credits | Semester | Concurrent| Online University:| Total
(Supply Chain Evaluation | Evaluation | Evaluation Marks
Management) (Subjective)
305 SCM |Essentials of Supply 3 " 30 20 50 100
Chain Management
306 SCM [Logistics Management " 30 20 50 100
403 SCM |Strategic Supply Chain v 30 20 50 100
Management
404 SCM |Knowledge 3 v 30 20 50 100
Management in Supply
Chains
Subject Core Courses| Credits | Semester | Concurrent| Online University | Total
(Rural & Agribusiness Evaluation | Evaluation | Evaluation Marks
Management) (Subjective)
305RABM |Agriculture and Indian 3 I 30 20 50 100
Economy
306RABM Ryral Marketing | 3 HI 30 20 50 100
403RABM |Rural Credit and 3 v 30 20 50 100
Finance
404RABM |Rural Marketing I} 3 v 30 20 50 100
23
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Subject Core Courses| Credits | Semester | Concurrent | Online University | Total
(Family Business Evaluation | Evaluation | Evaluation Marks
Management) (Subjective)
305FBM |Essentials of Family 3 " 30 20 50 100
Business Management
— |
306 FBM Managing Innovation - | i 30 20 50 100
403 FBM |Essentials of Family v 30 20 50 100
Business Management
— 1l
404 FBM |Managing Innovation — 3 v 30 20 50 100
Il
Subject Core Courses| Credits | Semester | Concurrent| Online University | Total
(Technology Evaluation | Evaluation | Evaluation Marks
Management) (Subjective)
305TM |Fundamentals of 3 i 30 20 50 100
Technology
Management
306TM |Managing Innovation — 3 " 30 20 50 100
I
403TM |Technology 3 v 30 20 50 100
Competition and
Strategy
404TM |Managing Innovation — 3 v 30 20 50 100

Note: Each Subject Core Course is a Full Credit course of 45 hours. Out of 45 hours, 35 hours shall be
devoted to teaching — learning sessions and 10 hours for evaluation/projects.

30 marks shall be reserved for concurrent evaluation to be carried out by the Institute, 20 marks shall be
reserved for online mid-term evaluation to:be'conducted by the University and 50 marks shall be reserved
for term end written examination to be conducted by the University.
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Table IV — D: Subject Elective Courses

Subject Elective Courses (Marketing Credits Semester |ConcurrentTotal
Management) Evaluation [Marks
307MKT |Integrated Marketing Communications 2 " 50 50
308MKT [Product Management 2 1 50 50
309MKT |Strategic Brand Management 2 " 50 50
310MKT |[Personal Selling Lab 2 " 50 50
311MKT |Qualitative Marketing Research 2 i 50 50
312MKT |Customer Relationship Management 2 i 50 50
313MKT [Marketing and the Law 2 i 50 50
314MKT |[Finance for Marketing Professionals 2 i 50 50
315MKT [Marketing of Financial Services - | 2 " 50 50
316MKT ([Tourism Marketing 2 ] 50 50
317MKT |Agricultural Marketing 2 " 50 50
318MKT |[Business to Business Marketing 2 i 50 50
405MKT |Retail Marketing 2 v 50 50
406MKT |Rural Marketing 2 v 50 50
407MKT |Service Operations Management 2 v 50 50
408MKT |International Marketing 2 v 50 50
409MKT |Export Documentation & Procedures 2 v 50 50
410MKT |Marketing Strategy 2 v 50 50
411MKT |Marketing Decision Models 2 v 50 50
412MKT |Marketing of High Technology Products 2 v 50 50
413MKT |E-Marketing 2 v 50 50
414MKT |Marketing to Emerging.Markets &Bottom of 2 v 50 50
the Pyramid
415MKT |Marketing of.Financial Services - Il v 50 50
416MKT. |Cross Cultural Relationship Marketing v 50 50
Subject Elective Courses (Financial Credits | Semester |Concurrent ([Total
Management) Evaluation |Marks
307 FIN * {lncome Tax — | 2 11 50 50
308 FIN  |Project Finance 2 " 50 50
309 FIN |Strategic Cost Management 2 1 50 50
310 FIN |Corporate Financial Reporting 2 " 50 50
311 FIN |International Financial Reporting Standards 2 " 50 50
312 FIN |Corporate Financial Restructuring 2 " 50 50
313 FIN |Equity Research 2 " 50 50
314 FIN |Credit Analysis and Appraisal 2 " 50 50
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315 FIN |Banking Operations - | 2 " 50 50
316 FIN  (Treasury Management 2 1 50 50
317 FIN |Financial Instruments and Derivatives 2 i 50 50
318 FIN |Financial Statement Analysis 2 " 50 50
319 FIN |Futures & Options 2 1 50 50
320 FIN  |Back Office Operations 2 " 50 50
321 FIN |Principles of Insurance 2 " 50 50
322 FIN  |Rural Financial Institutions 2 i 50 50
323 FIN |Social finance for Inclusive Growth - | 2 i 50 50
405 FIN  |Income Tax — Il 2 v 50 50
406 FIN |Infrastructure Finance 2 v 50 50
407 FIN  [Behavioral Finance 2 v 50 50
408 FIN  |Financial Modeling Using Excel 2 [\ 50 50
409 FIN |Indirect Taxation 2 v 50 50
410 FIN  [Financial Risk Management 2 v 50 50
411 FIN  |Online Trading of Financial Assets 2 v 50 50
412 FIN  [Banking Operations — Il 2 v 50 50
413 FIN  |Wealth & Portfolio Management 2 v 50 50
414 FIN  |Fixed Income Securities 2 v 50 50
415 FIN  |Technical Analysis 2 v 50 50
416 FIN |Commodity Markets and Derivatives 2 v 50 50
417 FIN  |Practice of Life Insurance 2 v 50 50
418 FIN  |Information Systems Audit 2 v 50 50
419 FIN  |Practice of General Insurance 2 v 50 50
420 FIN  |Financing Rural Development 2 v 50 50
421 FIN  |Social finance for Inclusive Growth - Il 2 v 50 50
Subject Elective Courses (Information Credits Semester |ConcurrentTotal
Technology Management) Evaluation Marks
307 1T Software Engineering 2 i 50 50
308 IT Maobile Computing with Android 2 i 50 50
3091T RDBMS with Oracle 2 11 50 50
310 1T Software Quality Assurance 2 " 50 50
311 1T E-Learning 2 1 50 50
312 1T Software Marketing 2 " 50 50
3131T Business Intelligence and Analytics 2 " 50 50
314 1T Cyber Laws 2 11 50 50
3151T IT for Retailing 2 11 50 50
316 IT Technical Writing 2 " 50 50
405 1T Web Designing and Multimedia 2 v 50 50
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406 1T Network Technologies and Security 2 v 50 50
407 IT Data Base Administration 2 v 50 50
408 IT Software Testing 2 v 50 50
409 IT Information Security and Audit 2 v 50 50
410 1T Data Warehousing and Data Mining 2 v 50 50
411 1T Geographical Information Systems 2 v 50 50
412 1T E-Governance 2 v 50 50
413 1T Internet Marketing 2 v 50 50
414 1T Microsoft Office 2010 Lab 2 v 50 50
Subject Elective Courses (Operations Credits Semester (Coneurrent [Total
Management) Evaluation [Marks
307 OPE |Productivity Management 2 I 50 50
308 OPE |Maintenance Management 2 m 50 50
309 OPE |Facilities Planning 2 " 50 50
310 OPE |Manufacturing Resource Planning 2 11 50 50
311 OPE (Technology Management 2 il 50 50
312 OPE |Six Sigma 2 11 50 50
313 OPE |Designing Operations Systems 2 " 50 50
314 OPE |Toyota Production System 2 " 50 50
315 OPE |Project Management 2 1 50 50
3160PE ([Theory of Constraints 2 " 50 50
405 OPE |Quality Management Standards 2 v 50 50
406 OPE |World Class Manufacturing 2 v 50 50
407 OPE |Business Process reengineering 2 v 50 50
408 OPE |Enterprise Resource Planning 2 v 50 50
409 OPE |Financial Perspectives in Operations 2 v 50 50
Management
410 OPE |Service Operations Management 2 v 50 50
411 OPE._ [Modeling Techniques for Operations 2 v 50 50
412 OPE |Business Process Management 2 v 50 50
413 ORE |[Challenges and Opportunities in Operations 2 v 50 50
Management
414 OPE |Lean Manufacturing 2 v 50 50
Subject Elective Courses (Human Credits Semester [Concurrent [Total
Resources Management) Evaluation [Marks
307 HR |Employee Health & Safety 2 " 50 50
308 HR |Employee Welfare 2 " 50 50
309 HR |HR Audit 2 11 50 50
310 HR  |Human Resource Information System 2 " 50 50
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311 HR |Outsourcing of HR 2 " 50 50
312 HR |Public Relations & Corporate Communication 2 " 50 50
313 HR |Quality Management System 2 " 50 50
314 HR |Lab in Recruitment and Selection 2 i 50 50
315 HR |Lab in Job Design and Analysis 2 " 50 50
316 HR |Lab in Training 2 " 50 50
317 HR |Lab in Labour Laws — | 2 i 50 50
405 HR  |Organizational Design and Development 2 v 50 50
406 HR  |Global HR 2 v 50 50
407 HR  |Employee Reward Management 2 v 50 50
408 HR  |Change Management 2 v 50 50
409 HR  |Conflict & Negotiation Management 2 v 50 50
410 HR |Labin CSR 2 v 50 50
411 HR |Lab in Industrial Relations 2 v 50 50
412 HR  |Lab in Legal Compliances 2 v 50 50
413HR  |Lab in Mentoring and Coaching 2 v 50 50
414 HR |Best Practices in HR 2 v 50 50
415 HR  |Designing HR Policies 2 v 50 50
416 HR  |Competency Mapping 2 v 50 50
Subject Elective Courses (International Credits Semester (Concurrent [Total
Business Management) Evaluation |Marks
307 1B International Management 2 " 50 50
308 1B International Marketing 2 " 50 50
309 1B International Marketing Research 2 i 50 50
310 1B International Financial Management 2 i 50 50
311 1B GlobalIT Management 2 i 50 50
312 1B Global Logistics & Supply Chains 2 i 50 50
313 1B Designing Organizations for Uncertain 2 " 50 50
Environment
314 1B Legal Dimensions of International Business 2 " 50 50
315 1B Global Strategic Management 2 " 50 50
316 1B International Relations & Management 2 " 50 50
317 1B Foreign Language for International Business — 2 " 50 50
I
405 1B Environment & Global Competitiveness v 50 50
406 1B Marketing to Emerging Markets & Bottom of v 50 50
the Pyramid
407 1B Cross-Cultural Relationship Marketing v 50 50
408 1B Foreign Exchange Management v 50 50
409 1B E Commerce v 50 50
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410 1B Enterprise Resource Planning 2 v 50 50
411 1B Global HR 2 v 50 50
412 1B WTO and Intellectual Property Rights 2 v 50 50
413 1B Global Competitiveness and Strategic 2 v 50 50
Alliances
414 1B International Diversity Management v 50 50
415 1B Foreign Language for International Business — v 50 50
Il
Subject Elective Courses (Supply Chain Credits Semester (Concurrent [Total
Management) Evaluation |[Marks
307 SCM [Managing Material Flow in Supply Chains " 50 50
308 SCM |[Inventory Management " 50 50
309 SCM |Purchasing &  Supplier Relationship I 50 50
Management — |
310 SCM [Six Sigma 2 i 50 50
311 SCM |(Supply Chain Planning 2 i 50 50
312 SCM |Supply Chain Coordination 2 HI 50 50
313 SCM |Decision Modeling for Supply Chains 2 i 50 50
314 SCM (Theory of Constraints 2 i 50 50
315 SCM |Supply Chain Practices — | 2 i 50 50
405 SCM |Green Logistics & Supply Chains 2 v 50 50
406 SCM |Enterprise Resource Planning 2 v 50 50
407 SCM |Purchasing &  Supplier — Relationship 2 v 50 50
Management — Il
408 SCM |Supply Chain Risk Management 2 v 50 50
409 SCM |Project Management 2 v 50 50
410 SCM |Supply Chain Performance Measurement 2 v 50 50
411 SCM |Supply Chain. Management - Financial 2 v 50 50
Perspectives
412 SCM |Global Logistics v 50 50
413 SCM |Supply Chain Practices— Il v 50 50
Subject Elective Courses (Rural & Credits Semester |Concurrent [Total
Agribusiness Management) Evaluation |Marks
307RABM|Ryral Development | 2 I 50 50
308RABM Special Areas in Rural Marketing 2 I 50 50
309RABM Commodity Markets — | 2 I 50 50
310RABM Agricultural Marketing & Price Analysis — | 2 I 50 50
311RABM|Microfinance 2 i 50 50
312RABM Agricultural Marketing 2 I 50 50
313RABM Ryral Research Methods 2 I 50 50
314RABM|Rryural Banking 2 i 50 50
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315RABM AgriSupply Chains Management 2 I 50 50
316RABM)||cT for Agriculture Management 2 I 50 50
317RABMToyrism Marketing — | 2 I 50 50
318RABM |jillennium Development Goals 2 I 50 50
405RABM R g Development I 2 v 50 50
406RABM Special Areas in Agro produce Management 2 IV 50 50
407RABM Commodity Markets — Il 2 v 50 50
408RABM Agricultural Marketing and Price Analysis — I 2 v 50 50
409RABM Agricultural Finance and Project Management 2 IV 50 50
410RABM Management of Agricultural Input Marketing 2 IV >0 50
411RABM |ntellectual Property Management 2 IV 50 50
412RABM|E0d Retail Management 2 IV 50 50
413RABM Agri-Entreprenuership 2 IV 50 50
414RABM Management of Agribusiness Cooperatives 2 v 50 50
415RABM 16yrism Marketing — Il 2 IV 50 50
416RABM Agriculture & WTO 2 v 50 50
Subject Elective Courses (Family Business | = Credits Semester |Concurrent (Total
Management) Evaluation |Marks
307 FBM |Business Plan 2 11 50 50
308 FBM |private Equity 2 11 50 50
309 FBM Franchising 2 11 50 50
310 FBM |gqcial Entrepreneurship 2 I 50 50
311 FBM Intraprenuership 2 11 50 50
312 FBM I1rends in Entrepreneurship 2 I 50 50
313 FBM |small Scale Industries Management 2 I 50 50
314 FBM Entrepreneurial Case Study 2 I 50 50
405 FBM Creativity and Change in Organizations 2 v 50 50
406 FBM Accounting for. Small Business 2 v 50 50
407 FBM Management of Intellectual Property Rights 2 IV 50 50
408 FBM [Managing , Growing and Exiting the new 2 v 50 50
Venture
409 FBM Project Management 2 v 50 50
410 FBM |Fnvironment and Laws 2 v 50 50
411 FBM | |nformation, Disaster and Health Management 2 IV 50 50
412 FBM |ysiness Incubation 2 v 50 50
Subject Elective Courses (Technology Credits Semester [Concurrent [Total
Management) Evaluation [Marks
307TM |Technology Forecasting 2 11l 50 50
308TM |Strategies for information goods and network 2 " 50 50
economies — |
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309TM |Advanced Manufacturing Technology 2 11l 50 50

310TM  |Product Strategies for High Technology 2 " 50 50
Companies — |

311TM |Foundations of Knowledge Management 2 11l 50 50

312TM  |Business Intelligence and Analytics 2 11l 50 50

313TM  |Designing Organizations for Uncertain 2 " 50 50
Environment

314TM  |Technology Transfer and Commercialization 2 11l 50 50

315TM |Digital Marketing 2 11l 50 50

405TM  |Innovation, Product Development and 2 v 50 50
Commercialization

406TM  |Strategies for information goods and network 2 v 50 50
economies — I

407TM  |Technology Use and Assessment 2 \Y 50 50

408TM  |Product Strategies for High Technology 2 \) 50 50
Companies — Il

409TM  |Systems & Technologies for Knowledge 2 IV 50 50
Management

410TM  |Strategic Management of Intellectual Property 2 v 50 50
Rights

411TM  |Change , Creativity & Innovation 2 v 50 50

412TM  |Seminar on Managing Emerging technologies 2 v 50 50

413TM  |Marketing of High Technology Products 2 v 50 50

Note: Each Subject Elective Course is a Half Credit course of 30 hours. Out of 30 hours 25 hours shall be
devoted to teaching — learning sessions and 5 hours for evaluation/projects. 50 marks shall be devoted
for concurrent evaluation to be carried out by the Institute.

Note: Number of Sessions provided in-the detailed syllabus in Annexure |l for each course are indicative
and not prescriptive in nature. They indicate the clock hours allocated for teaching and

evaluation/project. However under.the CBCS - L TP pattern , the faculty has the liberty to modify the same
in the best interest of the learners.

Note:

b)

In the detailed syllabus, Number of Sessions indicated are as follows: 7 + 2 indicates 7 teaching
sessions and 2-evaluation /project sessions. Kindly note that the numbers provided are indicative
and not prescriptive.

Faculty members and students should refer to the latest edition of the relevant books, wherever
suchilatest editions are available.
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‘ Semester Specialization

Cousecoe i Ttpe oo oye

‘ Course Title Accounting For Business Decisions

| Course Objectives:

1 To understand the basic concepts of financial accounting, cost accounting and management accounting
2 To know various tools from accounting and cost accounting which would facilitate the decision making
3 To develop analytical abilities to face the business situations

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Basic Concepts: Overview of Financial Accounting, Cost Accounting and 7+2

Management Accounting, Role of each in a business organization, Relationship
between financial, cost and management accounting, Various concepts.and
conventions of financial accounting, Basics of cost accounting, Role of
management accounting in the global business environment.

2 Understanding of Financial Statements: Financial statements of proprietary 6+2
and partnership organizations, Financial statements of limited companies,
schedule VIth of Companies Act, Objectives of financial statements.

3 Cost Accounting: Basic concepts of Cost Accounting, Classification and 6+2
analysis of Costs, Relevant and irrelevant costs, differential costs, sunk costs,
objectives of Cost Accounting, preparation of Cost Sheets.

4 Cost Control: Elements of costs, Material cost control, Procurement, Pricing of | 8+2
issues, Inventory control technigues, fixation of various levels , Economic Order
Quantity, material losses , labour cost control', time keeping and time booking ,
labour turnover , overheads , collection, classification, absorption of overheads.
5 Decision making tools: Marginal costing, Make or-buy , Optimizing product 8+2
mix , Break-even point , Cost Volume Profit Analysis, Pricing decisions,
budgeting — Cash, flexible‘and functional budgets.Variance Analysis — Material
and Labour Cost Variances.

1 | Numerical Problems will be asked on the following topics:

Pricing of issues — FIFQ, LIFO, Simple Average and Weighted Average methods

Allocation, Apportionment and Absorption of overheads.

Decision Making tools = optimizing product mix, make or buy, acceptance of export order and other
Decision Making areas.

Computation of breakeven point and related areas.

Budgeting — cash and flexible.

Computation of material and labour variances

2 | Weightage of, Theory Questions will be 40% and numerical problems will carry 60% marks in the
final gquestion paper.
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| Learning Resources:
1 | Text Books

Management Accounting — Dr. Mahesh Kulkarni
Accounting For Business Decisions by Dr. E B Khedkar and D B Bharati

2 Reference Books

Financial Cost and Management Accounting-P Periasamy

Management Accounting- Madhu Vij

Fundamentals of Management Accounting — H. V Jhamb

Cost and Management Accounting — M N Arora

Financial Accounting for Managers — Mr. Sanjay Dhmija, Pearson Publications
Management Accounting — Mr. Anthony Atkinson, Robert Kaplan, Pearson
Management Accounting — Mr. Khan and Mr. Jain, Tata McGraw Hill

Financial Accounting part | — Mr. S. N. Maheshwari

Accounting For Management-Jawarhar Lal

3 | Supplementary
Reading Material

Management Accounting - Mr. Ravi Kishore
Accounting for Managers — Dearden and Bhattacharya

4 Websites

Institute of Cost Accountants, Institute of Chartered Accountants

5 Journals

Indian Journal of Finance
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Semester Specialization

Cousecoe —— laz Jtpe o oeai-coe

Course Title Economic Analysis for Business Decisions

| Course Objectives: |
1 To equip the students of management with time tested tools and techniques of managerial

economics to enable them to appreciate its relevance in decision making.

2 To explore the economics of information and network industries and to equip students with an

understanding of how economics affect the business strategy of companies in these industries.

3 To develop economic way of thinking in dealing with practical business problems and challenges.

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Basic Concepts of Economics: Introduction to Economics , Basic Economic 7+2

Problem, Circular Flow of Economic Activity , Nature of.the firm - rationale,
objective of maximizing firm value as present value of all future profits,
maximizing, satisficing, optimizing, principal agent problem, Accounting Profit
and Economic Profit, Role of profit in Market System , Adam Smith and
Invisible Hand.

2 Demand Analysis and Forecasting: Determinants of Market Demand at Firm | 7 + 2
and Industry level — Elasticity of Demand - Market Demand Equation — Use of
Multiple Regression for estimating demand — Case study on estimating industry
demand (formulating equation and solving with the aid of software expected)

Demand and Supply: Market Equilibrium - Pricing under perfect competition,
monopolistic competition, Case study on pricing under monopolistic competition
, Oligopoly - product differentiation and price discrimination; price- output
decision in multi-plant and multi-produgt firms.

3 Cost Concepts: Cost Concept, Opportunity Cost, Marginal, Incremental and 7+2
Sunk Costs, Cost Volume Profit Analysis, Breakeven Point, Case Study on
marginal costs.

Risk Analysis and Decision Making: Concept of risk, Expected value
computation, Risk management through Insurance, diversification, Hedging,
Decision Tree Analysis;Case Study on Decision tree Technigue.

4 Money and Capital Markets in India: Role and Functions of Money Markets, 7+2
Composition of Money Market, Money Market Instruments , Reserve Bank of
India — Functions , Regulatory Role of RBI w.r.t. Currency, Credit and Balance
of Payment; Open Market Operations.

Role and Functions of Capital Markets, Composition of Capital market, Stock
Exchanges in India, Role of SEBI, understanding of stock market quotations in
financial press expected.

5 Public Finance Infrastructure: Familiarity with important 7+2
terms/agencies/approaches/practices related to National Income (such as
GDP, PPP, Growth Rate), Foreign Trade (such as GATT, WTO) and union
budget (such as Revenue Account, Capital Account, Revenue Deficit, Fiscal
Deficit, Plan and Non-plan expenditure) is expected.

Understanding of Summarized budget for the current financial year is required
(knowledge of detailed budget provisions not required).
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| Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Managerial Economics by Peterson, Lewis, Sudhir Jain, Pearson, Prentice Hall
Indian Economy by Datt & Sundaram, 61% Edition, S Chand
Managerial Economics by D. Salvatore, McGraw Hill, New Delhi.
Managerial Economics by Pearson and Lewis, Prentice Hall, New Delhi
Managerial Economics by G.S. Gupta, T M H, New Delhi.
Managerial Economics by Mote, Paul and Gupta, T M H, New Delhi.

2 Reference Books | Managerial Economics by Homas and Maurice, Tata McGraw Hill, 8th Edition
Indian Economy by Mishra and Puri, 24th Edition, Himalaya Publishing House
Managerial Economics by Analysis, Problems and Cases, P.L. Mehta, Sultan
Chand Sons, New Delhi.
Managerial Economics by Varshney and Maheshwari, Sultan Chand and Sons,
New Delhi.
Managerial Economics-D.M.Mithani
Managerial Economics by Joel Dean, Prentice Hall, USA.
Managerial Economics by H L Ahuja, S Chand & Co. New Delhi.

3 | Supplementary Economic Times Daily

Reading Material | Business Standard Daily

Business Today
Business India
Latest Monetary Policy
Latest Fiscal Policy

4 | Websites www.rbi.org.infhome.aspx
WWW.macroscan.org
www.finmin.nic.in
www.indiabudget.nic.in

5 | Journals Economic and Palitical Weekly
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Semester Specialization

Cousecoe —— laa Jpe o oema-coe

Course Title Legal Aspects of Business

| Course Objectives: |
1 To acquaint students with general business law issues to help become more informed, sensitive

and effective business leaders.

2 To provide the students with an understanding of fundamental legal issues pertaining to the

business world to enhance their ability to manage businesses effectively.

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of

Number Sessions
1 The Indian Contract Act 1871 7+2
Essential elements of valid contract
Performance an discharge of contract
Breach of contract - meaning and remedies
Contracts of indemnity - meaning, nature-right of.indemnity holder and
indemnifier
Contract of guarantee — meaning, nature and features — types of guarantee —
provisions relating to various types of guarantee.
Surety and co-surety — rights and liabilities — discharge of surety
Agency — agent and principal, creation of agency — classification of agents —
relationship between principal and agent — agent’s authority — revocation and
renunciation — rights duties and liabilities of agents:and principal —termination of
agency.
2 Sale of Goods Act 1930 7+2
Contract of sale of goods — meaning —essentials of contract of sale — formalities
of contract of sale
Conditions and warranties
Transfer of property or.ownership
Performance of contract of sale
Rights of unpaid.seller —rules as to delivery of goods
3 Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881 7+2
Negotiable Instruments — meaning — characteristics — types — parties — holder
and holder,in due course
Negotiation and types of endorsements
Dishonour of negotiable instruments - noting and protesting
Liability of parties on Negotiable Instruments
4 Companies Act 1956 7+2
Company — definition — meaning — features and types of companies.
Incorporation of a company — memorandum of association, articles of
association and prospectus
Share Capital- types of share capital — increase/decrease of share capital —
buy-back of shares.
5 Other Laws: 7+2
Consumer Protection Act 1986 — definitions of consumer, consumer dispute-
complaint — goods —service — unfair trade practice — consumer dispute
redressal agencies
Information Technology Act — Digital Signature — Electronic Governance
Intellectual Property Laws — Understanding of concepts of patents, copyrights,
trademarks and designs
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| Learning Resources:
1 | Text Books

Elements of Mercantile Law by N.D. Kapoor, Sultan Chand, 32" Edition

2 Reference Books

Legal Aspects of Business, Akhileshwar Pathak, Tata McGraw Hill, 4™ Edition

Business Law, S.S.Gulshan, Excel Books, 4™ Edition.
Business Law for Management, K.R.Bulchandani, Himalaya Publications,
revised 6™ Edition.

Bare Acts
3 | Supplementary Corporate Law Advisor
Reading Material | LawZ

Legal News & views

4 Websites

www.vakilnol.com
www.indiankanoon.org
www.sebi.gov.in/
www.companylawonline.com
www.claonline.in

5 Journals

Management & Labour studies
International Labour Review.
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Semester Specialization

Cousecoe — Las Tpe oo coe

Course Title Business Research Methods

| Course Objectives: |
1 To understand the concept and process of business research in business environment.

2 To know the use of tools and techniques for exploratory, conclusive and causal research.

3 To understand the concept of measurement in empirical systems.

4 To use statistical techniques for analysis of research data.

Syllabus:
Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 1. Foundations of Research: 5+1

1.1 Research: — Definition, Why study Business Research? What is good
research? Decision Support, Business Intelligence, Research applications in
functional areas of Business, Emerging trends in Business research.

1.2 Research & the Scientific Method: Characteristics of scientific method.
1.3 Steps in Research Process

1.4 Concept of Scientific Enquiry: - Formulation of Research Problem —
Management Question — Research Question — Investigation Question

1.5 Research Proposal: — Elements of a Research Proposal, Drafting a
Research Proposal, Evaluating a research proposal (Students are expected to
draft and evaluate a real life research proposal)

2 2. Research Design: 7+2
2.1 Concept, Features of a good research design, Use of a good research
design

2.2 Qualitative research and Quantitative research approaches, Comparison -
Pros and Cons of both approaches.

2.3 Exploratory Research Design: Concept, Types: Qualitative techniques -
Projective Techniques, Depth Interview, Experience Survey, Focus Groups,
Observation.

2.4 Descriptive Research Designs: Concept, types and uses. Concept of
Cross-sectional and Longitudinal Research

2.5 Experimental Design: Concept of Cause, Causal relationships, Concept of
Independent & Dependent variables, concomitant variable, extraneous variable,
Treatment, Control group. (Elementary conceptual treatment expected)

2.6 Hypothesis:*Qualities of a good Hypothesis —Framing Null Hypothesis &
Alternative Hypothesis. Concept of Hypothesis Testing - Logic & Importance
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3. Measurement & Data:

3.1 Concept of Measurement: what is measured? Problems in measurement
in management research - Validity and Reliability. Levels of measurement -
Nominal, Ordinal, Interval, Ratio.

3.2 Attitude Scaling Techniques:Concept of Scale — Rating Scales viz. Likert
Scales, Semantic Differential Scales, Constant Sum Scales, Graphic Rating
Scales — Ranking Scales — Paired Comparison & Forced Ranking - Concept
and Application.

3.3 Types of Data - Secondary Data: Definition, Sources, Characteristics,
Searching world wide web for data, Issues to be considered for secondary data,
sufficiency, adequacy, reliability, consistency.

3.4 Types of Data - Primary Data: Definition, Advantages and disadvantages
over secondary data,

3.5 Questionnaire Method: Questionnaire Construction - Personal Interviews,
Telephonic survey Interviewing, Email/Internet survey, online survey sites, their
utility, constraints

7+3

4. Sampling:

4.1 Basic Concepts: Defining the Universe, Concepts of Statistical Population,
Sample, Characteristics of a good sample. Sampling Frame (practical. approach
for determining the sample frame expected), Sampling errors, Non Sampling
errors, Methods to reduce the errors, Sample Size constraints, Non Response.
4.2Probability Sample: Simple Random Sample, Systematic Sample,
Stratified Random Sample, Area Sampling & Cluster Sampling.

4.3Non Probability Sample: Judgment Sampling, Convenience Sampling,
Purposive Sampling, Quota Sampling & Snowballing Sampling methods.
Determining size of the sample - Practical considerations in sampling and
sample size, (sample size determination formulae and numerical not expected)

6+2
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5. Data Analysis & Report Writing:

5.1 Data Analysis : Editing, Coding, Univariate analysis - Tabular
representation of data, frequency tables, Construction of frequency distributions
and their analysis in the form of measures of central tendency — Mean, Median
and Mode; their relative merits and demerits,

5.2 Graphical Representation of Data: Appropriate Usage of Bar charts, Pie
charts, Histogram, Leaf and stem, Candle stick, Box plots. (Use of MS Excel)
5.3 Bivariate Analysis: Cross tabulations, Use of percentages, Bivariate
Correlation Analysis - meaning & types of correlation, Karl Person’s coefficient
of correlation and spearman’s rank correlation; Scatter plots, Chi-square test
including testing hypothesis of association, association of attributes. (Formulae
and calculation are not expected. Interpretation of the given data and scenario
analysis is expected for appropriate managerial decision inferences to be
drawn.)

5.4 Linear Regression Analysis: Meaning and two lines of regression;
relationship between correlation and regression co-efficient (Formulae and
calculation are not expected. Interpretation of the given data and scenario
analysis is expected for appropriate managerial decision inferences to be
drawn.)

5.5 Test of Significance: Small sample tests: t (Mean, proportion) and F tests,
Z test, Non-parametric tests: Binomial test of proportion, Randomness test;
Analysis of Variance: One way and two-way Classifications (Formulae and
calculation are not expected. Interpretation of the given data and scenario
analysis is expected for appropriate managerial decision inferences to be
drawn.)

5.6 Research Reports: Structure of Research report, Report writing and
Presentation.

Note: Extensive use of MS Excel'is.expected in learning unit no. 5

10+ 2
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| Learning Resources: |
1 | Text Books Business Research Methods by Donald Cooper & Pamela Schindler, TMGH, 9

Edition.

Business Research Methods by Alan Bryman & Emma Bell, Oxford University

Press, 2"Edition

Research Methodology by C.R.Kothari, New Age International Publication, 2nd

Edition

Research Methodsfor Social Work by Allen, Earl R. Babbie, Cengage, 7"Edition

Research Methods in Business Studies: A Practical Guideby Pervez Ghauri, Dr

Kjell Gronhaug, FT Prentice Hall

Business communication by Dipak Chawala, Vikas Publication.by.Dipak

Chawala, Vikas Publication

Reference Books | The Practice of Social Research by Earl R. Babbie, Wadsworth, 13"Edition

2 Business Research Methods by William G. Zikmund, Barry J. Babin, Jon C.

Carr, Mitch Griffin, Cengage Learning, 8" Edition

Approaches to social research by Royce Singleton, Bruce C. Straits; Margaret

Miller Straits, Oxford University Press, 2"Edition

Handbook of Research Design and Social Measurement by Delbert Charles

Miller, Neil J. Salkind, Sage Publication, 6"Edition

Research Methods: The Basics by Nicholas S:R. Walliman, Nicholas

Walliman, Routledge, 1*Edition

Business Resarch Methodology-Sachdeva

Research Methodology In Management-Dr.V.P.Michael

3 | Supplementary Business Research Methods by Naval Bajpai; Pearson, 1%Edition
Reading Material
4 | Websites http://www.socialresearchmethods.net
http://www.oup.com/uk/orc/bin/9780199202959
5 | Journals The Nature, Social Organization and Promotion of Management Research:

Towards Policy by David Tranfield and Ken Starkey, British Journal of
Management, Vol. 9, 341353 (1998)

The Case for Qualitative Research by Gareth Morgan & Linda Smircich,
Academy;of Management Review 1980, Vol. 5, No. 4, 491-500

Beyond the Qualitative Interview: Data Preparation and Transcription by
Eleanor Mclellan, Kathleen M. Macqueen & Judith L. Neidig, Field Methods,
Vol. 15, No. 1, February 2003, 63—84

The'Coming of Age for Qualitative Research: Embracing the Diversity of
Qualitative Methodsby Bansal, Pratima (Tima); Corley, Kevin. Academy of
Management Journal. Apr2011, Vol. 54 Issue 2, p233-237

Social Science Research Methods in Internet Time byKarpf, David. Information,
Communication & Society. Jun2012, Vol. 15 Issue 5, p639-661

AReview of Research Methods in Online and Blended Business Education:
2000-2009 by Arbaugh, J. B.; Hwang, Alvin; Pollack, Birgit Leisen., Academy of
Management Annual Meeting Proceedings. 2010, p1-6

Research Methods in Economics and Business by Roberts, Harry V. Journal of
Marketing Research Aug1964, Vol. 1 Issue 3, p88-90

Counterfactuals and Hypothesis Testing in Political Science Author(s): James
D. Fearon, The Johns Hopkins University Press Vol. 43, No. 2 (Jan., 1991), pp.
169-195

Statistical Sampling Techniques and Marketing Research by Cassady Jr.,
Ralph. Journal of Marketing. Apr 1945, Vol. 9 Issue 4, p317-341

A Study of Selected Opinion Measurement Techniques byKassarjian, Harold H.;
Nakanishi, Masao. Journal of Marketing Research, May67, Vol. 4 Issue 2, p148-
153
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Semester Specialization

Cousecoe —— Laos Jpe o oenei-coe

Course Title Organizational Behaviour

| Course Objectives: |
1 To develop an understanding of the behavior of individuals and groups inside organizations
2 To enhance skills in understanding and appreciating individuals, interpersonal, and group process
for increased effectiveness both within and outside of organizations.
3 To develop theoretical and practical insights and problem-solving capabilities for effectively
managing the organizational processes.

Syllabus

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Fundamentals of OB 7+2
Definition, scope and importance of OB, Relationship between OB and the

individual, Evolution of OB, Theoretical framework (cognitive, behavioristic and
social cognitive), Limitations of OB.

2 Individual Process And Behavior: 8+2
2.1 Attitude: Importance of attitude in an organization, Right Attitude,
Components of attitude, Relationship between behavior and attitude,
Developing Emotional intelligence at the workplace, Job attitude, Barriers to
changing attitudes

2.2 Personality and values: Definition and importance of Personality for
performance, The Myers-Briggs Type Indicator and The Big Five personality
model, Significant personality traits suitable to the workplace (personality & job
— fit theory), Personality Tests and their practical applications.

2.3 Perception: Meaning and concept of perception, Factors influencing
perception, Selective perception; Attribution theory, Perceptual process, Social
perception (stereotyping and halo effect).

2.4 Motivation: Definition & Concept of Motive & Motivation, The Content
Theories of Motivation (Maslow's Need Hierarchy & Herzberg's Two Factor
model. Theory), The Process Theories (Vroom'’s expectancy Theory & Porter
Lawler model), Contemporary Theories- Equity Theory of Work Motivation

3 Interpersonal Processes And Behavior, Team And Leadership 8+2
Development

3.1 Foundations of Group Behavior: The Meaning of Group & Group
behavior & Group Dynamics, Types of Groups, The Five -Stage Model of
Group Development

3.2 Managing Teams: Why Work Teams, Work Teams in Organization,
Developing Work Teams, Team Effectiveness & Team Building

3.3 Leadership: Concept of Leadership, Styles of Leadership, Trait Approach,
Contingency Leadership Approach, Contemporary leadership, Meaning and
significance of contemporary leadership, Concept of transformational
leadership, Contemporary issues in leadership, Contemporary theories of
leadership, Success stories of today’s Global and Indian leaders.
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4 Organization System: 5+2
Organizational Culture: Meaning & Definition of Organizational Culture,
Creating & Sustaining Organizational Culture, Types of Culture (Strong vs.
Weak Culture, Soft vs. Hard Culture & formal vs. Informal Culture) , Creating
Positive Organizational Culture, Concept of Workplace Spirituality.

change.

5.1 Organizational Change: Meaning, definition & Nature of Organizational
Change, Types of Organizational change, Forces that acts as stimulants to

5.2 Implementing Organizational Change: How to overcome the Resistance
to Change, Approaches to managing Organizational Change, Kurt Lewin’s-
Three step model, Seven Stage model of Change & Kotter’s Eight-Step plan for
Implementing Change, Leading the Change Process, Facilitating Change,
Dealing with Individual & Group Resistance, Intervention Strategies for
Facilitating Organizational Change, Methods of Implementing Organizational
Change, Developing a Learning Organization.

5 Managing Change : 7+2

| Learning Resources:
1 | Text Books

Organizational Behaviour by Robins

Organizational Behaviour by Nelson & Quick

Organizational Behaviour by Fred Luthans

Organizational Behaviour by Stephen Raebins; Timothy Judge, Neharika Vohra
Organizational Behaviour by M N Mishra

Organizational Behaviour by K Ashwathappa

2 Reference Books

Understanding OB by Uday Pareek

Change & Knowledge Management by Janakiram, Ravindra and Shubha
Murlidhar

Organization Behaviour-Niraj Kumar

3 | Supplementary
Reading Material

Contemporary Leadership Theories: Enhancing the Understanding of the
complexity,-subjectivity and dynamic of leadership by Ingo Winkler
Organizational Performance in a Nutshell by Daniel M. Wentland

4 Websites

http://papers.ssrn.com
http://www.nwlink.com/~donclark/leader/leadob.html

5 Journals

Organizational Behavior and Human Decision processes
Journal of Organizational Behavior

Journal of Human Values

International Studies of Management & Organization

44

University of Pune - MBA Revised Syllabus 2013




SEINESER

Specialization

Cousecoe —— Laos Tpe o oemai-coe

Course Title

Basics of Marketing

| Course Objectives:
1 To introduce marketing as a business function and a philosophy

2 To emphasize importance of understanding external environment in marketing decision making

3 To expose students to a systematic frame work of marketing &implementations and to highlight

need for different marketing approaches for services, goods, and for household consumers,
organizationalbuyers.

Syllabus:

Unit Contents
Number

1

Introduction to Marketing

1.1 Definition & Functions of Marketing: Scope of Marketing, Core concepts
of marketing such as Need, Want, Demand, Customer Value, Exchange,
Customer & Consumer, Customer Satisfaction, Customer Delight, Customer
Loyalty, Marketing v/s Market

1.2 Markets: Definition of Market, Competition, Key customer markets,
Marketplaces, Market spaces, Metamarkets

1.3 Company Orientation towards Market Place: Product, Production, Sales,
Marketing, Societal, Transactional, Relational,Holistic Marketing Orientation.
Selling versus Marketing. Concept of Marketing Myopia.

1.4 Introduction to the Concept of Marketing Mix:-Origin & Concept of
Marketing Mix and Definitions of 7Ps:People, Processes & Physical Evidence
1.5 New Marketing Realities: Major Societal Forces, New Consumer
Capabilities & New Company .Capabilities.

Number of
Sessions

10+ 2

Consumer Behavior:

2.1 Meaning & importance of consumer behavior, Comparison between
Organizational Buying behavior and consumer buying behavior, Buying roles,
2.2 Five steps buyer decision process

6+2

Marketing Environment:

3.1 Concept of Environment: Macro and Micro, Need for analyzing the
Marketing Environment

3.2 Macre:Environment: Analyzing the Economic, Socio-cultural,
Demographic, Political — Legal - Regulatory, Technical, Environmental
environments.

3:3 Linkage of Marketing Function with all functions in the organization.
3.4 Concept of Market Potential & Market Share

6+2

Segmentation, Target Marketing & Positioning:

4.1 Marketing as Value Delivery Process: Traditional & modern approaches
4.2 Segmentation: Definition, Need for segmentation, Benefits of
segmentation to marketers, Bases for market segmentation of consumer goods
& industrial goods, Criteria for effective segmentation.

4.3 Levels of Market Segmentation: Segment Marketing, Niche Marketing,
Local Marketing, Mass Marketing.

4.4 Target Market : Concept of Target Market and criteria for selection of
target market

4.5 Positioning: Concept of Differentiation &Positioning, Introduction to the
concepts of Value Proposition & USP.

8+2

University of

Pune - MBA Revised Syllabus 2013

45



5 Product — The First Element of Marketing Mix: 5+2
5.1 Product :Meaning of product, Goods & Services Continuum, Classification
of consumer products — Convenience, Shopping, Specialty, Unsought,
classification of industrial products — material & parts, capital items, supplies &
services

5.2Product Levels: The customer value hierarchy

5.3 Product Mix: Width, Depth, Consistency & Product line.

Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Marketing Management - Philip Kotler, Kevin Lane Keller, Abraham Koshy,
Mithileshwar Jha, Pearson , 13"Edition

Marketing Management, Rajan Saxena, TMGH, 4™ Edition

Marketing by Lamb Hair Sharma, Mc Daniel Cengage Learning 2012

2 Reference Books | Principles of Marketing — Philip Kotler, Gary Armstrong, Prafulla Agnihotri,
Ehasan Haque, Pearson, 13™Edition

Marketing Management- Text and Cases, Tapan K Panda, 2" Edition, Excel
Books

Marketing Management, Ramaswamy & Namakumari; Macmillan, 4™ Edition.
Marketing Management Concept& Cases - S.A.Sherlekar

Marketing Management - Karunakaran

Marketing Management - Bose

3 | Supplementary Marketing Whitebook (Latest Edition)

Reading Material | Brand Equity Supplement of The Economic Times

Brand Wagon Supplement of The Financial Express

Strategist Supplement of Business Standard

4 | Websites NCAER - http://www.ncaer.org/

2011 Census of India Reports - http://www.censusindia.gov.in/
http://mww.marketingpower.com/Pages/default.aspx (American Marketing
Association)

5 | Journals IMB Management Review

Vikalpa
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Semester Specialization

Cousecose — La0r Ltpe | Gonerc~eci

Course Title Management Fundamentals

| Course Objectives:
1 To explain the various concepts of management
2 To make the students understand the contemporary management practices
3 To highlight professional challenges that managers face in various organization
4 To enable the students to appreciate the emerging ideas and practices in the field of management.

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions

1 Introduction to Principles of Management: 6+1

1.1 Basic Concepts: Definition of Management, Contribution of F.W.Taylor,
Henri Fayol, Elton Mayo, Mary Parker Follet, Rensis Likert, Chestard Bernard,
Douglas McGregor, Peter Drucker, Michael Porter and C.K. Prahlad

1.2 Approaches to Management: Scientific Approach, Systems Approach and
Contingency Approach.

1.3 Managerial Competencies: Communication, team work, planning and
administrative, strategic and global competencies;

2 2.1 Organization: Formal and Informal, Line and staff relationship, 6+1
Centralization Vs. Decentralization, ‘Basic issues in organizing, work
specialization, chain of common delegation, span of management, Organization
Structure - bases for departmentation.

2.2 Organizational Culture: Cultural Diversity, Multi Ethnic Workforce,
Organizing Knowledge resource.

3 3.1 Planning: Nature & elements of planning, planning types and models, 5+1
planning in learning erganizations; Types, Steps, MBO, MBE, Planning
Premises.

3.2 Decision Making:;Risk and Uncertainty, Decision Trees, Decision making
process, models of decision making, increasing participation in decision-
making, decision-making creativity.

4 441 Controlling: Process, Standards and Bench Marking - Co-ordination- 4+1
Principles of Co-ordination-Inter-dependence.
5 5.1 Challenges in Management: Change Management -Timing of Change- 4+1

Reaction to change-Planning organizational Change-Technological Change-
Effective use of Communication Devices and IT.
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| Learning Resources:

1

Text Books

Fundamentals of Management by Robbins, S.P. and Decenzo, D.A., Pearson
Education Asia, New Delhi.

Management by Koontz and Wechrich, TMGH

Management by Stoner, et. al., Prentice Hall of India, New Delhi.

Reference Books

Management by Hellregel, Thomson Learning, Bombay

Management by Robbins & Coulter, Prentice Hall of Hall of India, New Delhi.
Management - Text & Cases by Satya Raju, PHI, New Delhi.

Management by Richard L. Draft, Thomson South-Western

Supplementary
Reading Material

The Frontiers of Management by Peter Drucker, Harvard Business Review
Press.

The Definitive Drucker by Elizabeth Haas Edersheim, TMGH.

Technology, Management and Society by Peter Drucker, Harvard Business
Review Press.

The Drucker Lectures: Essential Lessons on Management, Society and
Economy Edited by Rick Wartzman, TMGH.

Websites

http://www.druckerinstitute.com/link/about-peter-drucker/

Journals

The Five Minds of a Manager by Gosling, Jonathan; Mintzberg, Henry. Harvard
Business Review, Nov2003, Vol. 81 Issue 11
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Semester Specialization

Cousecoe ——— Lioe Itpe | Geneic- Ecive

Course Title Business Communication Lab

| Course Objectives:

1 To acquaint the students with fundamentals of communication and help them to transform their
communication abilities.
2 To help the students to acquire some of the necessary skills to handle day-to-day managerial
responsibilities, such as - making speeches, controlling one-to-one communication, enriching group
activities and processes, giving effective presentations, writing letters, memos, minutes, reports
and advertising, and maintaining one’s poise in private and in public.
3 To build the students’ confidence and to enhance competitiveness by projecting a positive image of
themselves and of their future.

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 1.1 Introduction to Managerial Communication: Principles of effective 3+7

communication, Target group profile, Barriers of Communication, Reading
Skills, Listening, Feedback.

1.2 Principles of Nonverbal Communication: Professional dressing and body
language. Role Playing, Debates and Quiz. Types of managerial speeches -
Presentations and Extempore - speech of introduction, speech of thanks,
occasional speech, theme speech.

1.3 Group communication: Meetings, group discussions.

1.4 Other Aspects of Communication: Cross Cultural Dimensions of
Business Communication Technology and Communication, Ethical & Legal
Issues in Business Communication.

2 Managerial Writing: Business letters, Routine letters, Bad news and 2+5
persuasion letters, sales letters; collection letters, Maintaining a Diary,
Resume/CV , job application letters, proposals. Internal communication through
- notices, circulars, memos, agenda and minutes, reports. Case Studies.
Exercises on Corporate Writing, Executive Summary of Documents, Creative
Writing, Poster Making, Framing Advertisements, Slogans, Captions, Preparing
Press Release and Press Notes

3 Effective Presentations: Principles of Effective Presentations, Principles 1+1
governing the use of audiovisual media.
4 Interview Skills: Mastering the art of giving interviews in - selection or 2+3

placement interviews, discipline interviews, appraisal interviews, exit interviews,
web /video conferencing, tele-meeting.

5 Report Writing: Objectives of report, types of report, Report Planning, Types 2+4
of Reports, Developing an outline, Nature of Headings, Ordering of Points,
Logical Sequencing, Graphs, Charts, Executive Summary, List of Illustration,
Report Writing.

The emphasis of the entire subject should be on practical aspects.
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| Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Essentials of Business Communication by Rajendra Pal & J.S. Korlahalli, Sultan
Chand & Sons, 8th Edition
Business Communication by Meenakshi Raman & Prakash Singh, Oxford, 2006
Basic Business Communication Skills for Empowering the Internet Generation
by Lesikar, R.V. & Flatley, M.E., TMGH , New Delhi.
The Essence of Effective Communications by Ludlow, R. & Panton, F. ,
Prentice Hall of India Pvt. Ltd.

2 Reference Books | Communication by C. S. Rayadu, HPH, 8th Revised Edition, 2007
Business Correspondence & Report Writing by R. C. Sharma & Krishna Mohan,
Tata McGraw Hill, 4th Edition, 2011
Developing Communication Skills by Macmillan, 2nd Edition
Professional Presentations by Malcolm Goodale, Cambridge University Press,
South Asian Edition
Business Communcation - Urmila Rai
Business Communcation - Vishwanathan

3 | Supplementary Business Communication - Harvard Business Essentials Series, HBS Press

Reading Material | Effective Communication by Adair, J. , Pan Macmillan

Excellence in Business Communication by Thill, J. V. & Bovee, G. L , McGraw
Hill, New York.
Business Communications: From Process to Product by Bowman, J.P. &
Branchaw, P.P., Dryden Press, Chicago:

4 | Websites www.businesscommunicationskills.com
www.Kcitraining.com
www.mindtools.com
www.businesstrainingworks.com
www.businesscmmunication.org

5 | Journals Journal of Business:Communication
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Semester Specialization

Couse Cone —— Li05— Itype | Genetc - Eoive

Course Title MS Excel and Advanced Excel Lab

| Course Objectives:
1 To familiarize Students with basic to intermediate skills for using Excel in the classroom vis-a-vis
Business Applications
2 To provide students hands on experience on MS Excel Utilities
3 To gain proficiency in creating solutions for Data Management and Reporting

Syllabus:

‘ Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 1.1 Understanding Excel's Files, Ribbon and Shortcut:Create a workbook ,

Enter data in a worksheet , Format a worksheet , Format numbers in a
worksheet , Create an Excel table , Filter data by using.an AutoFilter , Sort data
by using an AutoFilter

1.2 Essential Worksheet Operations: Using Help (F1), Key Board Shertcuts 1

1.3 Working with Cells and Ranges: Formatting Cells, Name Manager 1
1.4 Visualizing Data Using Conditional Formatting:Apply conditional 1
formatting

1.5 Printing Your Work:Print a worksheet , Using/Print Preview & Other 1
Utilities

Lab based Evaluation 1

2 2.1 Working with Dates and Times & Text: Working with Dates & Time,

Creating Formulas that Manipulate Text, — Upper, Proper, Lower, Concatenate, 1

Text to column

2.2 Creating Formulas That Count, Sum, Subtotal:Create a formula, Use a
function in a formula

2.3 Creating Formulas That Look Up Values: VLookup, HLookup, Match & Index | 2

Lab based Evaluation 1
3 3.1 Creating Formulas'for Financial Applications: Introduction to formulas e.g.

PV, PMT, NPER, RATE, Creating Balance Sheet, Investment Calculations, 3

Depreciation calculations

3.2 Creating Charts and Graphics:Chart your data, Creating Sparkline 5

Graphics, Using Insert Tab Utilities

Lab based Evaluation 1
4 4.1 Using Custom Number Formats:Right click, Format Cells window 1

4.2 Using Data Tab and Data Validation:Getting external Data, Remove 1

Duplicates, Apply data validation & using utilities from Data Tab

4.3 Protecting Your Work: Using Review Tab Utilities 1

4.4 Performing Spreadsheet What-If Analysis:Create a macro, Activate and 5

use an add-in

Lab based Evaluation 1

5.1 Analyzing Data with the Analysis Tool Pak:Anova,Correlation,
Covariance, Descriptive Statistics, Histogram, Random Number Generation, 2
Rank and Percentile, Regression, t-Test, Z Test

5.2 Using Pivot Tables for Data Analysis:Create Data Base for Pivot,
Analysing Data with Pivot Tables, Producing Report with a Pivot Table
Lab based Evaluation 1
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| Learning Resources: |

1

Text Books

Excel 2010 Bible [With CDROM]by John Walkenbach, John Wiley & Sons, 2010
Edition

2

Reference
Books

Excel 2007 for Dummies by Greg Harvey
New Perspectives on Microsoft Office Excel 2007

3

Supplementa
ry Reading
Material

www.hrdiap.gov.in/Downloads/04.MS%?20Excel.pdf
www.stern.nyu.edu/~jsimonof/classes/1305/pdf/excelreg.pdf
www.goodwin.edu/computer_resources/pdfs/excel 2010 _tutorial.pdf
www.microagecs.com/apps/training/courseware/excel.pdf
www.Ifpl.org/jobshop/docs/Intermediate-Excel.pdf

Websites

http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/
http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/excel-help/excel-help-and-how-to-
FX102693827.aspx

http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/excel/
http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/excel-help/excel-functions-by-category-
HP005204211.aspx

http://www.baycongroup.com/el0.htm
http://spreadsheets.about.com/od/tipsandfaqs/flexcel_use.htm
http://www.computerhope.com/shortcut/excel.htm
http://www.techonthenet.com/excel/formulas/
http://www.functionx.com/excel/
http://people.usd.edu/~bwjames/tut/excel/
http://spreadsheets.about.com/od/excelfunctions/Using_Excel_Functions_in_Spreads
heets.htm

http://www.computergaga.com/excel/functions/

Journals

http://www.elijournals.com/products/showpreduct.asp?prodiD=24&catI|D=1
http://www.spyjournal.biz/views/excel
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Semester Specialization

Cousecoe 1110 Trpe | Geneic- Ecive

Course Title Selling and Negotiating SkillsLab

| Course Objectives:

1 To imbibe in the students , critical sales competencies that drive buying decisions.

2 To give insights into how to boost individual and organizational productivity through effective sales
lead management.
3 To introduce basic theoretical principles and practical steps in the negotiating process.

Syllabus:
‘ Unit Contents Number of

Number Sessions

1 Nature &Role of Selling :Importance ofSelling. Role in the context of 3+1
organization — survival and growth.

Types of Selling : Differences in selling situations, New business versus
service selling, Newton’s classification of sales types, McMurry & Arnold’s
classification of selling types, Consumer indirect selling, Industrial selling,
Missionary, Sales Team/group selling Merchandising, Telesales, Franchise
selling, International selling.

2 Attributes of a Good Salesperson : Personality & physical 4+1
characteristics,Enthusiasm, Confidence, Intelligence, Self-worth, Knowledge-
product , Competition, organization, market, customer, territory; Communication
skills, Persuasive skills. (To be supplemented by live-exercises on personal
selling)

3 Personal Selling Skills : The opening - Need & problem identification - The 7+1
presentation & demonstration:- Dealing with objections — Negotiations - Closing
the sale - Follow up (To be.supplemented.by live exercises on personal selling)
4 Negotiation Skills : Goal , Collaborative / Win —Win not compromise,Pyramid | 7 + 1
of success: Power, Time, and Information. Opponent : Visceral or Idea,
(To be supplemented by live exercises on personal selling)

5 Different Phases of Negotiation: Pre-negotiation — opening — information 4+1
sharing — problem solving —agreement. Breakdown in negotiation — barriers
that_create impasse — overcoming barriers — people problem — mediation —
arbitration = ethics.
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| Learning Resources:

1

Text Books

Selling & Sales Management by Geoffrey Lancaster & David Jobber, Macmillan
India Ltd.

Negotiation: Communication for diverse settings by Michael L Spangle and
Myra Isenhart, Sage South Asia Edition.

The Sales Bible: The Ultimate Sales Resource by Jeffrey Gitomer, Wiley India.

Reference Books

Sales Management by Bill Donaldson, Palgrave Publications

You can negotiate anything by Herb Cohen

Managing Sales Leads by Crocker and Obermayer, American Marketing
Association

Supplementary
Reading Material

How to win friends and influence People — Dale Carnegie
The Art of Closing the Sale by Brian Tracy, Pearson Education,

Websites

www.professionalsalestips.com
www.eyeonsales.com
www.semi.org
www.salescareersonline.com

Journals

Journal of Personal Selling & Sales Management
Sales and Marketing by Nielsen Business Media
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Semester Specialization

Cousecoe —— Luir— Irpe | Geneic- Ecive

Course Title Business Government and Society

| Course Objectives:
1 To provide insights to the students about the Business — Government relations
2 To help students understand the Government's role in the regulatory domain.
3 To assist students in appreciating the social aspects of business.

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Roles of Business, Government, and Society: Interdependence and S5+1

Conflict, Regulation of Business, Functions of State; Economic roles of
government; Government and legal environment; Economic roles of
Government in India; Indian experience with overall and sectoral growth, Inter-
sectoral linkages and role of foreign direct investment;The Constitutional
environment , Macroeconomic crises: explaining:the experiences around the
world.
2 Poverty, Inequality and Economic Growth: Industrial Development, Rural- 5+1

Urban Dynamics, Population and Development, Finance for Development,
Trade and Development, State and the Market, Privatization and Regulation,
Institutions and Growth

3 Public Private Partnerships: The Rationale for Public Private Partnerships, 5+1
Different Kinds of Public Private Partnerships with a special emphasis on the
Build Operate and Transfer Model (BOT), Issues in Regulation that come about
with privatization, Pricing mechanisms available to a regulator to ensure
universal access and efficiency, Discussion of the privatization experience in
different sectors, water, electricity, telecommunication, and railways with a
special emphasis on India.

4 Multinational Corporations: Perspectives on Globalization, Globalization: The | 5+ 1
MNC and TNC Organizations, Globalization of Brands, Globalization of the
Indian Business and Eirms, Coping with Global Competition, Conflict with
Nation States.,

Business in a Global Environment: Business as Blending of People
Technology,and Ethical-Behaviour, Achieving Business Success through Social
Responsibilities.

5 Changing Workplace: Influence of demography, influence of technology, 5+1
gender issues, social justice and affirmative action, Industrial Relations.
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| Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Business, Government and Society: A Managerial Perspective byJohn Steiner,
George Steiner, Tata McGraw Hill
Business, Government, and Society by Douglas E. Greer, Prentice Hall , 3"
Edition
2 Reference Books | Business and Its Environment by David P., International Edition, 7" Edition
3 | Supplementary Milton Friedman “The Social Responsibility of Business is to Increase its
Reading Material | Profits”, New York Times Magazine, September 13, 1970.
Economic Times Daily
Business Standard Daily
4 | Websites WWW.epw.in
www.business.gov.in
5 | Journals Economic and Political Weekly

Corporate Governance
Academy of Management Journal
Harvard Business Review
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Semester I Specialization ‘ NA

Course Title Leadership Lab

| Course Objectives:

1 To give students understanding of good Leadership Behaviours and gaining insight into their
Patterns, Beliefs and Attitude
2 To give students hands on experience in Empowering, Motivating and Inspiring Others and Leading
by Example

Syllabus:
Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Students are divided in group of 5 students each. Students identify, 12 Leaders. | 6
at different levels from industry, contact them in person, prepare their.profiles
by interviews and observations and present it to the class
2 With the help of games and activities bring out observations on Leadership 20
gualities and traits.
The games and activities shall focus on students;
Developing leadership skills
Raising awareness of group and people skills
Developing empowering style of leadership
Compile reflections of the students on Leadership qualities such as ;
Enthusiasm, Integrity, Toughness, Fairness, Warmth, Humility,
Confidence&Fostering Collaboration, Managing Conflict, Using Diversity,
Risking Innovation etc.
3 Write reviews on articles / books written by or on leaders from various fields 5
and debate and discuss the same in the class (Bring out the leadership traits,
styles and strengths) e.g.
Mahatma Gandhi, APJ Abdul Kalam, Jack Welch, Steve Jobs, JRD Tata, Ratan
Tata, Baba Amte, etc,
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| Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books

Leadership Development Activities, John Adair, 2" Edition Jaico Publication
Leadership Games, Stephen S Kogan, Response Books

2 | Reference
Books

Mastering Leadership, 2™ Edition, Michael Williams, Viva Books

Positive Leadership, Mike Pegg, Management Books 2000

Cases in Leadership, W Glenn Rowe, Sage Publications

Introducing Leadership, David Pardey, Butterworth-Heinemann

Leading Change, John P Kotter, HBP

Leadership Research Findings, Practice & Skills, Andrew J DuBrin, BlZTantra
Leadership Project & Human Capital Management, John McManus, Butterworth-
Heinemann

Innovative Leader, Paul Sloane, Kogan Page

Leadership Coaching, Edited By Jonathan Passmore, Kogan Page

EQ & Leadership, P T Joseph,SJ TMG

Making Sense of Leadership, Esther Cameron & Mike Green, Kogan Page

Case Studies on Leadership, Edited By Menaka Rao & Sanghamitra Bhattacharya,
ICFAI Books

3 | Supplementa
ry Reading
Material

The New Leaders, Daniel Goleman, Sphere Publications

The DNA of Leadership, Judith E Glaser, Platinum Press

The New Art of the Leader, William A Cohen, Viva Books

Strategic Leadership, John Adair, Kogan Page

Authentic Leadership, Warren Bennis, Wiley India Pvt. Ltd:

Leadership in the Era of Economic Uncertainty, Ram Charan, TMGH

21Leaders for the 21* Century, Fons Trompenaars & Charles Hampden — Turner,
TMGH

4 | Websites

http://www.nsba.org/sbot/toolkit/LeadQual.html
http://psychology.about.com/od/leadership/a/leadstyles.htm
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Leadership_styles
http://psychology.about.com/od/leadership/p/leadtheories.htm
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Leadership
http://www.inspirational-quotes.info/leadership.html
http://www.savingfreak.com/funny-leadership-quotes/
http://wiki.answers.com/Q/M/hat_are_the_biggest_problems_facing_the_world_in_21s
t_century
http://smallbusiness.chron.com/leadership-problems-business-2977.html
http://mww.jimclemmer.com/management-vs.-leadership.php
http://mww.management-issues.com/2006/5/25/opinion/the-difference-between-
management-leadership.asp

http://www:businessballs.com/leadership.htm

5 | Journals

www.ppc.sas.upenn.edu/leadershipreadingsschachar.pdf
www.oxfordleadership.com/journal/voll_issue2/brown_hurley.pdf
www.ccl.org/leadership/pdf/research/cclLeadershipDevelopment.pdf
www.innovation.cc/scholarly-style/fairholm3.pdf
www.fhsu.edu/jole/issues/JOLE_3_3.pdf
www.valuesbasedleadershipjournal.com/assets/docs/Volllssue2.pdf
www.leadershipeducators.org/.../JOLE_10_1 Winter_2011.pdf
www.leadershipeducators.org/Resources/Documents/.../JOLE_9_1.pdf
www.eastwestcenter.org/download/3492/.../transformations00103. pdf
www.regent.edu/jsl
www.alliedacademies.org/public/journals/journaldetails.aspx?jid=5
http://jlo.sagepub.com/content/by/year
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Semester Specialization

Cousecoe —— Lu13 Irpe | Geneic- Ecive

Course Title Personality Development Lab

| Course Objectives:

1 To develop an orientation towards business etiquettes and the proper etiquette practices for
different business scenarios.
2 To learn the etiquette requirements for meetings, entertaining, telephone, and Internet business
interaction scenarios.
3 To minimize nervousness while in social situations.

Syllabus:
Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions

1 Personality: Physical Appearance; Body Language; Voice; Communication 5+1

Style; Content of Communication; Enriched Communication:Through Sensory.
Specific Language.

Business Style and Professional Image: Dress Codes, Guidelines for
Appropriate Business Attire - Differentiate among the dressy casual, semi-
formal, formal and black tie dress code, Grooming for Success, Multi-cultural
Dressing.

2 Impression Management: Impression Formation, Tactics, The Self- 5+1
presentational Motive, The Compass Qualities; First and Lasting Impressions;
Magic Pills; Toxic Traits , The Social Context: Norms and Roles , The Target’s
Values, Actions; The Environment; Success; Changing from the Outside-in ,
Current Social Image , Instrtumental Complementarity , The Private Self ,
Worrying about Impressions. Creating Rapport, Powerful Persuasion
Strategies.

3 Assertiveness Training: Concept of Assertiveness, Components of Assertive |5+ 1
behavior, Rational-emotive Assertiveness Training, Handling Fear, Handling
Anger, Handling Depression, Assertive Behaviour Skills, How to Handle Put-
downs, Assertiveness.on the Job, Assertiveness in Interpersonal Relations,
Assertiveness in Everyday Commercial Situations, Assertiveness and Others.

Interpersonal Relations : Introduction to Interpersonal Relations, Analysis
Relations.of different ego states, Analysis of Transactions, Analysis of Strokes,
Analysis of Life position

4 Business Etiguette: The ABC'’s of Etiquette, Developing a Culture of 5+1
Excellence, . The Principles of Exceptional Work Behavior, The Role of Good
Manners in Business, Enduring Words

Making Introductions and Greeting People: Greeting Components, The
Protocol of Shaking Hands, Introductions, Introductory Scenarios, Addressing
Individuals

Meeting and Board Room Protocol: Guidelines for Planning a Meeting,
Before the Meeting, On the Day of the Meeting, Guidelines for Attending a
Meeting - For the Chairperson, For Attendees, For Presenters

Multi-cultural Etiquette: Examples of Cultural Insensitivity, Cultural
Differences and their Effects on Business Etiquette
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Conflict Management: Introduction to Conflict, Causes of Conflict,
Management Managing Conflict

Time Management: Time as a Resource, Identify Important Time Management
Wasters, Individual Time Management Styles, Techniques for better Time
Management.

5 Stress Management: Introduction to Stress, Causes of Stress, Impact 5+1
Management Stress, Managing Stress

The entire course must be taught using a hands-on approach.

| Learning Resources:
1 | Text Books

Business Etiquette in Brief by Ann Marie Sabath, Adams Media 'Corporation,
South Asian Edition

Basic Managerial Skills for All by E. H. McGrath, S. J., PHI

Personality Development and Soft Skill, Mitra, Barun, Oxford -University Press.

2 Reference Books

Business Etiquette by David Robinson, Kogan Page
Develop your Assertiveness by Sue Bishop, Kogan Page

3 | Supplementary
Reading Material

How to deal with Stress by Stephen Palmer & Cary Cooper, Kogan Page India
Pvt. Ltd., South Asian Edition

Successful Time Management by Patrick Forsyth, Kogan Page

How to manage meetings by Alan Barker, Kogan Page

4 Websites

www.mindtools.com

www.e-learningcenter.com
www.stevepavlina,.com
www.personalitydevelopment-leidenuniversity.in

5 Journals

Leadership Excellence
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Semester Specialization

Cousecoe —— Li1e Irpe | Geneic- Ecive

Course Title Foreign Language — | Lab

| Course Objectives:

1 To provide the student with a Foreign Language Skill to manage basic oral and written
communication.
2 To build a basic vocabulary in the selected Foreign Language.

Syllabus:

‘ Unit Contents Number of ‘
Number Sessions
1 Salutations: 2+4

1. To greet the people and say Good afternoon, Good Evening, Goodbye, ask
name and say your name, seek clarification and help, numbers from 1 to 10
2. To say where you live. Describe your house and members of your family.
Weights and Measures, length & breadth, use of decimal system, area and
volume. Cardinal numbers & Ordinal Numbers.

3. Ask and give personal information, Nationality, profession and language,
Numbers from 11 to 50. To ask time by clock and'by span, days of the week,
months of the year.

2 Conversation Skills: 2+4
1. To ask and express interests, Preferences; likes and dislikes; to invite, to
accept the invitation or to politely decline the invitation; hobbies and how to
spend your leisure.

2. To talk about the weather; to talk‘about the daily personal routine and related
activities. Seasons & holidays in France/Germany/Japan. Introduction to letter
writing and email writing.

3. To talk about clothing - size, colour, material. Purchase at a super market,
modes of payment. To name and explain human body to express common
bodily ailments (fever, headache etc.)

3 Geographical Description: 2+4
1.Country, location on the world‘map, borders and neighboring countries, ports
and industrial towns.

2. Information and clarification of places. Asking for directions to the public
places. Modes of Transport. Numbers 51 to 100 and 1000, 10,00,000 etc.

4 Business: 2+4
1. Visit to a restaurant, to express agreement/disagreement; to ask for
price/quantity

2. To ask about personal past events, to narrate personal experience, to
comprehend difference between letters like Personal/Business Letters,
telegram & e- mail; formats of Letter head and e mail.

3. To talk about/express future actions, to plan a business trip with related
reguirements: hotel, tickets, car, Rent a car, places to visit, traffic signs etc.
Documents required like Passport, International Driving license, Insurance
cover etc.

4. Vocabulary relating to the Transactions at the Post office, Bank, Insurance
Company — personal, health, accident, marine... equivalent terms of
transaction — FOB, C.I.F, F.A.S, payment through Letter of credit.

5 Practical Assignments on Unit | to IV. 6
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' Note:

Institute may offer any one of the following foreign languages to the students: SPANISH / FRENCH/
GERMAN/ JAPANESE / CHINESE
The emphasis of the course shall be on practical aspects.

| Learning Resources:

1 Text Books

2 Reference Books

3 | Supplementary
Reading Material

4 Websites

5 Journals

Relevant Standard Text Books, Videos, Audio CDs for the language offered to

the students.
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Semester Specialization

Cousecoe —— Lu15 Irpe | Geneic- Ecive

Course Title Enterprise Analysis - Desk Research

| Course Objectives:

1 To acquaint students with basic aspects of an Enterprise.
2 To guide the students in analyzing an Enterprise w.r.t a set of basic parameters.
3 To help the students assimilate basic jargon and its meaning w.r.t. Enterprise Analysis.
Syllabus:
Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Enterprise History & Background: Establishment, Original & Current 2+4

Promoters, Business Group or Business Family to which it belongs, Vision-
Mission-Philosophy -Values, Name of the Chairman, CEO, MD, Members of
Board of Directors, CSR Initiatives, Technical and other collaborations if.any,
Recent Mergers and Acquisitions, if any.

2 Organization : Organization Structure, Geographical (domestic and global) 2+4
foot print — at the time of inception and spread over the years, company’s
current head quarter worldwide as well as head quarter / corporate office in
India, Manufacturing /Service locations Indian and major worldwide,
Certifications if any - ISO / EMS / FDA / CMMI , etc.

3 Markets: Major Customers, customer segments,Products, Product lines, Major | 2 + 4
Brands, Market Share — nationally, region wise, product wise, Advertising
Agency, Advertising Punch Line/Slogan, Logo,

4 Financials: Data to be studied, tabulated, graphically depicted, analyzed and 2+4
presented for last 5 years for the Revenues, Profitability, Market Capitalization,
Segmented Revenues, Auditors.

Listing status & Scrip Codes.— BSE and NSE, Global Listings on International
Stock Markets, Share Price Face Value, Current Market Value, Annual High
Low Figures, P/E Ratio, Shareholding Pattern.

5 Governance: Philosophy, Action taken by SEBI if any, Involvement in Scams, 6
Insider Trading Issues, Standard & Poor’s Corporate Governance Scores,
CRISIL Rating. Awards won if any.

' Note:
Students should work in groups.of 3 to 5 each under the guidance of a faculty.Students shall study
various aspects of any TWO corporate entities (companies) of their choice.Focus shall be on analyzing
the information:collected and gaining insights.Students shall submit a structured detailed report.

The evaluation-shall:-be made by a panel of two examiners. One of the examiners shall be the Internal
Faculty. The other examiner may be an external faculty or a person from the relevant industry. The
evaluation shall be based on the following criteria:

Report — 20 Marks , Presentation — 15 Marks, Question & Answer — 15 Marks

| Learning Resources:
1 | Text Books Students shall use secondary data sources such as —
2 Reference Books | Annual Reports,
3 | Supplementary Corporate Websites,

Reading Material | Stock Market Websites,

4 | Websites Business Newspapers, etc.
5 | Journals to collect maximum information — facts and figures about the enterprise and its
functioning
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SEINESER

Specialization

Cousecoe — Lao Tpe o coe

Course Title

Marketing Management

| Course Objectives:
1 To introduce the concept of Marketing Mix as a framework for Marketing Decision making.

2 To emphasize the need, importance and process of Marketing Planning and Control.

3 To sensitize the students to the dynamic nature of Marketing Function.

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 New Product Development & Product Life Cycle: 7+2

1.1 New Product Development :Need for new product development, Booz
Allen &Hamilton Classification Scheme for New Products

1.2 New Product Development Process: Idea Generation:to
commercialization.

1.3 Branding: Introduction to Branding, Product:Vs. Brand, Meaning of @
brand, brand equity & brand elements.

1.4 Packaging & Labeling: Meaning & role of Packaging & Labeling, Primary,
Secondary & Shipment packages

1.5 Product Life Cycle: Concept & characteristics of Product Life Cycle,
Relevance of PLC, Types of PLC and Strategies across stages of the PLC.

2 Price: 6+2
2.1Pricing Basics: Meaning, Importance and Factors influencing pricing
decisions
2.2Setting the Price: Setting pricing objectives, Determining demand,

Estimating costs, Analyzing competitors’ pricing, Selecting pricing method,
Selecting final price.

2.3Adapting the Price: Geographical pricing, Price discounts & allowances,
Promotional pricing, Differentiated pricing,

2.4Price Change: Initiating & responding to price changes.

3 Place: 6+2
3.1 The Role of'Marketing Channels: Channel functions & flows, channel
levels.

3.2 Channel Design Decisions: Analyzing customers’ desired service output
levels, establishing objectives &constraints, Identifying & evaluating major
channel alternatives

3:3 Channel'Options: Introduction to Wholesaling, Retailing, Franchising,
Direct marketing , E- Commerce Marketing Practices

3.4 Market Logistics Decisions: Order processing, Warehousing, Inventory,
and Transportation.

4 Promotion: 10+ 2
4.1introduction: The role of marketing communications in marketing effort.
4.2Communication Mix Elements: Introduction to Advertising, Sales
Promotion, Personal Selling, Public Relations, Direct Marketing. Concept of
Integrated Marketing Communications (IMC)
4.3Developing Effective Communication: Identifying target audience,
determining communication objectives, designing the communications,
selecting communication channels
4.4Deciding Marketing Communications Mix: Factors in setting marketing
communication mix, measuring communication results
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5 Marketing Planning & Control: 6+2
5.1Product Level Planning: Preparation & evaluation of a product level
marketing plan, Nature & contents of Marketing Plans- Executive Summary,
Situation Analysis, Marketing Strategy, Financials, Control.

5.2 Marketing Evaluation & Control: Concept, Process & types of control -
Annual Plan Control, Profitability Control, Efficiency Control, Strategic Control,
Marketing audit

Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Marketing Management by Philip Kotler, Kevin Lane Keller, Abraham Koshy,
Mithileshwar Jha, Pearson , 13"Edition

Marketing Management by Rajan Saxena, TMGH, 4" Edition

2 Reference Books | Principles of Marketing by Philip Kotler, Gary Armstrong, Prafulla. Agnihotri,
Ehasan Haque, Pearson, 13™Edition

Marketing Management- Text and Cases, Tapan K Panda, 2" Edition, Excel
Books

Marketing Management by Ramaswamy & Namakumari, Macmillan, 4" Edition.
3 | Supplementary Marketing Whitebook (Latest Edition)

Reading Material | Brand Equity Supplement of The Economic Times

Brand Wagon Supplement of The Financial Express

Strategist Supplement of Business Standard

Legends in Marketing by Jagdish N."Sheth

4 | Websites NCAER - http://www.ncaer.org/

2011 Census of India Reports - http://www.censusindia.gov.in/

ASCI - www.ascionline.org/
http://mww.marketingpower.com/Pages/default.aspx (American Marketing
Association)

5 | Journals IMB Management Review

Vikalpa
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Semester Specialization

Cousecore —— laz  lpe L Geneic-Core

Course Title Financial Management

| Course Objectives:
1 To understand various concepts related to financial management
2 To study in detail, various tools and techniques in the area of finance
3 To develop the analytical skills which would facilitate the decision making in Business situations

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Environment of Business Finance: Introduction, Definition of Financial 3+2

Management, Goals of Financial Management, Modern approaches to
Financial Management, Finance and other related disciplines, Functions of
finance manager, Key strategies of financial management.

2 Techniques of Financial Analysis: Meaning, Nature, Objectives and 8+2
limitations of financial analysis. Tools of analysis:and interpretation,, fund flow
statement analysis ( Working capital basis) Cash flow statement analysis —
(Cash basis) Ratio analysis (Interpretations of ratios only)

3 Capital Budgeting: Meaning, Definition and types of evaluating the projecton | 8+2
the basis of payback period, NPV, IRR, Pl, ARR
4 Working Capital Management: Nature and Scope, Components of working 8+2

capital, operating cycle, types of working capital, determination of working
capital, Assessment of working capital requirement, Working Capital Financing.
5 Capital Structure and Firm Valuation: Meaning, Factors affecting the capital 8+2
structure, Concept and measurement in cost of capital, measurement of
specific costs: WACC. Assumptions of capital structure theories, NI, NOI and
MM Approach.

Numerical problems will be asked on the following topics only —

Simple problem on Fund flow statement, Ratio analysis (Interpretations of ratios only)
Capital budgeting: Payback period, NPV, IRR, PI, ARR

Estimation of Working Capital, Cost of Capital: WACC

The weightage of theory,guestionswill be 40% and numerical problems 60%
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| Learning Resources:

1

Text Books

Financial Management by Khan & Jain (TATA McGraw Hill)
Contemporary Financial Management by Rajesh Kothari (Macmillan
Publication)

Financial Management by |. M. Pandey (Vikas Publication)

Corporate Finance, Theory and Practice, Aswath Damodaran (Wiley
Publication)

Financial Management Principle and Practices by S. Sudarsana Reddy
(Himalaya Publication)

Fundamentals of Financial Management by Sheeba Kapil (Pearson
Publications)

Reference Books

Financial Management by Jonathan Berk, Peter DeMarzo and Ashok.Thampy
(Pearson Publication)

Financial Management: Theory & Practice by Brigham

Financial Management: Principles & Practice by Lasher

Financial Management by Sudarshan Reddy

Supplementary
Reading Material

Fundamentals of Financial Management by Brigham and Houston (Cengage
Learning)

Websites

NSE,
BSE

Journals

Indian Journal of Finance
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Semester Specialization ‘ NA

Cousecoe — las Ttpe L Gorero-coe |

Course Title Human Resource Management

| Course Objectives:
1 To understand the role of HRM in an organization
2 To learn to gain competitive advantage through people
3 To learn to study and design HRM system

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Framework of Human Resource Management: 2+2

Introduction to HRM and framework - Nature of HRM, Scope of HRM; HRM;
Functions and Objectives, HRM: Policies and practices

HRM and SHRM - Nature of SHRM, The strategic functions.of HRM
understood and implemented in the company, Global competitiveness and
Strategic HR, Linkage of organizational and HR strategies

Models of SHRM - The Integrated system model, Devanna et. al - strategic
human resource management “matching model”

2 HR Procurement: 7+2
Job Analysis and Design - Job Analysis: introduction, Importance of job
analysis, purpose of job analysis, benefits of job analysis, competency based
job analysis, Job Design: Writing job description;,introduction, and factors
affecting job design. Job characteristics model (Hackman and Oldham, 1976) of
effective job and job satisfaction.

Human Resource Planning - The need of man power planning , What is
Human Resource Planning, Definition, objectives, importance, benefits, the
process of Human resource.planning, Preparing manpower inventory.( supply
Forecasting)

Recruitment - Strategic approach to recruitment, Labour markets and
recruitment, Geographic labour markets, Global labour markets, Industry and
occupational labeur markets, Educational and technical labour markets,
Unemployment rate and labour markets, Recruiting and diversity
considerations, Employment advertising, Recruiting Diverse workers, Recruiting
Source choices: internalvs. external - Internal: Organizational Database, Job
postings, Promotions and Transfers, Current Employee Reference and Re-
recruiting of former employees and applicants, External: College and University
recruiting, school recruiting, Labour Unions, Employment agencies and
headhunters, competitive sources, media sources, E-Recruiting methods -
Internet job boards, Professional / career websites, Employer websites
Selection - Introduction to selection process, Selection procedure,

3 Training and Development - Employee Training and Development 7+2
Nature of training, Training process, Training needs assessment,

Training evaluation, Training design, Implementing Training programs(Training
methods), Implementing management development programs

4 Employee Appraisal & Compensation - Performance- Definition, Why to 11+2
measure performance, Use of performance data, measurement process,
Performance feedback, Compensation- concept, Traditional approach, current
trends in compensation, Linking compensation with performance- Advantages
& Problems, Team based Incentives
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Managing Employee Relations - Concept, Importance, Organizational Entry,
employee Status, Flexible Work arrangement, Employee Surveys, Handbooks,
Violations of Policy/ Discipline, Organizational Exit, Termination, Resignation,

8+2

downsizing, Lay off Retirement

| Learning Resources:

1

Text Books

Personnel/ Human Resource Management by David DeCenzo, Stephen
Robbins, Prentice Hall of India,2008, 3 Edition

Human Resource Management by J. John Bernardin, Tata McGraw Hill
Publishing, 4™Edition

Reference Books

Human Resource Management, A case study approach, Muller. Camen,
Croucher Leigh, Jaico Publishing House

HRM Ethics &Employment Ashly Pinnnington, Rob Macklin, Tom Campbell, 2"
Edition

Human Resources Management by Gary Dessler

Managing Human Resources by R.S. Dwiwedi

Human Resources Management by V.P.Michael

Human Resources Management by Mirza& Zaiyadin

Human Resources Management by.L.M.Prasad

Human Resources Management by Ashwathappa

Managing Human Resources by Arun Monappa

Human Resource Management by Sharma

Personnel Management by Mamoria

Supplementary
Reading Material

Case studies in Human Asset Management, Vol. | by Doris John, ICFAI Books,
1% Edition

HRM in Organizations by Izabela Robinson, Jaico Publishing House, 1% Edition
Armstrong’s Essential Human Resource Management Practice- A guide to
people management by Michael Armstrong, Koganpage, 1% Edition

Applied Psychology in HRM by Cascio & Aguins, PHI, 6" Edition.

Websites

www.shrmindia.org
www.peoplematters.com
www.hrmguide:net

Journals

International Journal of Human Resource Management
Human-Resource Management Journal

Human Resource Management

Journal of Human Values

Journal of Human Resources
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Semester Specialization

Cousecoe Lo lpe o oaeicoe

Course Title Decision Science

| Course Objectives: |
1 To understand role of quantitative techniques in managerial decision making.
2 To understand process of decision problem formulation.
3 To understand applications of various quantitative techniqgues in managerial settings.

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Introduction: Decision Sciences & Role of quantitative techniques 9+2

Linear Programming: Concept, Formulation & Graphical Solution
Assignment Models: Concept, Flood’s Technique/ Hungarian Method,
applications including restricted & multiple assignments

Transportation Models: Concept, Formulation, Problem types: Balanced,
unbalanced, Minimization, Maximization Basic initial solution using North West
Corner, Least Cost & VAM, Optimal Solution using MODI

2 Queuing Theory: Concept, Single Server ( M/M/I', Infinite, FIFO) and Multi 8+2
Server (M/M/C , Infinite, FIFO)

Markov Chains & Simulation Techniques: Markov chains: Applications
related to management functional areas, Implications of Steady state
Probabilities, Decision making based on.the inferences. Monte Carlo
Simulation, scope and limitations.

3 Decision Theory: Concept, Decision.under, risk (EMV)& uncertainty 6+2
Game Theory: Concept,2‘by 2 zero sum game with dominance, Pure & Mixed
Strategy

4 CPM & PERT: Concept, Drawing.network; identifying critical path 6+2

Network Calculations:Calculating EST, LST, EFT, LFT, Slack & probability of
project completion

5 5.1 Probability: Concept, Addition, Conditional Probability theorem based 6+2
decision making; (Numerical based on functional areas of business expected).
5.2 Probability Distributions: Normal, Binomial. Interval estimation, standard
errors of estimation.
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| Learning Resources:
1 | Text Books

Quantitative Techniques in Management by N.D. Vohra Tata, McGraw Hill
Publications, 4™ Edition

Quantitative Approaches to Management by Levin, Rubin, Stinson & Gardner
Operations Research Theory & Applications by J K Sharma- MacMillan
Publishers India Ltd., 4" Edition

2 Reference Books

Introduction to Operations Research by Billey E. Gilett, TMGH

Operations Research by Nita Shah, Ravi Gor, Hardik Soni, PHI

Managerial Decisions Modeling with Spreadsheets by Bal Krishnan, Render,
Stair, Jr., Pearson Education.

Operations Research by R. Pannerselvam, Prentice Hall India, 2" Edition.

3 | Supplementary
Reading Material

Operations Research by Hamdy A. Taha, Pearson Publication

4 Websites

WWW.OrSi.in

5 Journals

International Journal of Operations and Quantitative Management
International Journals of Operations Research and Management Science
Journal of Operation Management Research

Indian Journal of Advanced Operations Management
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Semester Specialization

Cousecoe — las  Tpe o oeei-coe

Course Title Operations and Supply Chain Management

| Course Objectives: |
1 To develop an understanding of the strategic importance of Operations & SCM and how it can

provide a competitive advantage in the marketplace

2 To understand the relationship between Operations & SCM and other business functions, such as

Marketing, Finance, Accounting, and Human Resources.

3 To develop knowledge of the issues related to designing and managing Operations.& SCM and the

techniques to do so.

Syllabus:
Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 1.1 Introduction to Operations and Supply Chain Management: Definition, 5+2
Concept, Significance and Functions of Operations and SCM. Evolution frem
manufacturing to operations management , Physical distribution to Logistics to
SCM, Physical Goods and Services Perspectives

1.2 Quality: Definitions from various Perspectives, Customers view and
Manufacturer's view, Concept of Internal Customer; Overview of TQM and
LEAN Management, Impact of Global Competition, Technelogical Change,
Ethical and Environmental Issues on Operations . and Supply Chain functions.
2 Operations Processes 7+2

2.1 Process Characteristics in Operations: Volume Variety and Flow. Types
of Processes and Operations Systems - Continuous Flow system and
intermittent flow systems

2.2 Process Product Matrix: Job Production, Batch Production, Assembly
line and Continuous Flow, Process and Product Layout

2.3 Service System Design Matrix :Design of Service Systems, Service
Blueprinting
3 3.1 Produgction Planning & Control (PPC): Role and Functions 8+2

3.2.Demand Forecasting: Forecasting as a Planning Tool, Forecasting Time
Horizon, Sources of Data for forecasting, Accuracy of Forecast, Capacity
Planning

3.3 Production Planning: Aggregate production Planning, Alternatives for
Managing Demand and Supply, Master Production Schedule, Capacity
Planning - Overview of MRP, CRP, DRP , MRP II

3.4 Production Control: Scheduling, Loading, Scheduling of Job Shops and
Floor Shops, Gantt Charts
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4.1 Inventory Planning and Control: Continuous and Intermittent demand
System, concept of inventory, need for inventory, types of inventory - seasonal,
decoupling, cyclic, pipeline, safety - Implications for Inventory Control Methods.

8+2

4.2 Inventory Costs: Concept and behavior of ordering cost, carrying cost,
shortage cost.

4.3 EOQ: Basic EOQ Model - EOQ with discounts

4.4 Inventory control: Classification of material - ABC Analysis -VED, HML,
FSN, GOLF, SOS.

(Numericals expected on Basic EOQ, EOQ with discounts & ABC), Inventory
turns ratios, Fixed Order quantity Model - Periodic Review and Re-order Point

Pricing

5.2 Customer Service: Supply Chain Management and customer service
linkages, Availability service reliability perfect order, customer satisfaction
Enablers of SCM - Facilities, Inventory, Transportation, Information, sourcing,

5.1 Supply Chain Management: Generalized Supply Chain Management 7+2
Model - Key Issues in SCM — Collaboration, Enterprise Extension,
responsiveness, Cash to Cash Conversion,

| Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Operations Management Theory & Practice by B.Mahadevan , Pearson, 2"
Edition.
Operations Now - Supply Chain Profitability & Performance by Byron J. Finch,
McGraw Hill, 3" Edition.
Production and Operations Management by R B Khanna, PHI, New Delhi, 2011
Edition.

2 Reference Books | Supply Chain Logistics Management by Donald Bowersox, David Closs, M
Bixby Cooper, Tata-McGraw Hill, 2" Edition.
Operations Management by William J. Stevenson, TMGH, 9" Edition.
Operations Management by Lee Krajewski, Larry Ritzman, Manoj Malhotra,
Pearson Education, 8" Edition.
Introduction to Materials Management , J.R. Tony Arnold, Stephen Chapman,
Ramaktishnan, Pearson, 5" Edition.
Supply Chain Management - Strategy, Planning & Operation by Sunil Chopra,
Peter Meindl, D. V. Kalra, Pearson Education.
Production & Operations Management by S N Chary, McGraw Hill, 7" Edition

3 | Supplementary Contemporary Logistics by Paul Murphy, Donald Wood, PHI, 9" Edition

Reading ,Material | The Goal by Eliyahu Goldratt

4 | Websites www.apics.org
www.supplychainmanagement.in

5 | Journals International Journal of Operations and Quantitative Management

Udyog Pragati
International Journals of Logistics and Supply Chain Management
International Journal of Logistics and Planning Supply Chain Management
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Semester Specialization

Cousecoe —— Las lpe o oei-coe

Course Title Management Information Systems

| Course Objectives: |
1 To develop conceptual understanding about latest developments in the field of Information

Technology and the impact of I.T. in managing a business

2 To learn to use Information Technology to gain competitive advantage in business

3 To learn from, with a view to emulate, entrepreneurial ventures in e-Commerce and m-Commerce

Syllabus:

‘ Unit Contents Number of ‘
Number Sessions

1 7+2

Management Information Systems: Need, Purpose and Objectives - Data,
Information, Knowledge — Types of Information Systems - Information as a
strategic resource - Use of information for competitive advantage

Information Technology Infrastructure: Information Systems Architecture —
Mainframe, Client Server, Web Based, Distributed, Grid, Cloud - Overview of
Hardware, Software, Storage and Networking Devices — Networks Types -
Topologies of Networks

2 2.1 Data Base Management Systems: Concept = Relational Model 7+2
Applications — DBMS Architecture

2.2Systems Engineering Analysis and Design: Systems Concept - Systems
Development Life Cycle - Assessing Enterprise Information requirements —
Alternative System Building-Approaches = Prototyping - Rapid Development
Tools — CASE Tools — Object.Oriented Systems (Only introduction to these
tools & techniques)

3 3.1 Decision Support Systems: Data Warehousing and Data Mining - 7+2
Business Intelligence and Analytics - Group Decision Support Systems —
Executive Information Systems - Executive Support Systems — Geographical
Information Systems - Expert Systems and Knowledge Based Expert Systems
— Artificial Intelligence

4 4.1Digital firm Perspective: MIS Model for a digital firm — Organization 7+2
Structurefor digital firm:= e-Business Models and Applications — Mobile
computing, Call.Centers, BPO

4:2Management Issues in MIS: Information Security and Control - Quality
Assurance =Ethical and Social Dimensions - Intellectual Property Rights as
related:to IT Services / IT Products

5 5.1 Applieations of MIS in functional areas as well as in the service sector 7+2
should be covered with the help of minimum 5 case studies.

' Note: |
Emphasis should be given on management oriented problems and cases as compared totechnical
orientation expected from computer science/ computer management students.
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| Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Management Information Systems by Obrien, Marakas and Ramesh Behl,
TMGH
Management Information Systems by Jawadekar, TMGH, 4" Edition
2 Reference Books | Management Information Systems by Jaiswal and Mittal, Oxford University
Press
Decision Support Systems and Intelligent Systems by Turban and Aronson,
Pearson Education Asia
Management Information Systems by C.S.V.Murthy
3 | Supplementary Management Information Systems by Laudon, Laudon, Dass, Pearson
Reading Material | Education Asia, 11™ Edition
Management Information Systems by Davis and Olson, Tata McGraw.Hill
4 | Websites -
5 | Journals MIS Quarterly, University of Minnesota

CSI Communications, Computer Society of India, Mumbai
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Semester Specialization

Cousecone 1207 Trype ] Genetc- Ecive

Course Title Emotional Intelligence and Managerial Effectiveness Lab

| Course Objectives:
1 To equip students with individual and group learning methods
2 To understand intelligence and develop emotional competence
3 To develop understanding and competence for personal and managerial effectiveness.

Syllabus:
Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Introduction: Emotions and the Tripartite Brain, Emotional Competencies, 5+1
Executive EQ, Emotions and Enneagram, Rational Emotive Therapy, Emotional
Transformation, Measuring Emotional Intelligence, Emotions and Childhood,
Role of Emotions, Emotions and Attitudes

2 Individual &Organizational Learning: Theories of Learning, Learning 5+1
Processes, Kolb’s Learning Styles, How to create.a learning organization

3 Emotional Intelligence:Fundamentals of Emotional Intelligence, The 5+1
Emotional Competence Framework, Benefits of Emotional Intelligence

4 Managerial Effectiveness: Challenges faced by Organisations& expectations |5+ 1
from practicing Managers

5 Improving Effectiveness:Understanding Organizational goals, Creativity, 5+1
Optimising resources, Execution Skills (PDCA Cycle)

| Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Emotional Intelligence: Why- It. Can Matter More Than IQ by Daniel Goleman
Get Better or Get Beaten: 31 Leadership Secrets from GE's Jack Welch by
Robert Slater; Jack Welch:, McGraw-Hill School Education Group
2 | Reference Books | Working with Emotional Intelligence - Daniel Goleman
Jack Welch onLeadership : Executive Lessons from the Master CEOby John A.
Byrne, Jack Welch Crown Publishing Group
3 | Supplementary Leadership: The Power of Emotional Intelligence by Daniel Goleman
Reading Material | The Brain and Emotional Intelligence: New Insights by Daniel Goleman
The Emotionally Intelligent Workplace by Daniel Goleman, 2001
Primal Leadership: Realizing the Power of Emotional Intelligence by Daniel
Goleman, 2002
Destructive Emotions: A Scientific Dialogue with the Dalai Lama — 2003
Emotional Intelligence: Key Readings on the Mayer and Salovey Model by
John D. Mayer (Editor), Marc A. Brackett (Editor), Peter Salovey (Editor)
The Emotionally Intelligent Manager: How to Develop and Use the Four Key
Emotional Skills of Leadership by David R. Caruso and Peter Salovey
Bhagwad Gita As it is by Shree Prabhupada
4 | Websites http://www.unh.edu/emotional_intelligence/ei%20Reprints/Elpubs%201990-
1999.htm
http://www.dirjournal.com/guides/emotional-intelligence/
http://eqi.org/
http://www.emotionalintelligencecourse.com/eq-blog/
http://www.byronstock.com/emotional-intelligence-blog/
http://completeintelligence.com/blog/just-what-is-emotional-intelligence/
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Journals

Human Resource Development Quarterly
Human Resource Management Review

Journal of Applied Social Psychology

Journal of Managerial Psychology

Journal of Occupational Health Psychology
Journal of Organizational Behavior

American Psychologist

Applied Psychology

Current Directions in Psychological Science
European Journal of Work and Organizational Psychology
Journal of Personality and Individual Differences
Personality & Social Psychology Bulletin
Research on Emotion in Organization
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Semester Specialization

Cousecoe —— L28 Irpe | Geneic- Ecive

Course Title Statistical Software Lab

| Course Objectives:

1 To give an overview of the capabilities of popular statistical software packages.

2 To train students in handling data files and carry out basics statistical analysis.

3 To give hands on experience about basic hypothesis testing using t tests, Chi Square tests and
ANOVA.
4 To train students in using advanced tools such as regressions, MDS, Factor Analysis etc.

Syllabus:

‘ Unit Contents Number of ‘
Number Sessions
1 1.1 An Overview of Statistical Software: Introduction to SPSS / SAS/ Systat. 4+1

Introduction to various menus, Data file, Output file, Frequently —used dialog
boxes, Editing output, Printing results. Creating and editing a data file —
Variable and data view, Value Labels.
1.2 Managing Data: Listing cases, replacing missing values, computing new
variables, recording variables, exploring data, selecting cases, sorting cases,
merging files, splitting files, Visual Binning.
2 2.1 Frequencies: Frequencies, bar charts, histograms, percentiles 4+1

2.2 Descriptive Statistics: Measures of central tendency, variability, deviation
from normality, size and stability. Cross Tabulation and chi-square analyses,
The means Procedure

2.3 Graphs: Creating and editing graphs and charts
3 3.1 Bivariate Correlation: Bivariate Correlation, Partial Correlations and the 4+1
correlation matrix

3.2 The T-test Procedure; Independent —samples, paired samples, and one
sample tests

3.3 Non Parametric Tests: ChiSquareTest, 1 sample test, 2 independent
samples test, k-independent samples, 2 related samples test, k related
samples,

4 41 One Way ANOVA Procedure: One way analysis of variance, General 5+1
Linear model: Two —way analysis of variance, General Linear model: three —way
analysis of variance and the influence of covariates

5 5.1 Advanced Tools: Simple Linear Regression , Multiple regression analysis 8+1
Multidimensional scaling, Reliability Analysis, Factor analysis, Cluster analysis.

' Note:
The entire course has to be taught using a hands-on approach.
Students should be encouraged to use the 30 day trial version of relevant software package.
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| Learning Resources:

1

Text Books

SPSS for Windows — Step by Step, 17.0 Update, by George and Mallery,
Pearson, 10" Edition.

Research Methodology with SPSS by Rao and Tyagi, Shree Niwas
Publications, 2009.

Reference Books

Ready, Set, Go! — A student Guide to SPSS for Windows by Pavkov and
Pierce, TMGH Edition.

Discovering Statistics using SAS by Andy Field & Jerry Miles, Sage
Publications, 2010.

Supplementary
Reading Material

http://www.inc8.jp/ps/T9_Luque_imec.pdf
http://www.jstatsoft.org/v49

Websites

WWW.Sas.com
www.X|stat.com
www.stata.com
www.ibm.com/software/analytics/spss/

Journals

Journal of Statistical Software
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Semester Specialization

Cousecoe 125 Irpe | Geneic- Ecive

Course Title MS Project Lab

| Course Objectives: |

1 To understand basics of project management and learn how to use MS Project 2007 to:
A Create a New Project

B Build Tasks
C

2

Create Resources & Assign Costs
To understand use of MS Project 2007 to track Project Progress

Syllabus:
Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 1.1 Introduction to MS Project 2007 : Understanding Projects, Managing 2
Projects & Project Management Software, Taking a first look.at Project -
Starting Project, Entering Information, Changing Views, What's new.in Project
2007
2 2.1 Creating a New Project: Gathering Information, Opening a Project file, 3+2

Establishing Basic Project Information, Looking at Project Calendars, Entering
tasks, Adding subtasks, Saving Project files, Working with Project Outline —
Adjusting tasks in an outline, Copying tasks

3 3.1 Building Tasks: Establishing Timing for Tasks, Assigning Task Timing, 4+2
Using Recurring Tasks, Establishing Constraints.and Deadline Dates,
Manipulating Gantt Chart to View Timing, Entering Task Notes, Establishing
Dependencies Among Tasks, Viewing,.Dependencies

4 4.1 Creating Resources & Assigning Costs: Understanding Resources, 5+3
Creating Resource List, Modifying Resource Information, Using Resources and
Tasks, Handling Unusual Cest Situations

4.2 Understanding Basics of Views:What is a View?, Examining Indicators,
Admiring Views — Calendars, Detail Gantt, Gantt Chart, Leveling Gantt,
Tracking Gantt, Multiple baselines Gantt. Resource Allocation , Resource Form,
Resource Graph, Resource Name Form, Resource Sheet, Resource Usage,
Roll.up Views, Task Details Form, Task Entry, Task Form, Task Name Form,
Task Sheet; Task Usage, Printing Project

5 5.1 Tracking Project Progress |:Understanding the Principles of Tracking, 6+3
Using Baseline, Changing the Baseline, Viewing Progress with the Tracking
Gantt Chart View — Interpretation, Task Variance Table, Task Cost Table, Task
Work Table, Understanding Tracking Strategies

5.2 Tracking Project Progress ll:Recording Actuals — Organizing the
Updating Process, Understanding Calculation Options, Updating Tasks to
Reflect Actual Information, Using Actuals and Costs, Techniques and Tips for
Updating, Reviewing Progress.
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| Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Microsoft Office Project 2007 Bible by Elaine Marmel, Wiley Publishing Inc,
2007

2 Reference Books | -

3 | Supplementary PMBOK Guide by PMI

Reading Material

4 | Websites WWW.pmi.org.in
http://www.project-blog.com/

5 | Journals Project Management by Koehler, Brandon. OfficePro. Mar/Apr2012, Vol. 72

Issue 2, p36-37
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Semester Specialization

Couse Coe 1210 I1ype | Genetc - Eoive

Course Title Life Skills

| Course Objectives:
1 To encourage students to develop and use balanced self-determined Behavior.
2 To help students in enhancing self, increasing life satisfaction and Improving relationships with

others.
3 To develop new ability to practice new problem solving skills in group and use these skills in
personal life.
Syllabus:
Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Definition of Life Skills , Assumptions about Life Skills, Concept of skill in‘Life 5+1

Skills, Concept of Skill in Life Skills, Primary goal of Life/Skills programme, Life
Skills Process model, Group development and group behaviors.

2 Cognition, Meaning , Piaget’s theory of Cognitive:Development, role of Goal 5+1
Orientation, Meaning, Big Five personality characteristics, extraversion,
Openness to experience, emotional stability, consciousness and
agreeableness, Personal knowledge management, meaning, Wright's model,
Four domains, Analytical, information, social and learning.

3 Coping, Meaning, Types of coping strategies, 1) appraisal focused (adaptive 5+1
Cognitive) 2) problem focused ( adaptive behavior) 3) emotion focused
Empathy, meaning and definitions, Difference between empathy and sympathy,
Anger and distress, Meaning, overcoming.

4 Moral development, Meaning, Interpersonal influences on Moral development, 5+1
Moral development and social exclusion, Morality and culture, Morality and
Intergroup attitudes, moral.emotions.

5 Study Skills, Meaning, Types of study skills, Methods based on : 5+1
Memorization such as rehearsal and role learning
Communication Skills'e.g. reading, listening,

Cues e.g. flashcard training

Condensing information, summarizing and use of key words..
Visual imagery.

Exam strategies

Time management, organization and life style changes.

| Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Critical thinking skills : developing effective analysis and argument by Stella
Cottrell

Academic writing: a handbook for international students by Stephen Bailey
Effective Study Skills: Step-by-Step System to Achieve Student Success by
Semones

2 Reference Books | Critical thinking and analysis by Mary Deane

Developing and applying study skills : writing assignments, dissertations and
management reports by Donald Currie

Assignment and thesis writing by Jonathan Anderson

3 | Supplementary -
Reading Material
4 | Websites -
5 | Journals -
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Semester Specialization

Cousecoe ——Lzir— Itype | Geneic - Eoive

Course Title Geopolitics & the World Economic System

| Course Objectives:

1 To expose students to the relationship between political power and geographic space amidst world
economic system.
2 To help students understand various facets of international political economy & national
system political economy.
3 To develop abilities to appreciate the interrelationship between the trading system, international
financial system and the participants in the changed economic system

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 International Political Economy: Distribution of Wealth and Economic 5+1

Activities - National Autonomy - Palitics of International Regimes - Theory-of
Hegemonic Stability - Governance of the Global:Economy

2 National Systems of Political Economy: Differences among National 5+1
Economies - Market-Oriented Capitalism- Developmental Capitalism- Social
Market Capitalism — Comparative Analysis

3 The Trading System: Debate over Free Trade — Functions of WTO and GATT |5+ 1
- The Uruguay Round and World Trade Organization = Trade Blocs such as
SAARC, ASEAN, NAFTA - Threats to Open Trading System

4 International Monetary System: The International-Financial System - Reform | 5+ 1
of International Monetary Affairs - Nature of Financial Crises - Controversy over
Regulation of International Einance

5 The State and the Multinationals: An International Regime for FDI and MNC- | 5+ 1
Do Global Corporations Pose a Threat? - Conseguences of Economic
Globalization

| Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Global Palitical Economy — Robert Gilpin, Princeton University Press
International Economics with MyEconLab by Paul Krugman, Maurice Obstfeld
andMarc Melitz, Pearson, Global Edition, 9" Edition

2 Reference Books |, Managing World Economlc Change: International Political Economy by Robert
A.lsaak, Pearson, 3" Edition,

3 | Supplementary. Economic Times Daily

Reading'Material. | Business Standard Daily

The Economist — Magazine

4 | Websites http://www.wto.org/
http://www.imf.org/external/index.htm
5 | Journals Economic Systems Research.
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SEINESER

Specialization

Cousecone —— Lziz— Irype | Genetc - Eoive

Course Title

Business Systems and Procedures

| Course Objectives:
1 To understand Business as an integrated system

2 To develop process thinking for developing procedures.

3 To make students aware of various business functions & responsibilities.

Syllabus:

Unit
Number
1

Contents

Systems and Procedures — Concept and need - Characteristics of a good
procedure. Writing a Standard Operating Procedure (SOP)— Procedure
Identification - Information Gathering—Interviewing — Analysis — Writing —
Implementation — Review- Fine-tuning. Process Mapping Tools — Aid-Memaoir —
Flowchart — Swim Lane Diagrams — Flow Charting Software — Using MS Word
and Excel for Flowcharting - Case Studies.

Number of
Sessions

+1

Understanding accounting procedures for Cash.Sales - Credit Sales - Cash
Receipts — Donations — Travelling Expenses — Writing off Bad Debts — Sale of
Scrap. Principles of Internal Control — Study of Internal Control in Select
Procedures such as Recruitment, Payment of Salaries.and Wages, Verification
of Inventories and Work in Progress, Verification of Fixed Assets and
Investments

5+1

Lean Office — Re-engineering information flow and paper flow — Process
Mapping for Current and Future State Map. Digital Office —Overview of Office
Automation Systems — Use of technologies such as Bar Coding, RFID,
Biometry and Mobile Computing for redesigning office procedures.

Study of the following Systems and underlying Procedures. Point of sale (POS)
system in an organized retail store, Purchase Order System in a manufacturing
organization, Attendance Recording System in a factory, Kitchen Order Ticket
(KOT) System in a Restaurant, Just in-Time Inventory System in a
manufacturing organization.

5+1

Presentation of individual/group projects in Process Mapping, Improvement and
Writing SOP’s for an.entire range of activities for a segment in a manufacturing/
service organization.

5+1

| Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Business Process Management — A Rigorous Approach by Martyn A Ould ,

British Computer Society, First South Asia Edition.

2 Reference Books " |. -

3 | Supplementary. -

Readin

g Material

4 Websites -

5 Journals -
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Semester Specialization

Couse cone 1213 Itype | Genetc - Eoive

Course Title Computer Aided Personal Productivity Tools Lab

| Course Objectives: |
1 To give students mastery of MS Office.
2 To enhance personal productivity through advanced features of MS Word, MS Excel & MS
PowerPoint
3 To impart skills of using MS Outlook and basic social networking tools.

Syllabus:
Contents Number of

Sessions

1.1 Collaboration - Protect your document with passwords, permission, and
other restrictions, Save a document to SharePoint from:Office 2010, The 1
purpose of IRM and its limitations, Mail Merge

1.2 Tracking changes and comments - Turn track.changes on or off, Review
tracked changes and comments

1.3 Formatting - Add, change, or delete WordArt, Add or remove text effects,
Adjust the spaces between letters, lines or paragraphs, Set the default font, 1
Language, Apply, customize, and save a document theme in Word

1.4 Tables of contents and other references - Create a table of contents, Edit a
citation placeholder, Create a bibliography, Foot note & End Note, Captions & 1
Index

1.5 Checking Spelling, grammar, and thesaurus

1.6 Managing Headers, footers, and page numbers, Links

1.7 Inserting Page breaks and section breaks, Applying Multiple headers, page
layouts

1.8 Tables Tooals, lllustrations, Equations, Symbols
'’2 [POWERPONT [6+1 |
2.1 Working with text & SmartArt graphics - Add alternative text to a shape,
picture, chart, table, SmartArt graphic, or other object, Wrap text around an
object in PowerPoint 2010, Adjust the indent in a bulleted or numbered list on 1
the ruler, Change the look, position, or function of bulleted or numbered lists in
your presentation

2.2 Organizing and-formatting slides, Using masters - Understanding a slide
master; Create or customize a slide master, Apply one or more slide mastersto | 1
a presentation

2.3 Workingwith animation, sounds & Movies - Turn your presentation into a
video, Embed or link to a video from your presentation, Set the 'Play' options for

a video in your presentation, Trim a video, Compress your media files, Tips for 1
improving audio and video playback and compatibility

2.4 Working with hyperlinks and action buttons 1
2.5 Reviewing and adding comments - Show markup and add Comments

2.6 Creating support materials - Notes and Notes Master, Printing Notes 1
2.7 Delivering your presentation - Using Presenter's Mode, Optimising

Handouts 1
2.8 Embedding Presentation - Multiple presentations & Slides and files on the

slide

3.1 Excel Basics Review - Using Keyboard, Importing and Exporting Data (Access, 1

SPSS)
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3.2 Excel For Marketing & Statistics - Creating Business Solutions 1

Excel & HRIS - Database Creation, Analysis & reporting 1
3.4 Excel for Finance - Analysing Financial Statements e.g. Balance sheet, Ratio
Analysis, Using Applications e.g. PROWESS, AceEquity, Creating Excel 3
Dashboard

4.1 MS Outlook - Start using the Outlook Social Connector, Stay up-to-date in 2
the People Pane, Assign a colour category to an e-mail message, Customize
the appearance of task lists, Turn the Reading Pane on or off, Introduction to
Conversations, Create and add a message signature, Manage messages by

usin% rules, Automate common or reEetitive tasks

5.1 Using Google + & Google Docs 2

5.2 Using Twitter for networking and Business 1

5.3 Creating Blogs, Using LinkedIn, and other academics and Business
websites. Networking, Surveys, Discussions, Business Information

2

' Note:
Emphasis should be on hands on experience.
All sessions should be conducted in the IT laboratory.

1

Text Books

| Learning Resources:

Excel 2010 Bible [With CDROM] by John Walkenbach John Wiley & Sons

Word 2010 Bible by Herb TysonJohn Wiley & Sons

MOS 2010 Study Guide for Microsoft Word, Excel, PowerPoint, and Outlookby Joan
Lambert 11l and Joyce Cox(Apr 8, 2011)

Microsoft Word 2010 Step by Stepby Joyce Cox and Joan Lambert IlI

PowerPoint 2010 Bible [Paperback] by Faithe Wempen

Reference
Books

Microsoft Word 2010 in Depth by Faithe Wempen

Microsoft Word 2010. Plain & Simple by Katherine Murray

Beyond Bullet Points: Using Microsoft PowerPoint to Create Presentations That
Inform, Motivate, and Inspire [Paperback] BPG

Microsoft PowerPoint 2010 Plain & Simple by Nancy Muir

Office 2010 Bible by John' Walkenbach, Herb Tyson, Michael R. Groh, Faithe
Wempen, Lisa A. Bueki

Business Analysis with MS Excel by Conard Carlberg, Pearson Education

Supplementar
y Reading
Material

http:/lprezi.com/recyyolzxm3e/how-to-create-a-great-prezi/
http://chandoo.org/wp/excel-dashboards/

Websites

http:/Amavw.lifeoptimizer.org/2010/07/05/productivity-tools/
http://toshibathrivetabletreview.com/how_tablet_pcs_are_actually_great_productivity
- tools
http://www.seozap.com/top-10-organizational-content-management-productivity-tools

Journals

http://www.inderscience.com/browse/index.php?journallD=177
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Semester Specialization

Cousecoe —— Lz1e Irpe | Geneic- Ecive

Course Title Foreign Language — Il Lab

| Course Objectives:

1 To provide the student with listening, reading, speaking and writing skills in chosen foreign
language.
2 To enhance the vocabulary in the selected Foreign Language.

Syllabus:

‘ Unit Contents Number of ‘
Number Sessions
1 Listening: Understand Simple Questions and Instructions. 5+1

Reading: Understand Single Words and Sentences but also Signposts, Signs
and Posters.

Speaking: Provide Short Information about the Job and the Person.

Writing: Fill in Forms and Provide Information About Name, Address,
Nationality etc.

2 Listening: Understand Information about the Person and the Work. 5+1
Reading: Understand Simple Letters, Appointments, Invitations and
Information in Short Texts.

Speaking: Answer Simple Questions About One's)\Working Field.
Writing: Write Faxes and e-mails

3 Listening: Understand Standard Information Related to the Working Field. 5+1
Reading: Understand Standard Letters and Texts about Working Processes
and Product Descriptions.

Speaking: Provide Information about the Job, the Departments, the Company,
the Products and Processes in a Conversation or on the Phone.

Writing: Answer Standard.Inquiries, Make Quotations, Write Short Texts with a
Familiar Content, Possibly Give Some Explanation and Answer Simple
Questions.

4 Listening: Understand Complex Information Related to the Working Field in 5+1
Meetings, Discussions and at Presentations.

Reading: Understand Reports and Contracts with a Company-related Content.
Speaking: Describe and Explain Work Processes and Projects. Report on
Meetings‘and Presentations. Explain Concepts and Clarify Misunderstandings.
Writing: Write:Formal Standard Letters and Texts about One's Field of
Expertise. Explain a Graphic and Reflect the Content.

5 Grammar: Future tense, imperfect tense, degrees of comparison, imperative 5+1
mood. Script, Letters of alphabet, accents, sounds of groups of letters,
punctuation marks, articles, nouns, sing./Pl , genders; mas. /ffem. Structure of
sentences & types like affirmative, negative interrogative & negative
interrogative, Verbs: classes of verbs and conjugation patterns, Pronominal
verbs; Present tense, The idea of auxiliary verb; prepositions; pronouns-
subject, interrogative, relative, possessive, emphatic ; adjectives, adverbs
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Institute may offer any one of the following foreign languages to the students: SPANISH / FRENCH/
GERMAN/ JAPANESE / CHINESE

| Learning Resources:
1 | Text Books Relevant Standard Text Books, Videos, Audio CDs for the language offered to

2 Reference Books | the students.
3 | Supplementary
Reading Material
4 Websites

5 Journals
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Semester Specialization

Couse cone 1215 Itype | Geneic - Eoive

Course Title Industry Analysis - Desk Research

| Course Objectives:

1 To help the students understand the dynamics of a specific industry.

2 To acquaint students with various issues particular to an industry.

3 To provide a cross-functional perspective of the functioning of a business enterprise and an
industry.

Syllabus:

‘ Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Industry Analysis —the Basics: 25+5

Nature of the Industry, Players in the industry.

Nature of competition from an economist’s perspective;

Market shares of top 3 & bottom 3 players.

Possible Classification of players into Leaders, Challengers, Followers;

Nichers.

Positioning & Differentiation strategies of key players. Branding strategies.

Pricing Policies, Cartelization if any and comments thereon.

Capacity analysis — total capacity of the industry and break up capacity

amongst key players, Planned future capacity additions.

Geographical spread of plants/facilities/ capacities (Domestics as well as

Global).

Demand Supply balance in the industry, Key factors affecting demand.

Key supply side constraints,

Professional Trade bodies of the Industry.

Business Functions carried.out Online by.the key players. Online presence.

2 Promoters & Management Ethos:

Backgroundof promoter groups of.top 3 and bottom 3 players in the industry.

Management ethos and philosophy.

Brief profiles of CMDs, CEOs, and key top management personnel with their

career highlights.

Detailed profile.of one distinguished top management personnel each from any

two players.in the Industry.

CSR policy.

Corporate Governance Initiatives.

Initiatives towards social inclusion.

Initiatives towards environment conservation.

3 External Environment:

Controlling ministry and / or regulator if any for the Industry

Regulatory actions against the players for e.g. Action by SEBI, Competition

Commission of India, MTRP Commission, etc. against irregularities , legal

violations if any.

Regulatory Policies at the state, national and global level and their impact on

the industry as a whole with analysis of impact on top 3 players.

Key National and Global issues affecting the industry.

Key initiatives by the Government to promote the industry.

Environmental issues.
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4 Financials:

Profitability, Revenues, Margins of top 3 & bottom 3 players over the last 3
years and trends/changes therein.

Sick players if any and their turnaround strategies, if any.

Key factors contributing to costs.

Ratio analysis of financial data for last 3 years for top 5 and bottom 5
companies in the industry.

5 Recent Developments:

Impact of key relevant provisions of the latest Fiscal policy on the industry and
various players therein.

Analysis of Key relevant provisions of latest Exim Policy in case of industries
that are focused on Global Markets for exports or industries that have
significant import components.

Key Alliances in the past 5 years and their performance & impact on other
players in the industry.

Mergers & Acquisitions, if any.

Technological developments.

Labourunrest if any —reasons thereof and impact on the particular player and
the industry as a whole.

Emerging first generation entrepreneurs, if any, in the industry.

Corporate wars & feuds in the industry, if any.

' Note:

Students should work in groups of 3 to 5 each under the guidance of a faculty.

Students shall study various aspects of any TWO industries (group of similar business entities) of their
choice.

Focus shall be the comparative and historical analysis across the players in the industry.

Students shall submit a structured detailed report.

The evaluation shall be made by a panel of two examiners. One of the examiners shall be the Internal
Faculty. The other examiner may be an external faculty or a person from the relevant industry. The
evaluation shall be based on the following-criteria:

Report — 20 Marks

Presentation — 15 Marks

Question & Answer — 15 Marks

| Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books --

2 Reference Books | --

3 | Supplementary Annual reports of various companies
Reading Material* | Economic Times
Business Standard
Business Line
Business Today
Business India
4 | Websites Websites of various companies
Websites of various ministries of the Government of India
Websites of various trade bodies
Websites of stock exchanges
5 | Journals Economic and Political Weekly
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Semester Specialization

Cousecoe Lo Ipe L Geneic-Core

Course Title Strategic Management

| Course Objectives:
1 To expose participants to various perspectives and concepts in the field of Strategic Management
2 To help participants develop skills for applying these concepts to the solution of business problems
3 To help students master the analytical tools of strategic management.

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 1.1 Understanding Strategy: Concept of strategy, Corporate, Business.and 7+2

Functional Levels of Strategy

1.2 Introduction to Strategic Management: Meaning and Characteristics.of
strategic management, strategic management Vs. operational management

1.3 Four Phases in Strategic Management Process: Stakeholders in
business and their roles in strategic management

1.4 Hierarchy of Strategic Intent: Meaning & attributes of strategic intent,
Meaning of Vision, Process of envisioning, Meaning of mission, difference
between vision & mission, characteristics of good mission statements, Business
definition using Abell’s three dimensions, objectives and goals, Linking
objectives to mission & vision. Critical success factors (CSF), Key Performance
Indicators (KPI), Key Result Areas (KRA)

1.5 Analyzing Company’s External Environment: Environmental appraisal
Scenario planning — Preparing an Environmental Threat and Opportunity Profile
(ETOP)

Analyzing Industry Environment: Industry Analysis - Porter’s Five

Forces Model of competition, Entry & Exit Barriers, Strategic Group analysis
2 2.1 Analyzing Company’s Internal Environment: Resource based view of a 7+2
firm, meaning, types & sources of competitive advantage, analyzing Company’s
Resources and Competitive Position, VRIO Framework, competitive
advantage, competitive parity & competitive disadvantage, Core Competence,
characteristics of core competencies, Distinctive competitiveness,
Benchmarking as a method of comparative analysis

2:2Value Chain Analysis Using Porter’s Model: primary & secondary
activities

2.30rganizational Capability Profile: Strategic Advantage Profile,
Concepts of stretch, leverage & fit, ways of resource leveraging —concentrating,
accumulating, complementing, conserving, recovering

2.4Portfolio Analysis: Business Portfolio Analysis - BCG Matrix — GE 9 Cell
Model
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3.1 Generic Competitive Strategies: Meaning of generic competitive
strategies,Low cost, Differentiation, Focus — when to use which strategy

3.2Grand Strategies: Stability, Growth (Diversification Strategies, Vertical
Integration Strategies, Mergers, Acquisition & Takeover Strategies, Strategic
Alliances & Collaborative Partnerships), Retrenchment — Turnaround,
Divestment, Liquidation, Outsourcing Strategies

7+2

4.1 Strategy Implementation: Components of a strategic plan, barriers to
implementation of strategy, Mintzberg's 5 Ps — Deliberate & Emergent
Strategies , Mc Kinsey’s 7s Framework

4.20rganization Structures for Strategy Implementation: entrepreneurial,
functional, divisional, SBU, Matrix, Network structures, Cellular/ Modular
organization, matching structure to strategy, organizational design for stable
Vs. turbulent environment,

4.3Changing Structures & Processes: Reengineering,& strategy
implementation — Principles of Reengineering, Six Sigma — Process consisting
of defining, measuring, analyzing, improving & establishing steps, Lean Six
Sigma (Concepts only)

4.4Corporate Culture: Building Learning organizations, promoting participation
through technique of Management by Objectives(MBQ), Total Quality
Management (TQM)

4.5 Strategy Evaluation: Operations Control and:Strategic Control -
Symptoms of malfunctioning of strategy —Use of Balanced Scorecard for
strategy evaluation

5.1 Blue Ocean Strategy: Difference between blue & red ocean strategies,
principles of blue ocean strategy, Strategy Canvass & Value Curves, Four
Action framework

5.2 Business Models: Meaning & components of business models, new
business models for.Internet Economy— E-Commerce Business Models and
Strategies — Internet Strategies for Traditional Business —Virtual Value Chain

5.3 Sustainability & Strategic Management: Threats to sustainability,
Integrating Social & environmental sustainability issues in strategic
management, meaning of triple bottom line, people-planet-profits.
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| Learning Resources:
1 | Text Books

Crafting and Executing Strategy- The Quest for Competitive Advantage by
Thompson, Strickland, Gamble & Jain, Tata McGraw-Hill, 16th Edition

Crafting the Strategy: Concepts and Cases in Strategic Management by Ranjan
Das, Tata McGraw Hill, 2004

Strategic Management and Business Policy by Azhar Kazmi, Tata McGraw-Hill,
Third Edition

2 Reference Books

Strategic Management by Ireland, Hoskisson & Hitt, Indian Edition, Cengage
Learning, 2008 Edition

Concepts in Strategic Management & Business Policy by Thomas L. Wheelen &
J. David Hunger, Pearson, 12th ed.

Strategic Management by Allen C. Amason

Strategy Safari by Henry, Mintzberg, Bruce, Ahlstrand and Joseph, Lampel
(1998). Free Press, New York

Strategic Management by Friancs Cherunilam

Strategic Management by Subba Rao

3 | Supplementary
Reading Material

The Essentials, Harvard Business Press, 2011 Edition

Competitive Strategy: Techniques for Analyzing Industries and Competitors by
Michael E. Porter, First Free Press Edition, 1980

Competing for the Future by Gary Hamel & C.K. Prahlad, TMGH.

Blue Ocean Strategy by Kim & Mauborgne

Managing in a Time of Great Change by-Peter F. Drucker,Truman Talley Books

Plume Penguin Group, 1998.

4 | Websites http://www.thepalladiumgroup.com
http://www.mckinsey.com
Journals Managing Core Competence of the Organization by Srivastava, Shirish C.,

Vikalpa: The Journal for:Decision Makers, Oct-Dec2005, Vol. 30 Issue 4

Core Competence, Distinctive Competence, and Competitive Advantage: What
Is the Difference? byMooney, Ann. Journal of Education for Business,
Nov/Dec2007,-Vol. 83 Issue 2

The Five Competitive Forces That Shape Strategy by Porter, Michael E.,
Harvard Business Review, Jan2008, Vol. 86 Issue 1

Strategy & Society: The Link Between Competitive Advantage and Corporate
Social Responsibility' by Porter, Michael E.; Kramer, Mark R., Harvard Business
Review, Dec2006, Vol. 84 Issue 12

From Competitive Advantage to Corporate Strategy by Porter, Michael E.,
McKinsey.Quarterly, Spring88, Issue 2

Strategy and the Internet by Porter, Michael E., Harvard Business Review,
Mar2001, Vol. 79 Issue 3

What Is Strategy? byPorter, Michael E., Harvard Business Review, Nov/Dec96,
Vol. 74 Issue 6

The Strategy Concept I: Five Ps For Strategy by Mintzberg, Henry., California
Management Review, Fall1987, Vol. 30 Issue 1

The Strategy Concept Il: Another Look at Why Organizations Need Strategies
by Mintzberg, Henry. , California Management Review, Fall1987, Vol. 30 Issue
1

The Pitfalls of Strategic Planning by Mintzberg, Henry., California Management
Review, Fall1993, Vol. 36 Issue 1

Crafting strategy by Mintzberg, Henry; Hunsicker, J. Quincy. , McKinsey
Quarterly, Summer88, Issue 3

The GE-McKinsey Nine-box Framework, McKinsey Quarterly, 2008, Issue 4
Reliance Telecom: Related or Unrelated Diversification? A Case Study by Sen,
Subir, South Asian Journal of Management, Apr-Jun2011, Vol. 18 Issue 2
Competing Today While Preparing for Tomorrow by Abell, Derek F., Sloan
Management Review, Spring99, Vol. 40 Issue 3
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Semester Specialization

Cousecoe Loz Ipe L GeneicCoe

Course Title Enterprise Performance Management

| Course Objectives:

1 To acquaint the students with a perspective of different facets of management of an enterprise

2 To provide inputs with reference to the Investment Decisions along with the techniques for those
decisions
3 To inculcate the evaluation parameters of enterprise in terms of expenses, control systems and
pricing
4 To develop the knowledge of the concept of auditing and its applicability as performance
management tool

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions

1

1.1 Performance Management: Concept, Need, Linkages with Strategic 7+2

Planning, Management Control and Operational Control

1.2Performance Evaluation Parameters: Financial — Responsibility
Accounting —Concept of Responsibility Centers, Revenue Centre, Expense
Centre - Engineered and Discretionary costs = Committed costs, Profit Centre,
Investment Centers. ROI, ROA, MVA, EVA — DuPont analysis. (Numericals Not
expected — Interpretation only) Limitations of Financial Measures

1.3Performance Evaluation Parameters: Non-Financial Performance
measures — Balanced Scorecard, Malcolm Baldrige Framework.

1.4Measuring SBU Level Performance: .Concept, Need, Linkages with
Enterprise Performance Management — Goal Congruence. Transfer Pricing —
Objective, Concept, Methods = Cost based, Market price based & Negotiated,
Applicability of Transfer Pricing.

2 2.1 Capital Expenditure Control: Concept, Need, Process of Capital 7+2
Budgeting, Types of capital expendituredecisions — pre-sanction, operational
and post-sanction control of capital expenditure.

2.2Tools & Techniques of Capital Expenditure Control: Performance Index,
Technical Performance Measurement, Post completion audit

3 3¢l Performance Evaluation Parameters for Banks: Customer Base,NPAs, 7+2
Deposits, Rol, Financial Inclusion, Spread, Credit Appraisal, Investments.

3.2 Perfarmance Evaluation Parameters for Retail: ABC analysis, Sell
Through Analysis, Multiple Attribute Method, Gross Margin Return on
Investment (GMROI), GMROI as Gross Margin/Average Inventory at Cost
4 4.1 Performance Evaluation Parameters for Projects: Project Control 7+2
Process: Setting base line plan, Measuring progress and performance,
comparing plan against action, Taking action, Schedule variance (time
overruns), Project Cost Variance (cost overruns)

4.2 Performance Evaluation Parameters for Non-Profit: Features of Non-
profit organizations, fund accounting, governance, product pricing, strategic
planning & budget preparations, social audit.
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5.1 Audit Function as a Performance Measurement Tool: Financial Audit, 7+2
Internal Audit, Cost Audit, Management Audit — Principles and Objectives
(Audit Reports / Formats are expected to be discussed in the class from a
performance measurement perspective).

| Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Management Control System by Robert Anthony & Vijay Govindrajan, Tata
McGraw Hill Publishing Co. Ltd., 12" Edition
Management Control in Non Profit Organizations by Robert Anthony & David
Young, McGraw Hill International Publication, 7" Edition
Retailing Management by Swapna Pradhan, TMGH, 3" Edition

2 Reference Books | Project Management by K.Nagarajan, New Age International Publications, 2™
Edition
Principles and Practices of Auditing by Ravindar Kumar & Virendar Sharma,
PHI.
Principles and Practices of Banking by Indian Institute of Banking &
Finance, MacMillan India Ltd.
Financial Management by Prasanna Chandra, TMGH; 7" edition

3 | Supplementary Management Control Systems by R.C. Sekhar, TMGH

Reading Material
4 | Websites -
5 | Journals IUP journal of Business strategy- by ICWFI

Enterprise and Society- International/journal of business history by Oxford
University.
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Semester Specialization

Cousecoe —— Laos Ipe L GeneicCoe

Course Title Startup and New Venture Management

| Course Objectives:

1 To instill a spirit of entrepreneurship among the student participants.

2 To provide an overview of the competences needed to become an entrepreneur
3 To give insights into the Management of Small Family Business

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 1.1 Concept and Definitions: Entrepreneur & Entrepreneurship, 7+2

Entrepreneurship and Economic Development; A Typology of Entrepreneurs;

1.2 Entrepreneurial Competencies: The Entrepreneur’s Role, Task and
Personality -

Entrepreneurial Skills: creativity, problem solving, decision making,
communication, leadership quality; McClelland’s N-Ach theory, self — analysis,
personal efficacy, culture & values, risk-taking behavieur, technology backup.

1.3 Factor Affecting Entrepreneurial Growth: Economic,.Non-Economic
Factors; EDP Programmes; Entrepreneurial Training;

1.4 Traits/Qualities of an Entrepreneurs: Entrepreneur; Manager Vs.
Entrepreneur, The Early Career Dilemmas of an Entrepreneur, Defining
Survival and Success , Entrepreneurship as a Style of Management , The
Entrepreneurial Venture and the Entrepreneurial Organization. Entrepreneurial
Process

1.5 Steps of entrepreneurial process : Deciding — Developing — Moving —
Managing — Recoghizing

2 2.1 Opportunity / Identification and Product Selection: Entrepreneurial +2
Opportunity Search and Identification;

2.2 Product Selection: Criteria to Select a Product

2:3 Conducting Feasibility Studies: Project Finalization; Sources of
Information.

2.4 Entry-strategies: New product, Franchising, Partial Momentum,
Sponsorship and Acquisition

2.5 Intellectual Property: Creation and Protection
3 Small Enterprises and Enterprise Launching Formalities: Definition of 7+2
Small Scale; Rationale;Objective; Scope; Role of SME in Economic
Development of India; SME; Registration; NOC fromPollution Board; Machinery
and Equipment Selection

Project Report Preparation: Specimen of Project Report; Project Planning
and Scheduling using Networking Techniques of PERT / CPM; Methods of
Project Appraisal - economic viability and market feasibility, requirements of
financial institutions, projected financial statement preparation.
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/ Board.

SIDBI.

Information : assistance from different organizations in setting up a new
venture, technology parks, industrialcorporations, directorate of industries /
cottage and small scale industries, SISI, Khadi & Village Industries Corporation

DGS & DNSIC, export & import, how to apply for assistance — procedure,
forms, proceduresfor obtaining contract from Railways, Defence, P & T etc.,

4.2 Laws :Liabilities under the Factories Act, Shops & Establishment Act,
Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act,Environment Protection Act, Sale
of Goods Act, maintenance & submission of statutory records & returns,
understanding labour - management relationship

4.1 Role of Support Institutions and Management of Small Business: 7+2
Director of Industries; DIC;SIDO; SIDBI; Small Industries Development
Corporation (SIDC); SISI; NSIC; NISBUED,; StateFinancial Corporation SFC;

Case Studies :Diagnostic case studies of successful £ unsuceessful 7+2
entrepreneurs, key variables explaining success /failures, industrial sickness,
industrial reconstruction, technology obsolescence, technology, transfer.

| Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books The Dynamics of Entrepreneurial Development & Management by Desai,
Vasant , Himalaya Publishing House, Delhi
Managing Small Business by Longenecker, Moore, Petty and Palich, Cengage
Learning, India Edition.
Cases in Entrepreneurship by Morse and Mitchell, Sage South Asia Edition.
Entrepreneurship —indian Cases on Change Agents by K Ramchandran,
TMGH.
Entrepreneurship = The engine of growth, edited by Mark Rice and Timothy
Habbershon, Published by Praeger Perspectives.
Entrepreneurship: Theory, Process and Practice by Kuratko, D.F. & Hodgetts,
R.M. Thomson Press.
Entrepreneurship Development: Small Business Enterprises by Charantimath,
P., Pearson.
A Guide to Entrepreneurship by David, Otes , Jaico Books Publishing House,
Delhi.
Indian Entrepreneurial Culture by A Gupta , New Age International.

2 Reference Books .| Entrepreneurship: New Venture Creation by David H. Holt

Entrepreneurship Development New Venture Creation by Satish Taneja,
S.L.Gupta

Project management by K. Nagarajan.

Entrepreneurship: Strategies and Resources by Marc J. Dollinger

The Culture of Entrepreneurship by Brigitte Berger.

Entrepreneurship by Robert D. Hisrich, Michael P. Peters, Dean A. Shepherd
Entrepreneurship As Strategy by G. Dale Meyer, Kurt A. Heppard

New Vistas of Entrepreneurship: Challenges & Opportunities by A.
Sahay,M.S.Chhikara

Entrepreneurship and Small Business Management by Siropolis

Lead like an Entrepreneur by Neal Thornberry

Make The Move: Demystifying Entrepreneurship by Ishan Gupta, Rajat Khare
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3 | Supplementary
Reading Material

The Creation of Wealth - A Tata Story by R M Lala , IBM Publishing
B K Birla : A Rare Legacy, Image Inc.

Family Business in India by Sudipta Dutta

Innovation and Entrepreneurship by Peter F. Drucker

You Too Can Become an Entrepreneur by Nalinaksha Mutsuddi
Intraprenuership by Gifford Pinchot IlI

The Entrepreneurial Connection by Gurmeet Naroola

Thought Leaders by Steven Brandt.

Corporate Entrepreneurship by Vijay Sathe

Corporate Entrepreneurship: Entrepreneurial Development Inside
Organizations by Michael H.Morris, Donald F.Kuratko

4 Websites

www.nenonline.org/
www.tie.org/

5 Journals

Who is an entrepreneur? Is the wrong question, Gartner, W.(1988), American
Journal of Small Business, 12(4), 11-32.

Becoming an entrepreneur - a question of personality structure?; Hermann B.;
Journal of Economic Psychology 18 (1997) Pp. 157

Entrepreneurial Folklore; Brockhaus, Robert H.;Journal of Small Business
Management. Milwaukee: Jul 1987, Vol. 25, Issue3; p. 1

Do You Want to Keep Your Customers Forever?, B. J. Pine Il, D. Peppers, and
M. Rogers (1995), HBR (Reprint N0.:95209)

The Spirit of Entrepreneurship; Abdnor, James;Journal of Small Business
Management. Milwaukee: Jan 1988 Vol. 26, Issue 1; p. 1

Opportunities and Entrepreneurship, Eckhardt, J., & Shane, S. (2003), Journal
of Management, 29: 333-349.

Why Entrepreneurship? A'Worldwide Perspective; Shapero, Albert;Journal of
Small Business Management. Milwaukee: Oct 1985. Vol. 23, Issue. 4; p. 1
Creating entrepreneurs in‘India; Leo Paul Dana;Journal of Small Business
Management. Milwaukee: Jan:2000. Vol. 38, Issue. 1; p. 86

Some Empirical Aspects.of Entrepreneurship; Evans, David S.; Leighton, Linda
S.; American Economic Review, Jun 89, Vol. 79 Issue 3, p519

Survival Chances of Newly Founded Business Organizations; Bruderl, Josef,
Preisendorfer, Peter, Ziegler, Rolf.;American Sociological Review. Albany: Apr
1992..Vol. 57, Issue: 2; p. 227.

A Conceptual Framework for Describing the Phenomenon of New Venture
Creation; Gartner, William B.;The Academy of Management Review. Briarcliff
Manor:Oct.1985. Vol. 10, Issue. 4; p. 696

Some Thoughts on Business Plans, William A. Sahiman, HBS Note# 897101
The Five Stages of Small Business Growth, Neil C. Churchill, Virginia L. Lewis,
HBR # 83301
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Semester Specialization

Couse cone——Taoa L Type " Generccorto credg

Course Title Summer Internship Project

| Course Objectives: |
1 To offer the opportunity for the young students to acquire on job the skills, knowledge, attitudes,

and perceptions along with the experience needed to constitute a professional identity.

To provide means to immerse students in actual supervised professional experiences

To give an insight into the working of the real organizations.

To gain deeper understanding in specific functional areas.

To appreciate the linkages among different functions and departments

To develop perspective about business organizations in their totality

To help the students in exploring career opportunities in their areas of interest

~No|g|A~lwiN

At the end of Second Semester each student shall undertake a Summer Internship Project (SIP) for 8
weeks. Itis mandatory for the student to seek advance written-approval.-from the faculty guide
and the Director of the Institute about the topic and organization before commencing the SIP. The
SIP may or may not have a Functional Focus, i.e. the student:may take up a SIP in:his/her intended area
of specialization or in any other functional area of management. Ideally the SIP should exhibit a cross-
functional orientation. The student shall submit a written structured report based on work done during
this period.

SIP can be carried out in:
a) Corporate Entity
b) NGO
c) SME
d) Government Undertaking
e) Cooperative Sector

SIP may be a research project — based on primary / secondary data or may be an operational assignment
involving working by the student on a given task/assignment/project/ etc. in an organization / industry. It is
expected that the SIP shall sensitize the students to the demands of the workplace. The learning
outcomes and utility to the organization. must'be specifically highlighted.

The report should be well documented-and supported by —

Executive Summary

Organization profile

Outline of the problemi/task undertaken

Research methodology & data analysis (in case of research projects only)

Relevant activity. charts, tables, graphs, diagrams, etc.

Learning ofithe student through the project

Contribution te the host organization

References in appropriate referencing styles. (APA, MLA, Harvard, Chicago Style etc.)

NGO~ WN R

It should reflect the nature and quantum of work undertaken by the student. The report must reflect 8
weeks of work and justify the same.

The completion of the SIP shall be certified by the respective Faculty Guide & approved by the Director of
the Institute. The external organization (Corporate / NGO/ SME/ Government Entity/ Cooperative/ etc.)
shall also certify the SIP work.

The student shall submit TWO hard copies & one soft copy (CD) of the project report before 30th
September in Sem Ill. One hard copy is to be returned to the student by the Institute after the External
Viva-Voce.
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In the interest of environmental considerations, students are encouraged to print their project reports on
both faces of the paper.

SIP shall have a weightage of 6 credits. The Institute shall conduct an internal viva-voce for evaluation of
the SIP for 50 marks. The Panel shall comprise of the Internal Faculty Guide & One additional faculty
nominated by the Director.

There shall be an external viva-voce for the SIP for 100 marks. The examiner’s panel for the same shall
include one external faculty member nominated by the University and one internal faculty member
nominated by the Director. The external viva-voce shall be conducted for 15 minutes at least per
student.

The Internal & the External viva-voce shall evaluate the project based on:
Actual work undertaken by the student

Student’s understanding of the organization and business environment
Outcome of the project

Utility of the project to the organization

Basic analytical capabilities

aprwNE

Copies of SIP report and records of evaluation shall be maintained by the Institute for a period of 3
academic years.
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Semester Specialization ‘ Marketing

305MKT Subject - Core

Course Title Contemporary Marketing Research

| Course Objectives:

1 To give the students an understanding of marketing research from both user's (management) and
doer's (the researchers) perspective.
2 To design and produce, evaluate a research proposal & understand the quality of research studies.
3 To learn the basic skills to conduct professional marketing research.
4 To understand the applications of business research tools in Marketing decision making.

Syllabus:

‘ Unit Contents Number of ‘
Number Sessions
1 Introduction to Marketing Research & Applications of Research Designs 6+2

Meaning & role of Marketing Research, Role of Information in Marketing
Decisions, Marketing Research — Sequence of Steps, Meaning & Types of
Research Designs — Exploratory, Descriptive & Causal, concept of validity &
reliability of a research study

Problem Formulation, The decision maker & the environment, alternative
courses of action, objectives of decision maker, consequences of alternative
courses of action, Translating decision problem toresearch problem, Preparing
& Evaluating Marketing Research proposal.

Formulating hypotheses using exploratory research techniques like literature
survey, experience survey & analysis of cases. Meaning of Qualitative
research & applications of Depth Interviews & Focus Groups in marketing
Applications of longitudinal studies in consumer panels, retail shop audit, media
audience tracking studies like . TRP, brand tracking studies

2 Data Collection — Questionnaires & Scaling 8+2
Designing questionnaires & observation forms for different marketing research
situations — study of consumer behavior, advertising copy research, media
research like readership surveys, opinion polls, retail surveys to understand
market potential /channel behavior, mystery shopping etc.

Scale Construction, Specifying domain, generating scale items, Basic Scaling
Issues like number of scale points, odd number Vs. even number of options,
balanced-Vs. unbalanced scale, forced Vs. unforced scale, verbal & pictorial
description of response categories

Scale Purification Process, Deleting scale items using correlations with total
score, Reliability Testing using Chronbach Alpha, Validity Testing — Face
Validity, Content Validity, Construct Validity, Convergent Validity & Discriminant
Validity

Applications of Likert, Semantic Differential & Staple Scales for positioning
research, brand research, attitudinal studies, customer satisfaction research

3 Experimental Designs & Sampling 6+2
Experimentation in Marketing Research, Basic/ classical designs: before —
after, before — after with control group, after only with control group, four group
— six study design. (Applications expected with interpretation of data)
Statistical Designs, Randomized Block Design, Latin Square Design, Factorial
Design, Applications related to Test Marketing , study of effectiveness of
advertising & sales promotional campaigns

Case studies on sampling decisions like defining universe, sampling unit,
sampling element, choice of sampling frame, determining sample size for
probability & non-probability sampling methods & choice of final sample by
using appropriate sampling methods in a step by step manner
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4 Data Analysis — | 7+2
Testing hypothesis for one mean, two means, two proportions. (Numerical
expected with practical examples)

Chi Square Test, Observed & Expected Frequencies, ANOVA — One & Two
way (numerical expected with practical examples)

Conjoint Analysis, Conceptual basis, procedure, type of data required, key
decision, how to interpret output, applications to study trade off patterns of
consumers as related to different levels of marketing mix elements (Question
on interpretation of output is expected)

Factor Analysis, Conceptual basis, type of data required, procedure, PCA,
Interpreting factor matrix (factor loadings, communalities, Eigen value),
determining number of factors using latent root criteria & scree test, interpreting
& naming factors, applications in consumer behavior studies (Question on
interpretation of output is expected)

5 Data Analysis — I 8+2
Cluster Analysis, Conceptual basis, type of data required, procedure;. clustering
methods — single linkage rule, how to interpret output, applications related to
psychographic & lifestyle market segmentation (Question on interpretation of
output is expected)

Multi- dimensional Scaling & Perceptual Mapping,Conceptual basis, type of
data required, key decision- attribute based versus non-attribute based
approaches, procedure, how to interpret output, applications related to target
market selection & positioning (Question on interpretation of output is expected)
Discriminant Analysis (Two Group Case), Conceptual basis, type of data
required, determining the coefficients, interpreting discriminant function &
classifying subjects using discriminant function, applications in marketing
(Question on interpretation of output is expected)
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| Learning Resources:

1

Text Books

Marketing Research - An Applied Orientation by Malhotra and Dash, Pearson
Education.

Marketing Research bX Churchill, Jr, G.A. and D. lacobucci (2005), South
Western: Thomson, 9" Edition.

Marketing Research, Zikmund, Babin, Cengage Learning

Reference Books

Marketing Research by Boyd, H.P., R. Westfall and S. F. Stasch. (2004), Delhi:
A.1.T.B.S., 7" Edition.

Marketing Research by Burns, G.A. and D. Bush (2006), South Western:
Thomson, 9" Edition.

Marketing Research by Green, P.E., Tull, D.S. and G. Albaum (2007), New
Delhi: Prentice Hall of India, 5" Edition.

Marketing Resarch by Suja Nair

Supplementary
Reading Material

Marketing Research by Luck, D.J. and R.S. Rubin (2005), New.Delhi: Prentice
Hall of India, 7th Edition.

Marketing Research by Tull, D.S. and D.I. Hawkins (2004), New Delhi: Prentice
Hall of India, 6" Edition.

Websites

http://www.nielsen.com/in/en.html
http://www.ipsos.com/
https://www.globalopinionpanels.cam/home
www.jdpower.com/

http://www.ncaer.org/
http://www.marketresearch.com/

Journals

A Paradigm for developing Better Measures of Marketing Constructs, by
Churchill, G. A., Jr., Journal of Marketing Research, 26 (February) 1979, pp.64-
73.

A Comparison of Multidimensional Scaling Methods for Perceptual Mapping by
Bijmolt, Tammo H. A.; Wedel, Michel. Journal of Marketing Research (JMR).
May99, Vol. 36 Issue 2, p277-285.

A survey of the challenges and pitfalls of cluster analysis application in market
segmentation by Tuma, Michael N.; Decker, Reinhold; Scholz, Soren W.,
International Journal of Market Research. 2011, Vol. 53 Issue 3, p391-414.
Improving the Predictive Power of Conjoint Analysis: The Use of Factor Analysis
and.Cluster Analysis by Hagerty, Michael R., Journal of Marketing Research
(IMR). May85, Vol. 22 Issue 2, p168-184.

An Examination of the Factors Influencing Consumers' Attitudes Towards Social
Media Marketing by Akar, Erkan; Topcu, Birol., Journal of Internet Commerce.
Jan-Mar2011, Vol. 10 Issue 1, p35-67.

Setting Sales Quotas with Conjoint Analysis by Darmon, René Y., Journal of
Marketing Research , Feb1979, Vol. 16 Issue 1, p133-140.
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Semester ‘ Specialization Marketing

306MKT Subject - Core

Course Title Consumer Behaviour

| Course Objectives:
1 To highlight the importance of understanding consumer behavior in Marketing.
2 To study the environmental and individual influences on consumers
3 To understand consumer behavior in Indian context.

Syllabus:
Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions

1 Environmental Influences on Consumer Behaviour 10+ 2
Basics:Meaning of Customers & Consumers, Consumer Roles, Consumerism
& De-marketing

Culture & Sub- Culture: Meaning, Characteristics & Relevance to Marketing
Decisions

Social Class: Meaning, Measurement, Effect on Lifestyles

Social Groups: Meaning & Group Properties & Reference Groups

Family: Family Life Cycle & Purchasing Decisions

Marketing Mix :Influence of marketing mix variables

2 Individual Determinants of Consumer Behavior 9+2
Personality & Self Concept: Meaning of Personality;.Influence on Purchase
Decisions

Motivation & Involvement: Types of Buying Motives, Motive Hierarchy,
Dimensions of Involvement

Learning & Memory: Meaning & Principal Elements of Learning,
Characteristics of Memory Systems; Recall

Attitudes: Meaning & Characteristics, Strategies for Changing Attitudes,
Intensions& Behaviors

3 Consumer Decision Making Process 8+2
Problem Recognition: Types of consumer decisions, types of Problem
Recognition, Utilizing.problem recognition information

Search & Evaluation: Types of information, Sources of Information Search,
Search, Experience and Credence Aspects -Marketing Implications
Situational Influences :en Purchase Decisions

Purchasing Process: Why do people shop? Store & Non-store Purchasing
Processes, Purchasing Patterns.

Post-purchase Evaluation & Behavior: Consumer Satisfaction,
Dissatisfaction, Customer Delight, Consumer Complaint Behavior, Post-
Purchase Dissonance.

4 Consumer Behavior Models 442
Howard Sheth Model

Engel — Blackwell — Miniard Model
5 Indian Consumer 442
Demographic & Socio-economic Profile

Measurement of social classes in India using Socio-Economic Classes (SEC) in
Urban & Rural Markets

Living Standards Measures (LSM).

Characteristics of BoP Consumers.
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| Learning Resources:

1

Text Books

Consumer Behaviour by David L. Loudon & Albert J. Della Bitta, Tata McGraw
Hill, 4" Edition

Consumer Behaviour, Hawkins, Mothersbaugh, Tata McGraw Hill

Consumer Behaviour, Batra, Kazmi, Excel Books

Reference Books

Consumer Behavior by Leon Schiffman, Leslie Kanuk, S.Ramesh Kumar,
Pearson, 10" Edition

Consumer Behaviour by Engel, Blackwell & Miniard

Consumer Behavior - An Indian perspective by Dr. S.L Gupta, Sumitra Pal,
Sultan Chand and Sons

Consumer Behavior - In Indian Perspective by Suja R. Nair, Himalaya
Publishing House.

Why we Buy: The Science of Shopping by Paco Underhill, Simon and Schuster
Paperbacks.

Supplementary
Reading Material

We are like that only by Rama Bijapurkar, Penguin

The Marketing White Book, Business World

Economic Times, Business Standard, Mint;Business world.( Brand equity &
Brand wagon)

Websites

http://www.censusindia.gov.in/default.aspx
http://www.ncaer.org/
http:// www.consumerpsychologist.com

Journals

The Disciplinary Status of Consumer Behavior: A Saciology of Science
Perspective on Key Controversies by;Macinnis, Deborah J.; Folkes, Valerie S.,
Journal of Consumer Research.'Apr2010, Vol. 36 Issue 6, p899-914.

Consumer Learning and Its Impact on Store Format Selection- Detail Only by
van Waterschoot, Walter; Kumar Sinha,-Piyush; Van Kenhove, Patrick; De Wulf,
Kristof., Journal of Retailing & Consumer Services. May2008, Vol. 15 Issue 3,
p194-210.

Interpersonal Influence on ConsumerBehavior: An Attribution Theory Approach
by Calder, Bobby J:; Burnkrant, Robert E. Journal of Consumer Research.
Jun77, Vol. 4 Issue 1, p29-38. 10p.

Satisfaction Attributions and Consumer Complaint Behavior by Krishnan, S.;
Valle, Valerie A., Advances in Consumer Research. 1979, Vol. 6 Issue 1, p 445-
449,
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Semester 1] Specialization Marketing

307MKT Subject - Eleciive

Course Title Integrated Marketing Communications

| Course Objectives: |
1 To provide an overview of the range of tools available for Marketing Communications
2 To provide an understanding of the basic principles of planning and execution in Marketing
Communications
3 To acquaint the students with concepts and techniques in the application for developing and
designing an effective advertising and sales promotion program.
4 To sensitize students to the various facets of advertising, public relation and promaotion
management.
5 To develop a managerial perspective and an informed decision-marking ability for effective-and
efficient tackling of promotional situations.

Syllabus:
Unit Contents Number of

Number Sessions
1 Introduction of IMC: IMC; IMC components — the foundation, advertising tools, | 5+ 1
promotional tools, integrated tools, refining the IMC program; The Value of IMC
plans — information technology, changes in channel power, increase in
competition, brand parity, integration of information; decline in the effectiveness
of mass-media advertising; The role of IMC

2 Advertising: Overview of advertising management; Advertising and IMC 5+1
process; Choosing an advertising agency; Advertising planning and research;
Advertising goals — building brand images, providing information, persuasion,
supporting marketing efforts; encouraging-action; Advertising budget; Media
Selection; The Creative Brief = objective, target audience, message theme,
support, constraints; Advertising design; Advertising media selection.

3 Sales Promotion:Thesscope.and role of sales promotion; Consumer oriented 5+1
sales promotion; Trade oriented sales promotion; Coordinating sales promotion
and advertising; Sales promotion:abuse; Personal selling

4 Public Relations, Publicity.and Corporate Adverting:Public Relations 5+1
Publicity and Corporate adverting; Public Relations functions; Creating positive
image building activities; Preventing or reducing image damage; sponsorship
and event marketing; Role of internet in PR.

5 Evaluation.Monitoring and Control:Measuring the effectiveness of 5+1
promotional ‘program; Conducting research to measure advertising
effectiveness; Testing process; Establishing the program for measuring the
advertising effects; Measuring the effectiveness of other program elements
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Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Integrated Advertising, Promotion and Marketing Communication by Clow,
Kenneth & Black, Donald, Pearson Education, New Delhi.
Advertising and Promotion by Belch, George and Belch, Michael, Tata McGraw
Hill, New Delhi.
2 Reference Books | Advertising Management by Jethwaney, Jaishree and Jain, Shruti, Oxford
University Press, New Delhi.
Advertising and Promotions, Semenik Allen, Cengage Leaning
Advertising and Promotion, SHH Kazmi, Satish Batra, Excel Books
Advertising and Promotions, Shah, D’Souza, Tata McGraw Hill
Integrated Marketing Communcation by Niraj Kumar
3 | Supplementary Advertising Principles and Practice by Wells, William, Burnett, John ad Moriarty,
Reading Material | Sandra, Pearson Education, New Delhi.
4 | Websites http://www.ascionline.org/
http://www.aaaindia.org/
http://www.jpssm.org/
5 | Journals The Evolution of IMC: IMC in a Customer-driven Marketplace, by Schultz, Don

E., Patti, Charles H. Journal of Marketing Communications. Apr2009, Vol. 15
Issue 2/3, p75-84.

Comparing the Application of Integrated Marketing Communication (IMC) In
Magazine Ads across Product Type and Time, by Grove, Stephen J., Carlson,
Les, Dorsch, Michael J. Journal of Advettising. Spring2007, Vol. 36 Issue 1,
p37-54.

The Brand Capability Value of Integrated Marketing Communication (IMC), by
Ratnatunga, Janek, Ewing, Michael T. Journal of Advertising. Winter2005, Vol.
34 Issue 4, p25-40

Performance Auditing of Integrated Marketing Communication (IMC) Actions
and Outcomes, by Reid, Mike. Journal of Advertising. Winter2005, Vol. 34 Issue
4, p41-54

Integrated Marketing Communication (IMC) and Brand Identity As Critical
Components Of Brand Equity Strategy, by Madhavaram, Sreedhar,
Badrinarayanan; Vishag,,McDonald, Robert E. Journal of Advertising.
Winter2005, Vol. 34 Issue 4, p69-80

IMCi:Has anything-really changed? A new perspective on an old definition, by
Luck, Edwina, Moffatt, Jennifer. Journal of Marketing Communications.
Dec2009, Val. 15 Issue 5, p311-325.

Perceptions of IMC after a Decade of Development: Who's at the Wheel, and
How Can We Measure Success? By Swain, William N., Journal of Advertising
Research. Mar2004, Vol. 44 Issue 1, p46-65.

The Self-Activation Effect of Advertisements: Ads Can Affect Whether and How
Consumers Think about the Self by Trampe, Debra, Stapel, Diederik A., Siero,
Frans W. Journal of Consumer Research. Apr2011, Vol. 37 Issue 6, p1030-
1045

How Advertising Affects Sales: Meta-Analysis of Econometric Results by
Assmus, Gert, Farley, John U., Lehmann, Donald R. Journal of Marketing
Research (JMR). Feb1984, Vol. 21 Issue 1, p65-74.

The March to Reliable Metrics by Smit, Edith G., Neijens, Peter C. Journal of
Advertising Research. Mar2011 Supplement, Vol. 51, p124-135.
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Semester Specialization Marketing

308MKT Subject - Eleciive

Course Title Product Management

| Course Objectives: |
1 To make the students appreciate the various facets of the job of a product manager.
2 To highlight the strategic role of product management in organizational and functional context.
3 To emphasize the financial and other metrics of effective product management.

Syllabus:
Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Introduction to Product Management: 3+1
Product management as a basis of marketing organization structure.
Role of product manager, skills required for product management.
Product management in consumer product industry Vs.industrial product
industry.
Overview of product level marketing plans
2 Defining Competitive Set & Category Attractiveness Analysis 6+1
Levels of Market Competition & Its Product Strategy Implications: product form
level, product category level, generic level, budget competition
Methods of Determining Competitors: managerial judgment & customer based
measures, competitor selection, sources of competitor. infermation — primary &
secondary sources
Assessing competitors’ current objectives & strategies, differential advantage
analysis, Predicting competitors’ future strategies.
Category attractiveness analysis through aggregate market factors & category
factors
3 Understanding Consumer.Needs & Converting into Products 5+1
3.1 Capturing consumer voice , converting it into ideas, concepts & products,
Using QFD & Kano diagram for new product development, Selecting product —
price performance levels,
3.2 New Product Failure
4 Developing Product Strategy: 6+1
4.1Elements of a product strategy, setting objectives, selection of strategic
alternatives — increasing sales, market share, profitability
4.2Packaging & Labeling design
4.3-Positioning: Choice of customer targets, competitor targets & core strategy
—icost/price, non-price strategies
4.4 Product strategy over the life cycle — strategies for introduction, growth,
maturity & decline stages
5 FinancialAnalysis & Performance Appraisal for Product Management 5+1
5.1 Sales Analysis: Overview, Value of sales analysis, roadblocks.
5.2 Profitability Analysis: Conventional product profit accounting, Contribution
oriented systems, Using the contribution margin rate.
5.3 Strategic Framework for Control: Price-quantity decomposition, penetration
— Market size decomposition
5.4 Capital Budgeting for Product Strategy:Overview and Basics
5.5 Marketing Metrics: Customer Based Metrics, Product-Market Based
Metrics, Marketing Mix Metrics, Web Metrics.
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Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Product Management by Lehmann & Winer, TMGH, 4" Edition
Product & Brand Management, U.C. Mathur, Excel books
2 Reference Books | Product Management by Dr. C. Anandan, TMGH
3 | Supplementary Selling Blue Elephants by Moskowitz and Gofman, Wharton School Publishing,
Reading Material | Pearson Power.
Twenty-one Immutable Laws of Marketing by Ries & Trout
4 | Websites http://www.entrepreuner.com/
http://www. ibef.org/
5 | Journals A Combined QFD and Integer Programming Framework to Determine Attribute

Levels for Conjoint Study by Chaudhuri, Atanu; Bhattacharyya, Malay.,
International Journal of Production Research. Dec2009, Vol. 47 |ssue 23,
p6633-6649.

The Application of Quality Function Deployment (QFD) in Product Development
- The Case Study of Taiwan Hypermarket Building by, Shih-Shue Sher., Journal
of American Academy of Business, Cambridge. Mar2006, Vol. 8 Issue 2, p292-
295.

QFD Analysis: From Customer Needs to Design Specs by Gould, Lawrence S.,
Automotive Design & Production. Jun2006, Vol. 118 Issue6, p56-57.

Virtual Product Experience and Customer Participation—A Chance for
Customer-centred, Really New Products by Fller, Johann; Matzler, Kurt.,
Technovation. Jun/Jul2007, Vol. 27 Issue 6/7, p378-387.

Developing New-to-the-Firm Products: The Role of Micro-political Strategies by
Sethi, Rajesh; Igbal, Zafar; Sethi, Anju., Journal of Marketing. Mar2012, Vol. 76
Issue 2, p99-115. 17p. 1

The Impact of Product Market Strategy-Organizational Culture Fit on Business
Performance by Yarbrough, Larry; Morgan, Neil; Vorhies, Douglas., Journal of
the Academy:of Marketing Science. Aug2011, Vol. 39 Issue 4, p555-573
Transforming the Nature and Scope of New Product Development by Pitta,
Dennis; Pitta, Elizabeth., Journal of Product & Brand Management. 2012, Vol.
21 Issue 1, p35-46. 12p

Why Most Product Launches Fail? by Schneider, Joan; Hall, Julie. Harvard
Business Review. Apr2011, Vol. 89 Issue 4, p21-23.

Do You-Need a New Product-Development Strategy? by MacCormack, Alan;
Crandall, William; Henderson, Paul; Toft, Peter., Research Technology
Management. Jan/Feb2012, Vol. 55 Issue 1, p34-43.

The Impact.of the Corporate Mind-set on New Product Launch Strategy and
Market Performance by Talke, Katrin; Hultink, Erik Jan., Journal of Product
Innovation Management. Mar2010, Vol. 27 Issue 2, p220-237.

Evolution of Firms' Product Strategy Over the Lifecycle of Technology-Based
Industries: A Case Study of the Global Mobile Phone Industry, 1980-2009 by
Giachetti, Claudio; Marchi, Gianluca., Business History. Dec 2010, Vol. 52 Issue
7, p1123-1150.

Competitive Strategies For NewProduct Marketing Over The Life Cycle by
Kotler, Philip., Management Science. Dec1965, Vol. 12 Issue 4, pB-104-B-119.
Assessing Marketing Performance: Don't Settle for a Silver Metric by Ambler,
Tim; Roberts, John H. Journal of Marketing Management. Sep2008, Vol. 24
Issue 7/8, p733-750.

Marketing and Firm Value: Metrics, Methods, Findings, and Future Directions by
Srinivasan, Shuba; Hanssens, Dominique M. Journal of Marketing Research
(IMR). Jun2009, Vol. 46 Issue 3, p293-312. 20p.

Taking on the Metrics Challenge by Patterson, Laura. Journal of Targeting,
Measurement & Analysis for Marketing. Sep2007, Vol. 15 Issue 4, p270-276.
7p. 1
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Semester Specialization Marketing

309MKT Subject - Elective

Course Title Strategic Brand Management

| Course Objectives: |
1 To introduce different approaches to measuring brand equity.
2 To provide conceptual framework for managing brands strategically.
3 To emphasize the role of brands, the concept of brand equity and the advantages of creating
strong brands.
4 To provide insights into how to create profitable brand strategies by building, measuring and
managing brand equity.

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 1.1 Introduction to Brand Management: What is a brand?:Why.do brands 6+1

matter? Branding challenges and opportunities , Brand equity concept ,
Strategic brand management process , Identifying and establishing brand
positioning, Planning and implementing brand marketing programs, Measuring
and interpreting brand performance, Growing and sustain brand equity

1.2 Brand Equity Models: Brand Asset Valuation; Aaker Model, BRANDZ
,Brand Resonance

2 2.1 Identifying and Establishing Brand Positioning and Values: Customer 5+1
based Brand equity , Brand knowledge, Sources of brand equity - Brand
Awareness, Brand Image, The Four steps of brand building, Creating customer
value, Identifying and establishing brand positioning, Positioning guidelines

3 3.1 Planning and Implementing Brand Marketing Programs: Choosing 5+1
brand elements to build brand equity, Options and tactics for Brand, New
perspectives on marketing, Integrating marketing communication to build brand
equity, Conceptualizing the leveraging:process, Co- branding, Celebrity
Endorsements

4 4.1 Measuring and Interpreting Brand Performance: The brand value chain, | 4 +1
Designing brand tracking studies, Capturing customer mind set through
guantitative research technigues

5 5.1 Growing and Sustaining Brand Equity: Brand architecture, Brand 5+1
hierarchy, Designing brand strategy, New products, Brand extensions-
advantage and disadvantage, Reinforcing brands, Revitalizing brands, Brand
failures.
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| Learning Resources:

1 Text Books

rd

Strategic Brand Management by Kevin Lane Keller, Pearson, 3™ Edition
Strategic Brand Management by J N Kapferer, Kogan Page, 4" Edition.

2 Reference Books

Building Brand Equity by Aaker

Ingredient Branding : Making the Invisible Visible by Kotler Philip

Brand Vision To Brand Evaluation by Leslie Chernatony

Branding Concepts & Process by Debashish Pati

Brand Positioning Strategies for Competitive Advantage by Subrato Sen Gupta
Managing Indian Brands by S. Ramesh Kumar

Product & Brand Management, U. C. Mathur, Excel Books

3 | Supplementary
Reading Material

The Economic Times — Weekly Brand Equity Supplement
The Financial Express - Weekly Brand Wagon Supplement
The Business Standard — Weekly Strategist Supplement

4 Websites

http://www.ibef.org/
http://www.brandequity.com/

5 Journals

How Important Are Brands? A Cross-Category, Cross-Country Study by
Fischer, Marc; Volckner, Franziska; Sattler; Henrik.; Journal of Marketing
Research (JMR), Oct2010, Vol. 47 Issue 5.

Increasing shareholder value through building Customer and Brand Equityby
Bick, Geoffrey N. C., Journal of Marketing Management, Feb2009, Vol. 25 Issue
1/2

Conceptualizing, Measuring, Managing Customer-Based Brand Equity by
Keller, Kevin Lane., Journal of Marketing, Jan1993, Vol. 57 Issue 1.

Assessing long-term brand potential by Keller; Kevin Lane; Lehmann, Donald
R., Journal of Brand Management, Sep2009, Vol. 17 Issue 1.

Measurement of Brand Equity of Brand.Ilndia by Patel, Pratik C. Journal of
Marketing & Communication, Jan2010, Vol. 5 Issue 3.

Exploring Customer-Brand Engagement: Definition and Themes, by Hollebeek,
Linda. Journal of Strategic Marketing. Nov 2011, Vol. 19 Issue 7, p555-573.
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Semester ‘ Specialization ‘ Marketing

3LOMKT Subject - Elective

Course Title Personal Selling Lab

| Course Objectives:

1 To outline the areas in which sales executives make decisions

2 To emphasize the role of sales executives as planners of sales operations and a key figure in
implementing marketing strategies.
3 To give hands on inputs on the selling process.

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions

1

1.1 Introduction to Personal Selling & Salesmanship: Defining.Personal 5+1
selling and salesmanship, Selling as a profession, Objectives and importance
of personal selling, Essentials of Personal Selling, Traditional & Modern.Selling
Approach, Ethics in Selling, Role of Selling in Marketing, Types of selling,
Qualities of Winning Sales Professionals-Physical, Mental, Social and

Character Traits.

1.2 Introduction to Theories of Selling: AIDA, Right set of circumstances
theory of selling , Buying Formula theory of selling; Behavioral Equation theory
2 Personal Selling Process-I:Prospecting- objectives, sources and methods, 5+1
Lead Generation, Getting appointment, Sales Responsibilities and Preparation;
Pre approach-step toward sales planning-elements of sales call planning;
Customer need discovery & Analysis; Approach- sales presentation/
demonstration- selection of appropriate presentation method, essentials of
presentation, sales presentation mix- persuasive communication, visual
presentation and dramatization, Use of questions- Direct questions, non-
directive guestions, rephrasing, redirect guestions;

3 Personal Selling Process—=li: Handling objection- hidden, stalling, no need, 5+1
money objection, etc., objection handling techniques, Closing the sale- reading
buying signals, closing techniques- the alternative choice, assumptive, the
compliment, the'summary, the continuous, the minor point, the tea account, the
standing room and the probability; Follow up after sales- Discuss service
requirements, handling.complaints, Key Account Management.

4 Personal Selling Skills: Negotiation, Communication, Listening Skills, 5+1
Presentation and Demonstration, , Body Language- Space, Moments, Eye
Contacts & Postures, Follow up Calls, Writing Effective Sales Letters and e-
mails, Positive Mental Attitude, Goal Setting, Effective Dressing, Managing
Yourself and Time, Cold Call Mechanism.

5 Personal:Selling: Applications and Situations: Selling of services- financial, | 5+ 1
IT and telecommunication, advertising, education (Coaching and institutions);
Selling of industrial products- raw material, capital goods, supplies; Selling of
consumer goods- convenience, shopping and specialty goods; International
selling; Selling in rural markets; Selling high and low involvement products;
Selling to new and existing customers/ Market; Selling to end users,
intermediaries, government departments and agencies; Selling individual and
groups.
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| Learning Resources:
1 | Text Books

Fundamentals of Selling by Charles M. Futrell, Tata McGraw Hill 10" Edition
A B C’ s of Selling by Charles M. Futrell, AITBS, New Delhi,
World Class Selling by Roy Chitwood, JAICO Publishing House

2 Reference Books

Successful Selling Solutions by Julian Clay, Viva Books

Value Added Selling by Tom Reilly, TMGH 2004 Edition.

Achieving Sales Excellence by Howard Stevens, Viva Books Pvt. Ltd.

Power Sales Presentation by Stephan Schiffman, Adams Media Corporations.
Sales Essentials by Stephan Schiffman, Avon Massachusset

3 | Supplementary
Reading Material

Smarter Selling by Keith Dugdale & Lambert, Prentice Hall.

Successful Sales- Get Brilliant Results Fast by Pauline Rowson,.Viva Books.
Successful Selling Skills by Richard Denny, The Sunday Times.

The Art and Science of Negotiation by Raiffa H, Cambridge: Belknap/Harvard
Press, 1982.

Getting to Yes by Fisher R and Ury W, Harmondsworth Middlesex, GB'Penguin
Books, 1983.

4 Websites

www.professionalsalestips.com
www.eyeonsales.com
www.semi.org
www.salescareersonline.com

5 Journals

Journal of Personal Selling &Sales Management
Journal of Consumer Marketing
Sales and Marketing - Nielsen Business Media
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Semester Specialization Marketing

BLIMKT Subject - Elective

Course Title Qualitative Marketing Research

| Course Objectives:
1 To introduce the qualitative research applications in Marketing
2 To familiarize commonly used strategies in qualitative research

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Introduction to Qualitative Research 6+1

Meaning & role of Qualitative Research, Situations in which QR is needed,
concept of validity & reliability in qualitative research, limitations

Difference between qualitative & quantitative research, career opportunities in
Qualitative Research, Skills required

Depth Interviews:Concept,Use, Techniques to elicit data

Focus Groups: Role & qualities of a Moderator, Setting, Number of groups,
Number of participants & composition, Duration of focus groups

2 Projective Techniques 3+1
Principle of projection, applications

Association, construction, expression based technigues
How to design & interpret

Zaltman’s Metaphor Elicitation Techniques

3 Observation Methods in Qualitative Research 6+1
Types of Observations
Designing Observation forms

4 Ethnography & Grounded Theory: Concept Overview, Methodological 6+1
details, Types, Applications; Limitations.
5 Physiological Measures: Developments in neuro-sciences, applications in 4+1

marketing research & marketing
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| Learning Resources:
1 | Text Books

An Introduction to Qualitative Research by Uwe Flick, 4™ Edition, SAGE
Research Methods in the Social Sciences by Bridget Somekh & Cathy Lewin,
5" Edition, SAGE India

2 Reference Books

Qualitative Research Methods in Public Relations and Marketing
Communications by Christine Baymon & Immy Holloway, 1* Edition, Routledge

3 | Supplementary
Reading Material

Qualitative Journeys —Minichiello& Kottler, SAGE

4 Websites

http://www.qualitative-research.net/
http://slu.edu/organizations/grc/QRjournals.html/

5 Journals

Methodology or "Methodolatry"? An evaluation of focus groups and.depth
interviews, by David Stokes; Richard Bergin., Qualitative Market Research: An
International Journal. Feb2006, Vol. 9 Issue 1, p26-37.

A Critical Comparison of Offline Focus groups, Online Focus groups.and e-
Delphi, by Bruiggen, Elisabeth; Willems, Pieter., International Journal of Market
Research. 2009, Vol. 51 Issue 3, p363-381

Quantification of Transcripts from Depth Interviews, Open=ended Responses
and Focus Groups by Schmidt, Marcus., International Journal of Market
Research. 2010, Vol. 52 Issue 4, p483-508.

Interpreting Consumer Perceptions of Advertising: An Application of the
Zaltman Metaphor Elicitation Technique, by Coulter, Robin A.; Zaltman, Gerald,;
Coulter, Keith S., Journal of Advertising. Winter2001; Vol. 30 Issue 4, p1-21.
Using the Zaltman Metaphor Elicitation Technique to Understand Brand
Images, by Coulter, Robin Higie; Zaltman, Gerald., Advances in Consumer
Research. 1994, Vol. 21 Issue 1, p501-507.

Hanging Around with People. Ethnography in Marketing Research and
Intelligence Gathering, by Boddy, Clive R., Marketing Review. Summer2011,
Vol. 11 Issue2, p151-163

Doing Sensory Ethnography in'Consumer Research, by Valtonen, Anu;
Markuksela, Vesa; Moisander, Johanna., International Journal of Consumer
Studies. Jul2010, Vol. 34 Issue 4, p375-380.

The Influence ofdnfermation about Labour Abuses on Consumer Choice of
Clothes: A Grounded Theory Approach, by Valor, Carmen., Journal of
Marketing Management. Sep2007, Vol. 23 Issue 7/8, p675-695.
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Semester Specialization Marketing

312MKT Subject - Elective

Course Title Customer Relationship Management

| Course Objectives:

1 To introduce the core concepts of CRM paradigm

2 To emphasize CRM as a business strategy

3 To highlight the role of appropriate business process and technology management capabilities in
managing customer relationships.
4 To help the students understand the organizational context of CRM.

Syllabus:
‘ Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Fundamentals of CRM: 5+1

1.1 Understanding Relationships: What is a relationship? Relationship
Quality, Why companies want relationships with.customers? Why companies
do not want relationships with customers? Why customers want relationships
with suppliers? Why customers do not want relationships with suppliers?
Customer satisfaction — loyalty — business performance linkage, Satisfaction-
profit chain, Relationship management theories.

1.2 Introduction to CRM: Introduction , Strategic CRM, Operational CRM,
Analytical CRM, Collaborative CRM, Misunderstandings about CRM, Defining
CRM, CRM constituencies, Commercial and not-for-profit context of CRM,
Models of CRM.

2 Managing the Customer Life Cycle: 5+1

2.1 Customer Acquisition: Whatis a new customer? Understanding
Customer Value, Sources of Customer Value, Customization, Value from
products — services — processes — people — physical evidence — customer
communication =channels, Customer Value estimates, Prospecting, KPI of a
customer acquisition.programme, Making the right offer, Operational CRM
tools, Support from CRM Analytics.

2.2 Customer Retention & Development: What is customer retention?
Managing Customer Retention or Value Retention? Economics of Customer
Retention, Which Customers to retain? Strategies of Customer Retention,
Positive Customer Retention Strategies, KPI for a Customer Retention
programme, Strategies for Customer Development, Strategies for terminating
Customer Relationships.
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3 CRM Mechanics: 5+1

3.1 CRM Enablers: Customer related database, Developing a Customer
related database, Database technology and hardware platform options,
Maintaining the database, Desirable Database Attributes, Data Integration,
Data Warehousing, Data Marts , Data Access and Interrogation, Data Mining,
Privacy Issues.

3.2 Customer Portfolio Management: What is a portfolio? Who is the
Customer? Basic disciplines for CPM, Market Segmentation, Sales
Forecasting, Activity Based Costing, Lifetime Value Estimation, CPM in the B2B
context, Strategically Significant Customers, Seven Core Customer
Management Strategies.

3.3 Customer Relationship Management and Customer Experience
Management: What is meant by Customer Experience? Experiential Marketing
Strategies and Tactics, Customer Experience and the role of CRM.

4 Managing Networks for CRM: What is a Network? Business Networks, 5+1
Network Position, Concept of Focal firm, Business Networks and CRM, SCOPE
of CRM, Supplier Networks, Distribution Networks, Management of Networks,
Supplier Relationships, Product Development, Supplier Accreditation
Programmes, Process Alignment, E Procurement; Partners in Value Creation,
Alliance between non-competing firms, Alliance between competing firms,
Benchmarking Partners, Customer Advocacy groups, Sponsors, Partners in
Value Delivery.

5 Organizational Issues and CRM: Organizational:roles and CRM, Strategic 5+1
goals of CRM, Conventional customer management structures, Network and
Virtual organizations, Persen-to-person contacts, Key Account Management,
Team Selling, Employees and Internal Marketing, Empowerment, Employee

Relationship Management.
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| Learning Resources:

1

Text Books

Customer Relationship Management — Concepts and Technologies by Francis
Buttle, 2" Edition, Butterworth Heinemann, Elsevier
Relationship Management — Text and Cases, S. Shajahan, TMGH.

Reference Books

Handbook of Relationship Marketing by Jagdish Sheth and Atul Parvatiyar,
Response Books, Sage Publications.

Customer Relationship Management — Perspectives from the Marketplace by
Simon Knox, Stan Maklan, Adrian Payne, joePeppard and Lynette Ryals,
Elsevier.

Total Relationship Management by Evert Gummesson, Elsevier.
Understanding CRM, Seema Girdhar, Excel Books

Supplementary
Reading Material

Relationship Marketing edited by Adam Lindgreen, ICFAI books.
Customer Relationship Management in Indian Banking Industry by R K Uppal,
New Century Publications, 2008, 1* Edition.

Websites

http://www.crm.com/
http://www.crmondemand.oracle.com/

Journals

Customer Relationship Management: Emerging Practice, Rrocess, and
Discipline by Parvatiyar, Atul; Sheth, Jagdish N., Journal of Economic & Social
Research. 2001, Vol. 3 Issue 2, pl.

A Strategic Framework for Customer Relationship Management by Payne,
Adrian; Frow, Pennie. Journal of Marketing. Oct2005, Vol. 69 Issue 4, p167-
176.

Customer Relationship Management; from Strategy to Implementation by
Payne, Adrian; Frow, Pennie. Journal of Marketing Management. Feb2006, Vol.
22 Issue 1/2, p135-168.

Making Customer Relationship Management Work: The Measurement and
Profitable Management of Customer Relationships by Ryals, Lynette. Journal of
Marketing. Oct2005; Vol. 69.1ssue 4, p252-261.

The Role of Customer Gratitude in Relationship Marketing by Palmatier, Robert
W; Jarvis, Cheryl Burke; Bechkoff, Jennifer R; Kardes, Frank R. Journal of
Marketing. Sep2009, Vol. 73 Issue 5, p1-18. Important Elements in Customer
Relationship Management byMandic, Miroslav. International Journal of
Management Cases. Sep2011, Vol. 13 Issue 3, p347-351.

Types of Customer:Relationship Ending Processes by Michalski, Silke. Journal
of Marketing Management. Nov2004, Vol. 20 Issue 9/10, p977-999.

Building Service Relationships: It's All About Promises by Bitner, Mary Jo.
Journal of the Academy of Marketing Science. Fall95, Vol. 23 Issue 4, p246-251
Referral Programs and Customer Value by Schmitt, Philipp; Skiera, Bernd; Van
den Bulte, Christophe. Journal of Marketing. Jan2011, Vol. 75 Issue 1, p46-59.
Customer Lifetime Value Measurement by Borle, Sharad; Singh, Siddharth S.;
Jain, Dipak C. Management Science. Jan2008, Vol. 54 Issue 1, p100-112.
Undervalued or Overvalued Customers: Capturing Total Customer Engagement
Value. By Kumar, V.; Aksoy, Lerzan; Donkers, Bas; Venkatesan, Rajkumar;
Wiesel, Thorsten; Tillmanns, Sebastian. Journal of Service Research. Aug2010,
Vol. 13 Issue 3, p297-310.
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SEINES G Specialization ‘ Marketing

313MKT Subject - Elective

Course Title Marketing and the Law

| Course Objectives:

1 To understand the pervasive impact of the Law and our legal system on marketing activities.

2 To highlight how decisions of marketing executives raise issues which should be carefully
evaluated as to their legal consequences before they are implemented?
3 The underline that a failure to appreciate these legal implications can lead to seriously damaging, if
not disastrous, results for a firm
4 To address National Laws and court decisions that relate to the four main areas of marketing study,
the so-called “four P’s” of marketing: product, price, place and promotion.

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions

1 5+1

1.1 Legal Issues Relating to Product Quality and Material Movement:
Conditions and warranties, Implied Conditions, Rule of Caveat Emptor [Buyer
Beware], Transfer of Title, Nemo Dat Quod Non Habet, Sea Transit: FOB, CIF,
Ex. Ship, Rights of Unpaid Seller, Lien, Stoppage in Transit, Right to Resale,
Remedies.

1.2 Laws Relating to Services Marketing: Concept of Service, Deficiency in
Service, Real Estates, Hospital, Carrier, Courier, Bank, Transport Service

2 Legal Aspects of Unfair Trade Practices and Some Aspects of 5+1
Advertisement: False and Misleading Representation, Bait Advertising and
Bargain Price, Offering Gifts and Prizes and Conducting Promotional Contests,
Withholding Information about Final Results of scheme, Hoarding and
Destruction of Goods, Spurious Goods

3 3.1 Legal Aspects of Restrictive Trade Practices:Salient features of MRTP 5+1
Act, Tie-in Sales or Full Line Forcing, Price Fixing, Predatory Pricing, Exclusive
Dealing, Territorial Restriction, Refuse:to Deal

3.2 Restraint of Trade: Knock—Out Agreement, Trade Combination, Solus or
Exclusive Dealing Agreements, Restraints upon Employees

4 4.1 Laws Relating to Common Carrier: Definition of Common Carrier, 5+1
Distinction between Common Carrier and Pvt. Carrier, Liabilities of Common
Carrier

4.2 Legal Aspects of Delivering Goods for Carriage and Warehousing:
Rights,of Warehouse, Duties and Liabilities of Warehouse

5 Campetition Law: Introduction, Meaning, Anti-competitive Agreement, Anti- 5+1
competitive /Agreement: Competition Commission of India (CCI) Competition
within'india & Effects Doctrine, Anti-competitive Agreement: Horizontal, Anti-
competitive Agreement: Fixing Prices - Cartels, Anti-competitive Agreement:
Vertical Agreements, Anti-competitive Agreement: Limiting and Controlling
Preduction & Investment.
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| Learning Resources:
1 | Text Books

Elements of Mercantile Law, N.D. Kapoor, 32nd Edition , Sultan Chand

2 Reference Books

Sale of Goods Act, by Avtar Singh

Consumer Protection, by Dr. V.K. Agarwal

Competition Law, by D.P. Mittal

Legal aspects of Marketing Strategy, by Louis W. Stern / Thomas L. Eovaldi
Law of Contract, by Avtar Singh

Law of Carriage, by Avtar Singh

3 | Supplementary
Reading Material

Bare Acts of

Sale of Goods Act 1930 (Unit one)

Consumer Protection Act, 1986 (Unit two)

The Monopolies & Restrictive Trade Practices Act (Unit three)
Sale of Good Act1930 &The Carriers Act, 1865( Unit four)
The Competition Act,2002 (Unit five)

All India Reports (AIR)

4 Websites

http://www.ebc-india.com
www.lawmin.nic.in
www.mca.gov.in/Ministry/mrtpc.html
WwWWw.eximguru.com

http://www.wto.org
http://www.indianembassy.org/policy/W-TO
http://www.indlii.org
http://www.caiindia.org/

WWW.CCi.gov.in

5 Journals

Journal of Consumer Affairs

Journal of Consumer Marketing

Indian Law Journal

Legal news & views( Magazine with latest articles)
LawZ (Magazine )
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Semester Specialization ‘ Marketing

BLAMKT Subject - Elective

Course Title Finance for Marketing Professionals

| Course Objectives:
1 To understand the marketing — finance interdependence
2 To learn about the cost implications in marketing decisions

Syllabus:
Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Marketing Finance Interface: Marketing Finance Interdependence — Cost 5+1
Revenue Investment Framework in Marketing
2 Marketing Planning : Marketing Organization for Planning - Corporate 5+1

Planning and Marketing — Budgetary Control in Marketing — Product Planning
and Development

3 Marketing Decisions: Cost Analysis in Marketing Decisions — Marginal 5+1
Costing and Break-even Analysis — Investment and Capital Budgeting
Decisions related to Marketing

4 Performance Evaluation in Marketing: Measures for Marketing Performance | 5+ 1
— Evaluation of Salesmen Performance — Evaluation of Advertisement
Expenditure and Advertisement Effectiveness — Evaluation of Distribution —
Evaluation of Marketing Research — Marketing Audit

5 Marketing Control : MIS and Control Systems in Marketing - Control on 5+1
Working Capital — Receivables Management — Profit Control — Product Line
Accounting and Variance Analysis — Product Life Cycle Profitability — Customer
Life Cycle Profitability — Evaluation of Pricing Strategy
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| Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Marketing Management — A Finance Emphasis by B K Chatterjee, Jaico Books
Marketing Finance, Turning Strategies into Shareholder Value by Keith Ward,
Elsevier Butterworth Heinemann

2 Reference Books | Financial Management by Prasanna Chandra, TMGH, 7" Edition

3 | Supplementary Market Opportunity Analysis: Text and Cases by Stevens, Sherwood, Dunn and

Reading Material | Loudon, Jaico Books.
4 | Websites http://www.marketingdecisions.net/
5 | Journals Marketing Performance Measurement Systems: Does Comprehensiveness

Really Improve Performance? by Homburg, Christian; Artz, Martin; Wieseke,
Jan., Journal of Marketing. May2012, Vol. 76 Issue 3, p56-77.

Marketing Performance Measurement Ability and Firm Performance by
O'Sullivan, Don; Abela, Andrew V., Journal of Marketing. Apr2007, Vol. 71 Issue
2, p79-93.

The Management Challenge of Marketing Costs by Culliton, James W., Harvard
Business Review. Jan1948, Vol. 26 Issue 1, p74-88

Improved Efficiency and Reduced Cost in Marketing by Parker, Donald D.,
Journal of Marketing. Aprl1962, Vol. 26 Issue 2, p15-21.

The marketing accounting interface -- lessons and limitations by Sidhu, Baljit K.;
Roberts, John H., Journal of Marketing Management. Sep2008, Vol. 24 Issue
718, p669-686.

The Marketing Budgeting Process: Marketing Management Implications by
Piercy, Nigel F., Journal of Marketing: Oct87, Vol. 51 Issue 4, p45-59.

New Approaches to Analyzing Marketing. Profitability by Mossman, Frank H.;
Fischer, Paul M.; Crissy, W. J. E., Journal of Marketing. Apr1974, Vol. 38 Issue
2, p43-48.

Price-Cost Planning by Fogg, C. Davis; Kohnken, Kent H., Journal of Marketing.
Aprl978, Vol:42 Issue 2, p97-106.

Determining marketing.costs and returns in alternative marketing channels by
Hardesty, Shermain D.; Leff, Penny., Renewable Agriculture & Food Systems,
Mar2010, Vol. 25 Issue 1, p24-34.

Marketing Audits and Auditing: Diagnosis through Intervention by Brownlie,
Douglas.; Journal of Marketing Management. Jan-Apr1996, Vol. 12 Issue 1-3,
p99-112,

The Marketing Audit and Organizational Performance: An Empirical Profiling by
Taghian, Mehdi; Shaw, Robin N., Journal of Marketing Theory & Practice.
Fall2008, Vol. 16 Issue 4, p341-349.

Improving Marketing Accountability through Better Management of the Market
Research Process by Shaw, Robert; White, Carolyn., Journal of Marketing
Management. Nov99, Voal. 15 Issue 8, p857-880.
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Semester Specialization ‘ Marketing

315MKT Subject - Elective

Course Title Marketing of Financial Services — |

| Course Objectives:

1 Familiarizing the students with the various financial services and products in the liberalized Indian
economy.

2 To provide an in-depth perspective of the equity and bond markets.

3 Equipping the students with the practices and processes in the Mutual Fund and Insurance
Industry.

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of

Number Sessions

1 Financial Market Fundamentals: 5+1

Equity Markets: Capital Markets, Role in the Economy; Brief History of BSE
and NSE. Trade lifecycle of a financial instrument, Market Participants in the
Equity markets with perspectives on '‘Buy' side and 'Sell* side, Key
terminologies related to the Equity markets.

Bond Markets: Introduction to bond markets, how bond markets operate? Key
terminologies related to the bond markets. Regulatory.aspects of the Bond
Markets, Key players in the Bond Markets (such as FllIs; Hedge Funds etc.)
Debt Instruments: Debt instruments and their classification based on type of
issuer, and basis characteristics. Money Market Instruments (such as
Certificate of Deposit, Re-purchase "Agreements etc.),

2 Mutual Funds: 5+1
Mutual Funds and their importance, Various entities of a Mutual Fund and their
respective roles - Basic understanding of NAV and calculation of a Fund - NAV,
Types of Loads and Commissions charged on Mutual Funds and their
significance

Types of Mutual Funds in India, classified on the basis of Structure, Investment
Objective, and Investment Plan, Relative risks associated with various Mutual
Funds in India

Basic understanding of ETFs and their key features. Differences between a
Mutual Fund and an ETF

Basic understanding of.a 'Hedge Fund' and its key features, Process of Fund
Selection and various related measurement parameters, Various expenses
incurred by a Fund

Guidelines for Investment Advisors while selling Mutual Funds to the clients.

3 Insurance; 5+1
Basics.of Insurance:Basic understanding of insurance products, types of
insurance: policies — Role of IRDA, Insurance industry in India.

General Insurance: Types of liabilities covered, extent of insurance value, and
conditions

Life Insurance: Basic concept of Life Insurance, its beneficiaries and its types,
Concept of Term Insurance and its various types, Traditional Life Insurance and
its difference from Term Insurance, Whole Life Policy and Endowment Policy
and the differences between them. ULIP and its comparison with conventional
plans and Mutual Funds.

Marketing Channels in Insurance Markets: Various channel members in the
Industry such as Insurance Agents, Distributors, etc.

Basic Understanding: Property and casualty/liability insurance, Commercial
Insurance, Health Insurance.
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4 Other Financial Services: 5+1
Leasing / Hire Purchase: Definition, meaning, types, process, advantages,
limitations, financial implications
Housing Finance: Major institutions involved, types, rate of interest,
advantages, scenario in India
Credit Cards: Meaning, types, growth, advantages and disadvantages, growth
in India.
Credit Rating Services: Origin, definition, advantages, credit rating agencies -
global and Indian, symbols, CRISIL, ICRA, equity ratings, CIBIL, scope in India.
Other Services: Factoring, forfeiting, bill discounting, consumer finance and
venture capital
5 Marketing of Financial Services: 5+1

Importance of Financial Planning: identification of investment needs for retail
investors, studying investment behavior - Houeshold Vs. Institutional Investors
Alternate Investment Products: Introduction to Alternate Investments and
their various products and services, Portfolio Management Services and their
features, Tax regulations from an Investment Advisor point of view

Career opportunities in Marketing of Financial Services

| Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Financial Services & Markets by Dr.'Punithavathy Pandian, Vikas Publication,
2012 Edition
Financial Services Marketing By Christine Ennew , Nigel Waite

2 Reference Books | Financial Services by Nalini Prava Tripathy, Prentice Hall of India Private
Limited, 2008 Edition

3 | Supplementary Financial Services by M Y Khan, TataMcGraw-Hill, 5"Edition

Reading Material

4 | Websites http://mwww.irda.gov.in
http://mww.financeindia.org
http://www.sebi.gov.in

5 | Journals Indian Journal of Finance

Indian Journal of Marketing
Prabandhan — Indian Journal of Management
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Semester ‘ Specialization Marketing

3L6MKT Subject - Elective

Course Title Tourism Marketing

| Course Objectives:

1 To familiarize the students with the basics of tourism marketing.

> To teach the students about formulating marketing plans for tourism and other related hospitality
organizations.
3 To acquaint the students with alternative promotional approaches to tourism marketing.

Syllabus:
‘ Unit Contents Number of

Number Sessions
1 1.1 Introduction to Tourism: What is Tourism? Definitions and Concepts, 6+1
tourist destination, Future of Tourism. General Tourism Trends. Types of
Tourists, Visitor, Traveler, and Excursionist—Definition and differentiation.
Tourism, recreation and leisure, their inter—relationships.
1.2 Introduction to Tourism Industry: Nature, Characteristics and
Components of Tourism Industry. Why it is different from other types of
consumer product? Elements and characteristics of tourism product. Tourism
product production system, Tourism Product Life Cycle, typology of tourism

products.

2 Tourism Marketing: Service characteristics ‘of tourism. Unique features of 3+1
tourist demand and tourism product, Tourism marketing mix. Marketing of
Tourism.

3 Types and Forms of Tourism: Inter-regional and intra—regional tourism, 5+1

inbound and outbound tourism, domestic, international tourism. Forms of
Tourism: religious, historical, social, adventure, health, business, conferences,
conventions, incentives, sports and adventure, Medical Tourism, Senior
tourism, special interest tourism like culture or nature oriented, ethnic or ‘roots’
tourism and VFR.

4 Analysis and Selection of Market: Measuring and forecasting tourism 4+1
demand; Managing capacity and demand. Market segmentation and positioning
(STP), Customer satisfaction,and related strategies in internal and' external
marketing; Interactive and relationship marketing.

5 Planning Marketing Programs: Product and product strategies; Product line, 7+1
Product mix Branding and packaging. Pricing considerations. Promotional
strategies. Distribution channels and strategies. Online Channels, Web Portals
Services: Marketing of Airlines, Hotel, Resort, Travel Agencies and other
tourism related services-Challenges and strategies.
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| Learning Resources:
1 | Text Books

Successful Tourism Management by Seth, P. N., Sterling Publishers Pvt. Ltd.
2006
Tourism Marketing, by Sinha P.C., Anand Publication, 1998

2 Reference Books

Marketing Management & Hospitality and Tourism Marketing by Kotler, Philip,
Pearson Education.
Hospitality Marketing by Vearne, Morrisson Alison

3 | Supplementary
Reading Material

Tourism Policies of Central Government & Different State Government
Promotional Policies of Airlines, Hospitality Industries.

4 Websites

http://tourism.gov.in
www.incredibleindia.org

5 Journals

Sustainable Tourism Marketing at a World Heritage Site, by Gilmore, Audrey;
Carson, David; Ascencéo, Mério., Journal of Strategic Marketing. May2007, Vol.
15 Issue 2/3, p253-264.

Place-product or Place Narrative(s)? Perspectives in the Marketing of Tourism
Destinations, by Lichrou, Maria; O'Malley, Lisa; Patterson, Maurice.; Journal of
Strategic Marketing. Feb2008, Vol. 16 Issue 1, p27-39.

Proposing a Sustainable MarketingFramework for Heritage Tourism, by
Chhabra, Deepak., Journal of Sustainable Tourism. 2009;.Vol. 17 Issue 3,
p303-320.

Critical Success Factors in Destination Marketing, by Baker, Michael J.;
Cameron, Emma., Tourism& Hospitality Research. Feb2008, Vol. 8 Issue 2,
p79-97.

The Marketing of Tourism, by Meidan, Arthur.; Service Industries Journal.
Nov84, Vol. 4 Issue 3, p166-186.

Marketing Culture and Customer Retention in the Tourism Industry, by Appiah-
Adu, Kwaku; Fyall, Alan; Singh, Satyendra., Service Industries Journal.
Apr2000, Vol:20 Issue 2, p95-113

Managing Destination Brands: Establishing a Theoretical Foundation, by
Hankinson, Graham., Journal of Marketing Management. Feb2009, Vol. 25
Issue 1/2, p97-115.

Destination:Branding: Tracking Brand India, by Khanna, Monica., Synergy
(0973-8819). Jan2011, Vol. 9 Issue 1, p40-49.

Marketing UK Towns and Cities as Shopping Destinations, byWarnaby, Gary;
Bennison, David; Davies, Barry J.; Hughes, Howard., Journal of Marketing
Management. Dec2002, Vol. 18 Issue 9/10.

Destination-Marketing: Future issues — Strategic challenges, by Fyall, Alan;
Leask, Anna., Tourism & Hospitality Research. Nov2006, Vol. 7 Issue 1, p50-
63.

Case Study: Uttarakhand as a Spiritual Tourist Destination: An Emerging
Research, by Himadri, Phukan., Advances in Management. May2012, Vol. 5
Issue 5, p42-48.

From Destination Brand to Location Brand, by Kerr, Greg., Journal of Brand
Management. Apr/Jun2006, Vol. 13 Issue 4/5, p276-283.
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Semester Specialization ‘ Marketing

BL7MKT Subject - Elective

Course Title Agricultural Marketing

| Course Objectives:

1 The Agricultural sector, offers immense opportunities for the employment. This sector requires
managerial talent for both input and produce side. The course will prepare the students to be
employable in agricultural marketing

2 Understand the functions performed by agricultural marketing system

3 Develop strategies to manage the marketing of agriculture organizations.

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 1.1 Introduction to Agricultural Marketing: Definition of Market and 5+1

agricultural marketing, Understanding Agricultural Markets, Nature & scope,
Objectives of Agriculture Marketing, Organizations and functions of agricultural
marketing in India. Difference between consumer, industrial and agricultural
markets.

2 2.1 Market Information: Role, importance and concepts of market intelligence, | 5+ 1
critical review of market intelligence and news service;.role of 1T and
telecommunication, on line market information service, electronic auctions,
commodity information system, e-chaupal maodel, dissemination of market
intelligence through various media, market information schemes, cyber
trading/e-commerce, market Information Service (AGMARKNET), Directorate of
Marketing and Inspection (DMI).

3 3.1 Marketing of Agricultural Inputs: Meaning of Agricultural Inputs, 5+1
Agriculture inputs with special-reference to fertilizers, seeds, pesticides and
other agricultural inputs (Farm Machinery,.irrigation system equipment)

4 4.1 Agri-produce Marketing: Food grains, Vegetables, Oil seeds, Fruits, 5+1
Flowers and ornamental plants, “milk and milk products, other animal products
, Grade determination techniques; AGMARK, BIS Grades and standards
prevailing in other countries.

4.2 Quality Standards of-Agricultural Commodities: Domestic and Export
Markets; 1SO 14000; ISO 9000; Quality Assurance in the Domestic / Export
Markets for Agricultural Products.

4.3 Institutional Setup: Role of APMC, APEDA, WTO Agri produce marketing
5 5.1 Pricingof Agricultural Commodities Pricing Decisions: Agricultural 5+1
price terminology, administered prices including support prices, Factors
influencing pricing decisions. Determination of agricultural prices and marketing
margins, Role of agricultural price commission Various pricing strategies.

5.2 Pricing Mechanisms: Role of Institutions in determination of prices of
agricultural commodities, Commodity exchanges, Concept of Value and Value
Addition; Pricing in Competitive Environment.
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| Learning Resources:

1

Text Books

Marketing of Agricultural Products by Richard Louis Kohls, Joseph N. Uhl,
Person Publication, 9"Edition.

Agriculture Marketing in India by S.S.Acharya & N.L. Agarwal , Oxford & IBH
Publishing Co. Pvt. Ltd New Delhi, 4"Edition

Reference Books

New Perspective in Rural & Agricultural Marketing by Ramkishen Y., Jaico
Publishing House , 2"'Edition

Introduction to Agribusiness Marketing by George Seperich, Michael
Woolverton, James Beierlein, Pearson Education.

Supplementary
Reading Material

Rural Agriculture & Marketing by S.B. Verma, S.K. Jiloka & Mandal , Deep &
Deep Publication Pvt. Ltd.

Agricultural Communications Changes & Challenges by Kristina Boone, Terry
Meisenbach and Mark Tucker, Surjeet Publication

Websites

http://agmarknet.nic.in/
www.hpsamb.nic.in/
www.rsamb.rajasthan.gov.in/
www.agritech.tnau.ac.in
www.delagrimarket.nic.in/
www.ams.usda.gov/

Journals

Journal of International Food & Agribusiness Marketing
Indian Journal of Agricultural Marketing

Agricultural Marketing

American Journal of Agricultural Economics
Agricultural Economics &Marketing Journal
Agricultural Economics Research Review

Journal of Farm Economics

Journal of Marketing
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Semester Specialization ‘ Marketing

318MKT Subject - Elective

Course Title Business to Business Marketing

| Course Objectives:
1 To familiarize students with the terms, concepts, and nature of Business-to-Business Marketing.
2 To expose the students to the industrial marketing functions of firms.
3 The course introduces to the participants the specifics of marketing mix for Business-to-Business
Marketing.

Syllabus:

‘ Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Overview of Business-to-Business Marketing 5+1

Introduction to Business-to-Business Marketing: Business, Organizational
& Government Markets, Organizational Buying Behavior, Concept of the
Business-to-Business (B2B) Marketing, Comparison of Business-to-Business
&Business-to-Consumer Marketing.

Buying Situations, Buy grid Framework, Role of Buying Centre ,
Models of B2B Marketing — Webster & Wind Model, Sheth Model, Impact of

Macro/Micro Environmental factors on decision making
2 Segmentation, Targeting & Positioning for B2B Markets: 5+1

Market Segmentation Bases: Macro Variables - Industry Characteristics,
Company Size, Customer Location, End User Markets, product Applications.
Micro Variables: Customer.lnteraction needs, Organizational Capabilities,
Purchasing Policies, Purchasing Criteria, and Personal Characteristics.

Target Markets: Concentrated Marketing, Differentiated Marketing,
Undifferentiated Marketing. Criteria for choosing a target market.

Positioning
3 Product Pricing. Strategy for B2B Markets: 8+1

Industrial' Products: Definition of an Industrial Product, Industrial Product
Lifecycle & Strategies across the PLC, Product strategies for New Products and
Existing Products, Importance of After Sales Service. Innovation,
Competitiveness & Technology. Marketing of — Projects, Industrial Services,
High technology products.

Pricing: Factors influencing Pricing Decisions, Pricing Strategies — Competitive
bidding, Pricing New Products, Pricing Policies, Commercial Terms and
Conditions, Contracts, Hiring & Leasing, Negotiation, Bargaining, Persuasion &
Conviction. Methods used to Influence Industrial Customers, Special Dealing
between Buyer and Sellers, Reciprocity, Ethical Issues. International Market
based Pricing
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Personal Selling: Role & Characteristics of Personal Selling, Development &
Management of Sales Force, Key Account Management - ABC Analysis of
Industrial Customers.

Promotions: Developing Industrial Communication Programme, Trade Shows,
Exhibitions, Catalogues, Samples, Public Relations, Advertising,

Personal Selling & Promotions for B2B Markets: 4+1

Industrial Distribution Channels: Distinctive Nature of Industrial Distribution 3+1
Channels, Types of Industrial Middlemen, Channel Flow Design, Formulating
Distribution Strategies and Cost Benefit Analysis.

| Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Industrial Marketing by Havaldar
2 Reference Books | Industrial Marketing by Hill, Alexander & Cross, Irwin
Industrial Marketing by Mukerjee, Excel Book
3 | Supplementary Marketing White Book (Latest edition)
Reading Material
4 | Websites http://www.commerce.nic.in/
5 | Journals Industrial Organization and Customer Relationship Management: The Impact on

Customer Service Orientation in B-to-B Markets by Lancioni, Richard; Smith,
Michael; Stein, Alex.,Journal of Managementé& Public Policy. Jul-Dec2009, Vol.
1 Issue 1, p57-88.

My years with B2B Marketing in India: Reflections and Learnings from A
Journey of 40 Years by Sarin, Sharad.,Journal of Business &Industrial
Marketing. 2012, Vol. 27 Issue 3, p160-168

Approaching Global Industrial Marketing from a Managerial Cognition
Perspective: A-Theoretical Eramework by Madhavaram, Sreedhar;
Badrinarayanan, Vishag; Granot, Elad.,Journal of Business &Industrial
Marketing. 2011, Vol. 26 Issue 7, p532-541

The Marketing Mix Revisited: Towards the 21st Century Marketing
byConstantinides, E:,Journal of Marketing Management. Apr2006, Vol. 22 Issue
3/4, pA07-438

Marketing-Industrial Design Integration in New Product Development: The Case
of China by Zhang, Dan; Hu, Peng; Kotabe, Masaaki.,Journal of Product
Innovation Management. May2011, Vol. 28 Issue 3, p360-373
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Semester Specialization ‘ Finance

305 FIN Specialization - Core

Course Title Financial Regulatory Framework

| Course Objectives:
1 To provide an overview of the various regulators operating in the Indian Financial System , their
roles, functions and contribution to managing the economy.

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of

Number Sessions
1 Regulatory Framework - Need and Importance: Need and Importance of 7+2
regulatory framework in finance field — Goals of Regulation - Price stability -
Protecting the small investor - Preventing market misconduct. Effect of good
regulation - better market outcomes. Structure of regulatory, framework:in India.
Financial Regulation and Financial Inclusion Role of financial Regulators in
promoting economic growth. Global Financial Crisis — Response of the Indian
Regulators.

Quasi-regulatory institutions: National Bank for Agriculture and Rural
Development (NABARD), Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI),
National Housing Bank (NHB)

Conflict between regulators. Problems of coordination, Managing Systemic
Risks.

2 RBI : Functions of RBI, Credit control measures, qualitative credit control, and 7+2
guantitative credit control, Regulatory measures taken by the RBI to facilitate
financial inclusion. Supervisory framework for NBFCs

SEBI: Introduction — Functions of SEBI, SEBI Guideline for issue of securities,
(e- IPO) , bonus share; book:building, OTCEI.

IRDA: IRDA Act, Salient features of the IRDA Act, 1999. IRDA (Protection of
Policy holders Interests) Regulations 2002. Duties, Powers & Functions of
Authority.

Pension Funds Regulatory and Development Authority: Role and Functions
Board for payment and settlement systems: Role and Functions.

Board of Financial supervision: Role and Functions

Competition Commission of India: Role and Functions.

3 Companies'Act 1956 : Private and public company, Prospectus, MOA, AOA, 7+2
Share Capital, borrowing powers, accounts and audit, directors , winding up.
4 Regulatory Framework for International Funds: Regulatory framework for 7+2
rising fund through GDRs and ADRs — External Commercial Borrowing
Foreign direct investment Regulation: FDI, Fll, FEMA etc. Foreign direct
investment, Foreign Institutional Investments, provision of FEMA regarding
acquiring property outside India. FC(R) Act 1952 - FMC regulation - Regulator
of commaodity derivative markets - commodity derivative brokers.

5 Legal Framework for Various Institutional Forms: Societies Registration 7+2
Act, 1860 , Indian Trusts Act, 1882 , Not-for-profit Companies Registered under
Section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956, Non-Banking Finance Companies
(NBFCs) , Nidhi Companies, Banking Regulation Act as applicable to
Cooperatives, State Acts on Mutually Aided Cooperative Societies, Institutional
Issues with MFIs in India. [ Focus should be only on formation, accounts &
audit , Investment of funds, Acceptance of Foreign Contribution and Taxation]
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| Learning Resources: |

1 | Text Books Indian Financial System and Markets by Siddhartha Sankar Saha (Tata McGraw
Hill)
Financial Services by Shashi K. Gupta and Nisha Agarwal (Kalyani Publications)
Merchant Banking and Financial Services by Guruswamy, Third Edition (Tata
McGraw Hill)
Company Law by N.D. Kapoor
2 | Supplementary | Financial Institutions and Markets by Madura
Reading
Material
3 | Websites RBI
IRDA
SEBI
4 | Journals
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Semester Specialization ‘ Finance

306 FIN Specialization - Core

Course Title Merchant Banking & Financial Services

| Course Objectives:

1 To understand the scope, evolution and role of merchant banking in the context of Indian financial
system

2 To get acquainted with the procedure of public issue management

3 To know in detail the services offered by the merchant Bankers

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 7+2

Meaning Scope, Participants And Instruments: Definition of Merchant
Banking and its scope, Procedure for registration of Merchant Banking,
Operational guide lines by SEBI for merchant bankers,icode of conduct.for
Merchant Bankers, Indian Financial System and its participants. BSE, NSE and
Over The counter Exchange of India - History, Role, functions, trading
operations and settlement of transactions, regulations of stock exchanges.
Money Market — Structure of Money Market, Money Market Instrument, Indian
Money Market, Features and Defects, Players in the Indian Money Market, The
reforms in Indian Money Market.Capital Market Instruments - Preference share,
equity shares, Non-voting shares, Convertible Cumulative Debentures (CCD),
preference shares, Fixed Deposits, Warrants, Debentures and Bonds, Global
Depository receipts, American Depository receipts, Global Debt Instruments.

2 Public Issue Management And Regulations: Public issue management - 7+2
Functions, Mechanism, role:of issue manager, activities involved in public
issue. various methods of Marketing of new issues - Pure prospectus method,
Offer for sale method, Private placement methaod, Initial public offer method,
Rights issue method, Bonus issue method, Book building process, stock option
method, bought out method =meaning, feature, advantages, limitations,
practical example. Prospectus - prospectus for public offer - its importance,
difference between regular. prospectus and abridged prospectus, letter of offer,
disclosures in prospectus, abridged prospectus and letter of offer, types of
prospectus - Red Herring prospectus, information memorandum, shelf
prospectus. Underwriting- Definition, types - Firm, Sub underwriting, joint
underwriting, syndicate underwriting, advantages, variants of underwriting -
Offer for sale, bought out deals, private placements. Post issue activities -
meaning; activities involved like allotment, price fixation, dispatch of certificates
etc. Pricing:models - Net Asset value, Profit Earning Capacity Value, Average
Market Price.
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3 Services Offered By Merchant Bankers: Mergers and Acquisition Services - 7+2
merger, acquisition, takeover, hostile merger, step wise procedure for
amalgamation, strategies adopted to avoid hostile merger - Divestiture, Crown
jewels, Poison pill, greenmail, white knight, golden Parachutes, street sweep,
bear hug, brand power, poison put, pac man defense, white squire. Types of
mergers - horizontal, vertical, diagonal, forward, reverse, forward triangular,
reverse triangular, conglomerate, congeneric, negotiated, arranged,
unopposed, defended, competitive, tender offer. Valuation methods - net
assets, discounted cash flow method, methods of financing - ordinary share,
debt and preference shares, deferred payment, tender offer. Buy back of
Shares, Delisting of Shares , Issue of Debentures - SEBI Guidelines. Portfolio
Management Services - meaning, scope, registration of portfolio manager,
duties, responsibilities, rights, contents of agreement between client and
portfolio manager, reports to be furnished, code of conduct ( regulation 13 of
SEBI Regulation on Portfolio Managers). Credit Syndication services -
meaning, institutions offering syndicate loans, types, procedure, project
appraisal, documentation and security, sanction of a loan

4 Financial Services - Part I: Meaning scope and evolution of financial services. | 7+2
Introduction of various financial services - Leasing, Hire purchase, Factoring,
forfaiting, bill discounting, consumer finance, housing finance, insurance, credit
cards, credit ratings, mutual funds and venture capital. Leasing - definition,
meaning, types, process, advantages, limitations, financial implications. Hire
purchase - meaning, scope, difference between hire purchase and leasing,
calculation of interest, methods of interest calculation. Factoring, forfaiting, bills
discounting - meaning, definitions, scope, advantages and limitations.Insurance
- Meaning, overview, types - life and general - advantages, scope of growth in
India.

5 Financial Services - Part.li: Consumer:Finance - Meaning, types, documents | 7+2
and security, players in the market - banks, NBFC, Cooperative banks, role of
consumer finance in growth of economy. Housing Finance - Major institutions
involved, types, rate of interest, advantages, scenario in India. Credit Ratings -
origin, definition, advantages,.credit rating agencies - global and Indian,
symbols, CRISIL, ICRA, equity ratings, scope in India CIBIL. Mutual funds -
Definition, products, SEBI requirements for Asset Management Company
(AMC), Association of Mutual Funds Industry (AMFI), evaluating mutual fund,
growth in India, Vienture capital - definition, types, stages, exit mechanism,
advantages, limitations, growth in India.

 Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books | Indian Financial Service - Mr. M. Y. Khan, McGraw Hill Publications, 2010, 5™ edition
Merchant Banking and Financial Services - Mr. S. Guruswamy, Tata McGraw-Hill
Financial Services, Markets and Regulations — Anil Agashe, Himalaya Publishing House
Financial Institutions and Markets by Madura

Merchant Banking and Financial Services - Ravichandran

Websites RBI, SEBI, CRISIL, ICRA, MONEYCONTROL, ICICI Direct, Capital Market, Money hike.
Newspaper | Economic Times, Business Standard, Hindu, Business Line, Financial Express, Money
and hike, Business India, Business Today, Business World, Capital Market.
Magazines
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SEINESER

Specialization Finance

307 FIN Subject - Eleciive

Course Title Income Tax Part |

| Course Objectives:

1 To understand the basic concepts of income tax.

2 To be able to practice tax planning and management for individuals and HUF.

3 To calculate Gross Total Income and tax liability in a limited scope with two sources of income
i.e. salary and house property

Syllabus:
Unit

Number

Contents

Income Tax Act 1961- Meaning Scope & Definitions: Income Tax Act 1961,
Definitions - Assesse, Assessment Year, Previous year, jperson, income, gross
total income, Total income and tax liability, Difference between direct tax and
indirect tax, Difference between exemption and deduction, capital and revenue,
rebate and deduction, Concept of Residential status and incidence of tax
incidence, Concept of Agricultural Income.

Income From Salary: Definition and meaning of salary, Allowances- fully
exempt, fully taxable, partially taxable, Perquisites - meaning, valuation and
taxability, Concept and taxability of Gratuity, Pravident Eund,Calculation of
income from salary

5+1

Income From House Property: Chargeability, exemption, Computation of let
out property, Computation of self-occupied property,

Income From Capital Gains: Definition of Capital Asset, Transfer, Capital
Gain,FMV, Indexation. Types of Capital Gain. Exemptions available for
Individuals and HUF's

Income From Other Sources: Concept of Residual Income, TDS Provisions,
Computation

5+1

Set Off, Carry Forward, Deductions: Set off and carry forward of losses,
Deductions applicable to Individual'and HUF

5+1

Calculation Of Gross Total Income, Tax And Tax Liability: Calculation of
Gross_Total Income considering salary, house property and other income. Cases
on calculation,of net taxable income, application of tax rates and calculation tax
liability, Tax-Planning for Income, Tax Credits, Advance Tax and Self-
Assessment Tax

5+1

' Note:

1 | The problemswill be asked only on income from salary , house property and GTI consisting of these
two, sources only

2 | Assessment year will be assessment year applicable for running financial year. For example if
exams are in November 2014, then A.Y.2015-16 would be applicable.
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| Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Direct Taxes — Ravi Kishore
Direct Taxed — J.P. Jakhotiya
Direct Taxes — Ahuja
Direct and Indirect tax Planning & Management — Bangar Yogendra, Bangar
Vandana
2 | Reference Students guide to Income Tax - Dr. Vinod and KapilSinghania
Books Students guide to Income Tax — Dr. T.N. Manoharan
Students guide to Income Tax — Gupta & Ahuja
3 | Supplementary | Direct Taxes - Law and Practice - Dr. Vinod and KapilSinghania
Reading
Material
4 | Websites www.incometaxindia.gov.in, www.tin.gov.in, www.aaykarsamparkkendra.gov:in
5 | Journals The Chartered Accountant

Taxman Journal, AIR, Supreme Court hearings
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Semester Specialization ‘ Finance

308FIN Subject - Eleciive

Course Title Project Finance

| Course Objectives:

1 To understand the concept of Project Finance

2 To know various sources of finance

3 To understand the risks associated with mega projects
Syllabus:

Unit
Num

ber

Contents

Basics of Project Finance: Characteristic and major elements of Projects, Project
Planning and Control, Financial Modeling and Evaluation — Macroeconomic
assumptions — project costs and funding — operating revenues and costs —
accounting and taxation issues

Sources of Finance: Sources of finance for projects - Financial Instruments -
Performance indicators for projects - project cash flows - Appraisal and validity of
financing projects using discounting techniques and Fischer effect - Financial
Engineering

5+1

Risk Management: Risk Management for Projects - Risk ldentification —
Commercial Risks — Completion Risks — Environmental Risks — Operating Risks —
Revenue Risks — Input Supply Risks — Macro Economic Risks- Political Risks - Risk
Analysis and Transfer — understanding risk.measurement techniques like simulation
technique, sensitivity, scenario, ‘break even decision tree - Guarantees and
Insurance

5+1

Contract Management: Contract Management - Tender preparation and initial
evaluation - Preparation of promoter's bids - project conditions - Incentives and
Penalties — Default and Termination - Legal Aspects and agreements.

5+1

Cases: Case Study of a large project covering all aspects stated

5+1
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 Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Project Management — Prasanna Chandra
Principles of Project Finance - Yescombe,E. R.(2002), Academic Press,
California.

Advanced Project Management — Harrison F.L.

Project Financing: Asset-Based Financial Engineering (Wiley Finance) by John
D. Finnerty

Earned Value Management Using Microsoft® Office Project: A Guide for
Managing Any Size Project Effectively w/CD by Dayal

2 | Reference Project financing (7 ed.) - Nevitt, P.K. & Fabozzi, F. J.(2000) , London,

Books UK:Euromoney Books

Investment project design - A guide to financial and economic analysis with
constraints, Kurowski, L. & Sussman, D.(2011), New Jersey: John Wiley & Sons.
Project finance for construction and infrastructure: Principles and case studies -
Pretorius, F., Lejot,P.,Mclnnis,A.,Arner, D.& Hsu, B. F.-C.(2008), Oxford:
Blackwell Publishing

3 | Supplementary | Public Private Partnership in Infrastructure, R N:Joshi; Visionbooks

Reading Project Finance, Concepts and Applications, ‘Padmalatha Suresh; ICFAI
Material

4 | Websites www.projectfinancemagazine.com

5 | Journals Journal of Structured finance
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SEINESER

Specialization Finance ‘

309FIN Subject - Eleciive

Course Title

| Course Objectives:

Strategic Cost Management ‘

1 To acquaint students with various techniques used for Strategic Cost Management
2 To develop an understanding of the adoption of various techniques of Strategic Cost
Management for obtaining sustainable competitive advantage

3 To make the student familiar with the integration of various techniques in decision making.

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number

Number of

Sessions

1 Meaning And Scope: Strategic Cost Management — meaning.and.importance= | 5+ 1
difference between cost reduction and cost management — objectives.of strategic
cost management. Strategic positioning and SCM.

2 Techniques Of SCM: Various techniques of strategic cost management — life 5+1
cycle costing — kaizen costing — target costing.

3 Activity Based Costing: Activity Based Costing — Activity Based Management — | 5+ 1
utility and importance — role of activity based costing'and activity based
management in decision making.

4 Value Based Organization: Value based. management - Value chain costing — 5+1
meaning and application — throughput costing and theory of constraints —
Balanced Scorecard and its application in cost management

5 Learning Curve Theory: Concept, phases and application 5+1
Lean Management: Lean cost management — utility and application

1 Case study approach is recommended.

| Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Cost Management- Ravi Kishore
2 Reference Books | Strategic Management Accounting: Theory and Practice by Kumar
Dynamics of Profit-Focused Accounting: Attaining Sustained Value and Bottom-
Line Improvement by Northrup
Cost and Management Accounting: Colin Drurry
Cost Accounting — A Managerial Emphasis: Horngreen, Datar and Foster
3 .| Supplementary Cost Management — A strategic Emphasis - Blocher, Chen, Cokins, Lin
Reading Material
4 | Websites Institute of Cost Accountants of India
5 | Journals The Management Accountant - Journal of ICAI (formerly ICWAI)
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SEINESER

Specialization Finance

310 FIN Subject - Eleciive

Course Title Corporate Financial Reporting

| Course Objectives:

1 To acquaint the students with the framework of financial reporting and emerging trends.

2 To make students familiar with the analytical tools used for financial analysis.

3 To understand the accounting aspects

Syllabus:

Contents

Financial Reporting: Financial Reporting — meaning and importance - concept
of capital and capital maintenance.

Financial Statements As Per As Per Indian Companies Act: Various forms of
Corporate Financial Reporting — Understanding of Financial Statements as per
Indian Companies Act — Cash Flow Statements- director’s report —
management outlook and analysis-notes to accounts.

Regulatory Framework: Regulatory framework of Financial Reporting —
Overview of Accounting Standards — Indian and International — GAAP —
Introduction to IFRS

5+1

Corporate Governance: Corporate Governance and Financial Reporting —
SEBI norms regarding interim reporting

5+1

Preparation and presentation of financial statements for single companies:
Income statement, Balance sheet, Statement of changes in equity, Reporting
comprehensive income, Segmental reporting, Accounting policies, Fair view
treatment, Cash flow statements, Preparation of published accounts complying
with accounting standards.

5+1

1 | Case study approach is recommended for better understanding of financial reporting

2. | Problems on preparation of financial statements.

Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Advanced Accountancy — ShuklaGrewal — S. Sultan Chand & Co.
Einancial Accounting: Reporting And Analysis by Stice
Financial Reporting and Management Accounting by Bruns
2 | Reference Financial Management: Prasanna Chandra, Indian Accounting Standards& GAAP
Books — DolphyD’Souza — Snow White Publications
3 | Supplementary | Financial Management: Khan and Jain
Reading Corporation Finance: S.C.Kuchhal
Material
4 | Websites The Institute of Chartered Accountants Of India
Annual report of any public Itd. Company from various industries like automobile,
FMCG, retails etc.
5 | Journals Indian Journal of Finance and Accounting
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Semester Specialization Finance

BLIFIN Subject - Elective

Course Title International Financial Reporting Standards

| Course Objectives:
1 To get acquainted with the concept of IFRS
2 To have knowledge of convergence of Indian Accounting Standards with IFRS
3 To know the comparative analysis of Indian GAAP and IFRS

Syllabus:
Unit Contents Number of

Number Sessions

1 Basics: Concept of Accounting Standards, GAAP for UK, USA and India. 6+1
International Accounting Standards, Financial Statements - Role of Financial
Reporting in Financials , Emergence of International Financial Reporting
Standards,

2 IFRS Composition: Major areas in IFRS and their role in Financial:Reporting— | 5+ 1

Presentations, Cash Flows, Inventory, Foreign Currency, Joint Ventures,
Insurance Contracts, Financial Instruments, Compatibility with IAS

3 Regulatory Framework and Agencies involved; Formation and role in IFRS - | 6 + 1
Standing Interpretations Committee, International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee, International Accounting Standards Committee,
International Standards Accounting Board, Standards Advisory Council,
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, Institute of Cost Accounts of India,
Institute of Company Secretaries of India

4 Joining IFRS — Indian Perspective = A path to convergence, various 5+1
deadlines and required amendments in Indian Accounting Standards, Problems
faced, different deadline dates for different sectors to join IFRS, Uniformity in
Financial Reporting — Benefits and detriments to.Indian and Foreign

Companies
5 Comparative Analysis between:Indian GAAP& IFRS 3+1
| Learning Resources:
1 | Text Books Understanding IFRS Fundamentals: International Financial Reporting Standards
— Dr. T.P. Ghost, Nandkumar Ankarath, Kalpesh Mehta, Dr. Yass A.Alkafaji -
John Wiley & Sons
Global Einancial Reporting and Analysis by Alexander
2 | Reference Accounting Standards — Rustagi R.P. — Galgotia Publications, Advanced
Books Einancial Accounting & Software — Jayaprakash Reddy — APH Publication
Indian Accounting Standards & GAAP — Dolphy D’Souza — Snowhite
Publications
3 | Supplementary | E Learning Modules developed by Deloitte, The Management Accountant
Reading
Material
4 | Websites www.ifrs.org
www.ifrs.com
ifrs.icai.org
5 | Journals Journal of Accountancy, The Chartered Accountant

146
University of Pune - MBA Revised Syllabus 2013



Semester Specialization Finance

312FIN Subject - Elective

Course Title Corporate Financial Restructuring

| Course Objectives: |
1 To know the concept of Financial Restructuring in Companies.

2 To get acquainted with the factors leading to financial distress of the organization.

3 To understand alternative sources of capital and planning of the same.

4 To know the significance of the Corporate Governance in the overall functionality of the

organization.

Syllabus:
‘ Unit Contents Number of ‘
Number Sessions
1 Basics: Concept of Internal & External Restructuring, Financial perspective in 6+1
restructuring, Reorganization strategies in corporate organizations, Financial
Distress & Bankruptcy, Liquidation, Net Operating Losses, Sources of Funding
&Problem of changing Capital Structure, Strategic and Financial Sponsors,
Pros and Cons of different Sponsors, Capital Cash Flows Vs. Equity Cash
Flows
2 Mergers & Acquisitions: Difference and commonalities of the concepts, 5+1

differentiation with regard to Take Over, Strategic & Financial Aspects, Hostile
vs. Friendly Takeovers, Defense Tactics, Structural Defenses Vs. Non
Structural Defenses, Contribution Analysis, Duties of Board of Directors, Market
for Corporate Control

3 Risk Management in Mergers & Acguisitions: Collars, Role of Arbitragersin | 6 + 1
Mergers & Acquisitions, Interpretation of Arbitrage Spreads, Earn Out and
CVRs, Pre Closing & Post Closing M&A Risks, Management of M&A Risk with
the help of Collars, Fixed Collar Offers Vs: Floating Collar Offers

4 Methods of Enterprise Valuation: Weighted Average Cost of Capital, 5+1
Discounted Cash Flows Model, Equity/Residual Cash Flows, Adjusted Present
Value, Capital / Leveraged Cash Flows, Relative Valuation Analysis, Sensitivity
Analysis, Tables; Developing Break Up Analysis

5 Corporate Governance: Significance in the Indian context, Reference of CGin | 3+ 1
Indian Companies Act 1956, Role of Board of Directors, Disclosures and
Clarifications on the part of Board of Directors and Inclusion in the Auditors’

Report
| Learning Resources: |
1 | Text Books Business Environment — Justin Paul — Tata McGraw Hill, Business Environment —
A.C. Fernando — Pearson Education
2 | Reference Corporate Restructuring: Lessons from experience - Michael. Pomerleano, William
Books Shaw

Creating Value Through Corporate Restructuring: Case Studies in Bankruptcies,
Buyouts, and Breakups (Wiley Finance) - Stuart C. Gilson, Edward I. Altman
Valuation: Mergers, Buyouts and Restructuring (Wiley Finance) - Enrique R. Arzac
3 | Supplementary | Case Studies in Mergers & Acquisitions — ICFAI University — ICFAI University Press,

Reading Case Studies on Mergers & Acquisitions — R. Muthukumar — ICFAI University Press
Material
4 | Websites www.sebi.gov.in
Www.mca.gov.in
5 | Journals Journal of Restructuring Finance
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SEINENER

3L3FIN Subject - Eleciive

Course Title

| Course Objectives:
1 To understand the importance of equity research.

Specialization Finance

Equity Research

2 To understand how excel can be leveraged for better analysis of a company.

3 To give recommendation based on fundamental and technical analysis.

Syllabus:
‘ Unit

Number
1

Contents

Equity Research — Concept & Definition: Meaning and Scope of Equity
Research, Fundamental Analysis (Economy analysis, Industry Analysis,
Company Analysis), and Technical Analysis.

Number of

Sessions

5+1

Developing a Financial Model: Input all the financial data from the annual
report of the company, Concepts of standardization and regrouping of data as
per the need of the analyst, development of a model - Introduction of financial
modeling design, create a common-size statement and analysis of past
performance in excel, trend analysis, Ratio analysis, ¢reating input & forecast
assumptions sheet, output & report sheet, sensitivity analysis

Company Valuation: equity stock valuation model — Discounted Cash Flow
Method, Relative valuation & Dividend Discount Model

7+1

Company Analysis Using Market Information: Cencept of oscillators and
calculation of oscillators from the data of 5 years prices, High, low, average
price, moving averages - simple, exponential, rate of change indicators (ROC) ,
relative strength index, (RSI),;Moving average convergence and divergence
(MACD)

3+1

Company Analysis Using Technical Analysis: Understanding various charts
- bullish trend, bearish trend;price chart, line chart, bar chart, Japanese candle
stick chart, Chart Patterns - support and resistance, reversal pattern, head and
shoulder formation, Inverse head and shoulder formation, Continuation
Patterns - Triangles, Flags and Pennants, Overall decision making for purchase
/ sale of share of a company

Writing Equity Research Report : Structure for writing equity research report
& presentation of the report with recommendation

5+1

' Note:

1 | Case study approach is recommended for better understanding of the subject.

2. | Problems on valuation have to be taken.
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| Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Mastering Financial Modeling in Microsoft Excel — Alastair L. Day
Business Data Analysis using excel — David Whigham
Practical Financial Modeling — Jonathan Swan
2 | Reference Business analysis with Microsoft excel — Conrad Calbarg
Books Understanding and analyzing balance sheets using excel worksheet — Rube. J
Bodhanwala
3 | Supplementary | Research report of various broking firms can be referred.
Reading Crisil Database, ACE Equity, Bloomberg
Material Capital Markets Magazine
4 | Websites www.nseindia.com
www.bseindia.com
www.moneycontrol.com
www.reuters.com
www.bloomberg.com
5 | Journals Financial Analysts Journal

International Journal of bonds and currency Derivatives
Journal of Applied Finance

International Review of financial analysis

Journal of Derivatives

Journal of Derivatives & Hedge Funds

Journal of Financial Markets

Journal of Investing
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Semester Specialization Finance

3L4FIN Subject - Eleciive

Course Title Credit Analysis and Appraisal

| Course Objectives:
1 To familiarize students with the various aspects of credit management.
2 To introduce the various processes involved in the credit monitoring practices.

Syllabus:
i Contents

1 Principles of Credit Management: Principles of Lending — Evaluation-of Borrower [:3+1
— Sanction limit-Principles of good lending
2 Objectives of Credit Management: Credit Allocation — Credit Evaluation — 7+1

Financial statement analysis- Cash flow analysis — Projections=-Management of'the
firm and other factors- Feasibility study- Fundamental credit issues -Borrower study
and bankers opinion -Credit Discipline- Credit Monitoring.

3 Credit Policy in Banks: Need for Credit Policy — Components of Credit Policy — 6+1
Credit Policy -Credit Culture- Credit institutions - Types of Credit —Bank Credit for
Various Sectors

4 Documentation: Importance of Documentation — Security of Documentation — 5+1
Renewal of Documents — Security Offered for Documents.
5 Credit Monitoring: Financial Supervision= Financial Follow-up — Financial Follow- | 4+1

up Reports- - Physical Follow — up.-ldentifying Problem Loans — Loan
Classification — NPA management

| Learning Resources: |
1 | Text Books Credit Appraisal,-Risk Analysis:and Decision Making — D.D.Mukherjee - Snow

White Publications

Banking Strategy, Credit Appraisal, and Lending Decisions — Hrishikes

Bhattacharya — Oxford.University Press

Shekar and Shekar. " Banking Theory and Practice “

2 | Reference Vishwanathan R. “ Industrial Finance “ Macmillan, New Delhi
Books Prasad K, Nirmala and Chandradas. “ Banking and Financial System”
3 | Supplementary { W.'Koch Scott, Timothy. “ Bank Management”
Reading
Material
4 | Websites RBI Website
5 |dournals Risk-Management
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Semester Specialization Finance

315FIN Subject - Elective

Course Title Banking Operations — |

| Course Objectives:
1 To understand the basics of Banking and the emergence of Banking in India.
2 To get acquainted with the functionality of the Banks.
3 To know the meaning and use of commonly used technologies in Banking.

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Basic Concepts: Banking, Emergence of Banks — Global and Indian 6+1

Perspective, Journey of Banking in India, Role of Banks as important Aids to
Trade, Functions of Banks, Contribution in GDP and effect on Indian Economy
2 Regulatory Framework: Banking Regulation Act, RBI.Act, SEBI, IRDA; RBI 4+1
regulations with regard to Nationalized & Cooperative Banks, Private Banks,
Foreign Banks

3 Types of Banks& Banking: Nationalized & Co Operative Banks, Regional 4+1
Rural Banks, Scheduled Banks, Private Banks, Foreign Banks, Wholesale and
Retail Banking

4 Funding & Recovery: Sector Specific funding, short term and long term loans, | 4 + 1
MSME funding, Mortgage, Pledge & Hypothecation, Recovery of loans, Non-
Performing Assets, Effect of NPA on bank’s profitability

5 Concepts in Banking and Accounting of transactions: Accounting in banks, | 7+ 1
Final Accounts of Banks, Management, of Assets and Liabilities, Provision for
NPAs, Income Recognition and Asset Classification Norms, Electronic Banking,
RTGS, ATM, MICR, OCR, OMR, DATANET

| Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books The Indian Einancial System and Development — Vasant Desai — Himalaya
Publishing House
2 | Reference Indian Financial System —M Y Khan — Tata McGraw Hill
Books Accounting and Finance for Bankers — Indian Institute of Banking & Finance —
Macmillan
3 | Supplementary | Reserve BankiBulletins
Reading Economic Times
Material Business Standard
4 | Websites www.bankingandfinancereview.com
5 | Journals Journal of banking and finance
International Journal of Banking
Accounting and Finance
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Semester Specialization Finance

316FIN Subject - Elective

Course Title Treasury Management

| Course Objectives: |
1 To understand the concept of treasury management.
2 To understand the management of funds.

Syllabus:
Unit Contents Number of

Number Sessions

1 Scope and Function of Treasury Management: Objectives of Treasury, 5+1
Structure and Organization, Responsibilities of Treasury Manager,
Function of treasury, Role and Functions of RBI, Recent Developments in the
RBI's Policy Framework.

2 Short, Medium and Long term Funding, Cost Centre / Profit Centre: 5+1
Financial Planning and Control, Capital Budgeting, Risk Analysis

3 Cash Management : Meaning and Importance of Cash Management; 5+1

Objectives of Cash Management, Cash Flow Cycle, Cash Flow Budgeting and
Forecasting, Liquidity Management: Objectives, Sources & Maturity Concerns:
Short term and Long term Liquidity

4 Internal Control: The Need and Importance = Financialiand Operational risks 5+1
—Internal v/s External Control, The Need and Significance of Internal and
External Audit

5 Treasury’s role in International Banking: Changing Global Scenario and 5+1
Treasury Functions, Treasury Structure- Front and Back Office, Forex Cash
Management — Positions v/s Cash Flows Funding Alternatives, Moral and
Ethical aspects.

| Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Financial Management — Ravi Kishore
2 | Reference Cost Accounting & Financial Management — Ravi Kishore — Taxman Publication,
Books Corporate Finance & Investment —R. Pike and B Neale — Prentice Hall of India,

International Corporate Finance — Ghosh Roy - Mac Milan India
3 | Supplementary | Effective Management Workout — V.K.Singh — Himalaya Publishing House

Reading
Material
4 | Websites www.treasury-management.com
www.iibf.org.in
WWW.icai.org,
5 | Journals Journal of Corporate Treasury Management (JCTM)

Journal of Accountancy
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Semester Specialization Finance

BL7FIN Subject - Elective

Course Title Financial Instruments & Derivatives

| Course Objectives:
1 To provide students with an introduction to the theory and practice of financial instruments.
2 To develop an understanding and importance of financial derivatives and institutional structure of

the market.

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of

Number Sessions

1 Capital and Money Market Financial Instruments: Meaning, definition need | 5+ 1
and importance ,types of various financial instruments,

2 Money market Instruments: Call/money ,Treasury Bills ,Term maney, 5+1
Certificate of Deposits, Commercial papers, Inter banks term money

3 Capital market instruments: Equity shares, Preference shares, No voting 5+1

shares, Convertible Cumulative Debentures, Fixed Deposits, Warrants
Debentures and Bonds, GDR,ADR

4 Derivatives: Meaning and characteristics ,types of derivatives ,Spot, forward 5+1
and future contracts, stock index futures, Commodity derivatives markets
5 Option Contract: Call and Put option Capital Asset pricing Model, SWAP, | 5+ 1

Currency derivatives, Risk management in derivatives

| Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Indian Financial Services — M.Y.Khan
Marketing of financial Services — V.A. Avdhani
Relevant text of SEBI Guidelines

2 | Reference Bhole,L.M. Financial Institutions And Markets, TATA Mc Graw-Hill,New Delhi
Books Clifford Gomez, Financial Markets, Institutions and financial Services PHI Learning
3 | Supplementary | Securities and.Exchange Board of India Act,1992
Reading NabhiManual of SEBI Guidelines (1994):NabhiPublications,New Delhi
Material
4 | Websites www.nseindia.com

www:bseindia.com
www.moneycontrol.com
www.sebi.goviin

5 | Journals Financial Analysts Journal

International Journal of bonds and currency Derivatives
Journal of Applied Finance

International Review of financial analysis
Journal of Derivatives

Journal of Derivatives & Hedge Funds
Journal of Financial Markets

Journal of Investing
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Semester Specialization Finance

318 FIN Subject - Elective

Course Title Financial Statement Analysis

Course Objectives

1 To equip the students to have an in depth understanding of the Financial Statements.

2 To enable the students to use various contemporary techniques of financial analysis to be able
to give an opinion on the financial performance of companies.

Syllabus:

‘ Unit ‘ Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Implication of following Accounting Standards 5+1

a. Diluted EPS — AS 20
b. Deferred Tax — AS 22
c. Foreign Exchange Transactions — AS 11
d. Segment Reporting — AS 17
e. Investment — AS 12
f. Leases-AS 19
g. Cash Flow Statement — AS 3
h. AS 9 — Revenue Recognition
i. AS 28 Impairment of Assets
j-  AS 26 Intangible Assets
k. AS 29 Provisions / Contingent Liabilities, Contingent
Assets.
2 Analysis and Interpretation of Financial Statements: Using techniques of | 5+ 1
ratio analysis, trend analysis, common size statement, Du Pont Analysis,
Multiple Discriminant Analysis.
3 Concept of Funds Flow,.Cash Flow: .Analysis of financial Statements | 5+ 1
using Funds Flow and Cash Flow
4 Analysis of :Director's Report ;-Auditor's Report, Management Discussion | 5+ 1
And Analysis Report, Corporate Governance, EVA
5 Window dressing of accounts: Concept of Window dressing and its 5+1
implication on. profits - Live case studies, Use of Off-the-Balance Sheet
financing and their implications.
| Learning Resources:
1 | Text Books Financial Statement Analysis — Gokul Sinha
Einancial Management — Khan & Jain
Financial Management — R.P. Rustagi - Taxman
2 | Reference Financial Accounting and Management — Ambarish Gupta
Books Analysis of Financial Statements — Bernstein Wild.
Accounting Standards — DolphyD’souza
3 | Supplementary | Financial Statement Analysis by Gibson
Reading Original Accounting Standards
Material Seven Steps to Mastering Business Analysis by Carkenord
Advanced Financial Management — | M Pandey, Prasanna Chandra
4 | Websites www.icai.org
www.icfai.org
5 | Journals Indian Journal of Finance
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Semester Specialization ‘ Finance

319FIN Subject - Elective

Course Title Futures and Options

| Course Objectives:

1 To develop an understanding of financial derivatives and the institutional structure of the markets
on which they are traded.

2 To have an understanding of the analytical tools necessary to price such instruments.

3 To highlight the role of financial derivatives in the modern capital markets, in particular for risk

management.
Syllabus:
Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Introduction: Definition of Derivative, Brief History of Derivatives, Participants |5+ 1

in Derivative Market, Economic functions of derivative market, Evolution of
Commodity, Currency, Stocks and Interest Rate Derivatives, Structure of
Derivative Market - Forwards, Futures, Options, Swaps, etc. Reasons for
Trading: Risk Management, Speculation and Arbitrage

2 Market Characteristics: Futures and Options Contract Specifications, 5+1
Underlying Asset, Contract Size, and Delivery Specifications. Mark to Market
using Margin Accounts, Familiarizing with Market' Quotes, Trading Strategies
involving Options and Futures, Interest Rate Derivatives, Contractual
Specification - Floating and Fixed Rate, Valuation of Interest Rate Derivatives.
3 Derivatives Pricing Theory: Option Pricing: Option-Payoffs, Black-Scholes 5+1
formula for Option Pricing, Futures Pricing: Pricing by Arbitrage: Relationship
between Futures and Spot Price (cost of carry and reverse cost of carry),
Difference between Futures and Forward Price

4 Risk Analysis and Management: Risk Measurement and Management 5+1
Framework, Delta/Theta/Vega & Gamma risks of options, Hedging with
Futures, Derivatives Disclosure: Accounting Issues in Derivatives.

5 Options and Futures 'Applications in India: Structure of Indian Stock Markets | 5+ 1
and the Operational Efficiency of Options and Futures, Determination of the
Fair Value of Futures and Options Prices, Interactions between Spot Equity
Trading and Trading in Derivatives. Index Options and Futures, Constructing an
Index, Methodology of;Construction, Trading an Index. Conditions necessary to
Improve the Market Structure in India and Policy Interventions.
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| Learning Resources: |

1 | Text Books Futures & Options — A.N.Sridhar
Financial Derivatives — S.L.Gupta
Financial Derivatives — S.S. Kumar
Options, Futures & Other Derivatives — John C. Hull
Option Volatility & Pricing — Sheldon Naten Berg
The New Options Market — Max Ansbacher
2 | Reference Futures & Options — ND Vohra, B.R.Bagr
Books Derivatives & Risk Management Basics — Don. M. chance, Robert Brooks.
Derivatives & Risk Management — Jayanth Rama Varma
3 | Supplementary | NCFM Modules on Derivatives
Reading
Material
4 | Websites www.nseindia.com
www.bseindia.com
www.iijournal.com
5 | Journals Financial Analysts Journal

International Journal of bonds and currency Derivatives
Journal of Applied Finance

International Review of financial analysis

Journal of Derivatives

Journal of Derivatives & Hedge Funds

Journal of Financial Markets

Journal of Investing
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Semester Specialization ‘ Finance

320FIN Subject - Elective

Course Title Back Office Operations

| Course Objectives:
1 To understand the processes involved in the financial services sector.
2 To know the process to be followed by the merchant banker

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Know Your Client, Anti-Money Laundering & Combating Financing of 5+1

Terrorism : Principles, Client Due Diligence, Customer Policy , Clients of
Acceptance Special Category, Client Identification Procedure, Client
Registration - Proof of Identity, Proof of Address, PAN Card , Additional
Requirements for non-individuals , Unique Client Code , Power of Attorney,
Nomination , Changes in Client Information - Change of Address , Change in
Bank Details , Change in Signatory , Minor becoming major , KYC Registration
Agencies, Suspicious Transactions Reporting, Designated Individuals & Entities
, Record Keeping

2 Mutual Fund and AMC Operations: Legal Structure; Net Asset Value (NAV), |5+ 1
Expenses , Load , Offer Documents , Investor Transactions (Normal Physical
Mode) , Acquisition and sale of Units by Investor from:/ to the Scheme,
Redemption of Units on closure of scheme , Systematic Investment Plan ,
Systematic Withdrawal Plan , Systematic Transfer Plan, Dividend Re-
investment Option , Dividend Mechanics , Income Distribution Tax , Securities
Transaction Tax (STT) , Cut-off Time Regulations.

3 Depository Operations: Depository and Issuer, Depository Participant, 5+1
Transactions - . Account Opening., De-Materialization , Re-Materialization ,
Secondary Market Purchases , Secondary Market Sales , Standing
Instructions , Power of Attorney, Transposition, Transmission of Securities,
Dividends, Pledging Securities, Freezing of Accounts, SMS Alerts

4 Qualified Foreign Investors —Equity Shares: Background, Permitted 5+1
Transactions, Investment Restrictions, and Administration of Investment Limit,
Other Conditions, and Transaction Flow. Qualified Foreign Investors — Mutual
Funds : Background , Investment Limit , Transaction Flow , Direct Route
(Demat) , Indirect Route (Unit Confirmation Receipts) , Other Conditions.

5 SEBIl guidelines: SEBI guidelines relating to IPOs, FPOs, Right Issue, Bonus | 5+ 1
Issues, QIBs, ADRs, GDR, Buy Back Of Shares, FCCB.Common Bid-cum-
Application Form.Settlement - Clearing House , Other Agencies Involved in
Settlement , Clearing Mechanism , Clearing Process , Settlement Process ,
Transaction Cycle - T+2 Rolling Settlement Calendar, Delivery Versus
Payment (DVP) / Hand Delivery , Auction Settlement, F&O Settlement ,
Books of Accounts , Straight Through Processing (STP).
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| Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Advanced Financial Services — P.K. Sinha — Nirali Prakashan
Financial Management — Ravi Kishore — Taxman Publication
2 | Reference Advanced Financial Management — M.A.Kohok, Indian Financial System —
Books M.Y.Khan
3 | Supplementary | Dalal Street, Capital Markets
Reading
Material
4 | Websites www.sebi.gov.in
www.nseindia.com
www.bseindia.com
www.nsdl.co.in
5 | Journals

158
University of Pune - MBA Revised Syllabus 2013



Semester Specialization ‘ Finance ‘

321FIN Subject - Elective

Course Title Principles of Insurance ‘

| Course Objectives:

1 To understand the various operations involved in managing insurance.
2 To understand the pricing, financing and risk diversification strategies of insurance companies

Syllabus:
Unit Contents Number
Number of
Sessions
1 Fundamentals: Functions and Organization of Insurance -Types of Organization | 4+1
— Organization Structure-Function of Insurers
2 Underwriting, Claims, Intermediaries: Underwriting - Objectives and Principles | 5+1

- Underwriting in Life Insurance - Underwriting in Non- Life Insurance. Claims
Management — Principles - Claim Settlement in Life Insurance - Claim Settlement
in General Insurance - Repudiation of Claims. Insurance Intermediaries =
Distribution of Insurance products - Role of Intermediaries - Surveyors and Loss
Assessors - Third Party Administrators — Agents — Brokers - Corporate Agents-
Banc assurance — Ombudsman — Lok-Adalats

3 Pricing And Finance: Insurance Pricing - Pricing Objectives - Types of Rating - 6+1
Rating Considerations - Rating in Life Insurance - Rate Making Entities - Rate
Making in General Insurance — De tariffing and its impactin India. Financial
Aspects of Insurance Companies - Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account of
Insurance Companies - Ratio Analysis in Insurance Companies - Risk Return
Trade off -Measuring Financial Performance

4 Marketing of Insurance Products: Marketing of Insurance Products - Marketing | 5+1
Practices - Critical success Factors.for Insurance Marketers - Distribution
Channels - e-Commerce in Insurance Industry - Case studies

of Indian Companies

5 Risk Management: Reinsurance - Principles, Role, Nature and Techniques of 5+1
Reinsurance - Reinsurance in Indian Perspective - Global Reinsurance Market -
Reinsurance Trading. Risk Management in Insurance Companies - Evaluation of
Risk in.Insurance Services -=Risk Management Systems - Management of
Systematic Risk - IRDA Framework for Risk Management - Catastrophe
(CAT)Bonds

159
University of Pune - MBA Revised Syllabus 2013



| Learning Resources:
1 | Text Books

nd

Insurance and Risk Management, 2™ Edition, P.K.Gupta, Himalaya Publishing
House

Insurance, Principles and Practice, S.N.Mishra, S.B.Mishra, S Chand
Principles of Insurance Management, Neelam Gulati, Excel Books

Legal & Regulatory Aspects of Insurance by NIA

Elements of Actuarial Science by NIA

Insurance Business Environment & Insurance Company Operations by NIA
Financial Management & Insurance Accounting by NIA

2 | Reference
Books

Principles of Risk Management and Insurance,9™ Edition, George Rejda, Pearson
Education
Risk Management and Insurance by Trieschmann

3 | Supplementary

Economic Times, Business Standard,

Reading
Material
4 | Websites National Insurance of India
www.actuariesindia.org,
5 | Journals Journal of Insurance Management
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Semester Il Specialization ‘ Finance

322FIN Subject - Elective

Course Title Rural Financial Institutions

| Course Objectives:
1 To understand various avenues of finance available for the development of rural area.
2 To understand the role of financial institutions in rural India

Syllabus:
Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Regulation of Rural Financial Services: Regulatory framework of RFIs — 5+1
Reserve Bank of India and its policy and functions in rural banking — National
Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development — Impact of economic
liberalization and deregulation of interest rates in RFIs, Introduction to Islamic
Banking.
2 Co-operative Banks: Concept, Structure and special features of co-operatives | 5+ 1

banking — draft co-operatives bill — primary level credit institution, their
functioning and problems — business development plans — District Central Co-
operative Banks — structure and functions — Deregulation of interest rates,
Land Development Banks- Structure and functions.

3 Regional Rural Banks: Genesis and need — problems of RRBs - structural 5+1
weaknesses — working group of RRBs (Kelkar committee report) —
Recommendations of committee on Financial sector reforms — recent policy
changes relating to RRBs — Deregulation of interest rates and prudential norms
— Turnaround strategies — DARP/MOU for revamping and re-structuring.

4 Rural Banking in Commercial Banks: Rural lending by commercial banks- 5+1
problems of rural branches of.commercial banks — transaction cost and risk
cost of rural financing — impact of recent policy changes.

5 Local Area Banks / Other Financial Institutions: Emerging Trends Genesis |5+ 1
— RBI Guidelines on Local Area Banks / Other financial Institutions like private
banks, Non- Banking Financial Companies, Linkages with Private Money
Lenders, Emerging Trends.in rural banking, Microcredit, NGO involvement.
Reforms in rural credit system.

| Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Banking — Dharmaraj E — Scitech Publications
2 | Reference Indian Economy — Datt, Sundaram — S.Chand& Sons, Indian Economic Problem —
Books Amitabh Bhattacharya — Metropolitan Publications,
3 | Supplementary | Mierofinance — Rajagopalan — ICFAI Press,
Reading
Material
4 | Websites www.nabard.org
www.banknetindia.com
www.rbi.org.in
www.iba.org
5 | Journals Asian Journal of Agricultural & Rural Development
Journal of Industrial and Rural Development
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Semester Specialization ‘ Finance

323FIN Subject - Elective

Course Title Social Finance for Inclusive Growth - |

Course Objectives

1 To highlight the need for financial products that help the asset poor households and the
marginalized communities, including micro entrepreneurs, engage in income-generating activities.
2 To give inputs for designing of innovative financial contracts and instruments, reducing the risk of
lenders as well as borrowers, and most importantly credit enhancements and guarantees.
3 To highlight innovations in financial contract design and risk for financial inclusion.
4 To understand the role of financial institutions in financial inclusion.
Syllabus:
Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Financial Markets: Accessibility of Financial Markets to poor in India-Demand |5+ 1
& Supply issues
2 Innovative Financial Products: Financial innovations beyond microcredit, 5+1
urban finance, low income housing finance, Micro, Enterprise Financing
Innovations
3 Finance constraints faced by microenterprises : Financing constraints faced | 5 + 1
by microenterprises, restricting access to finance, 'Financial market innovations
supporting MSME finance, financing startup and venture capital fund, credit
guarantee mechanisms
4 Impact Investing: Value Creation at the Bottom of the Pyramid, balancingthe |5+ 1
needs of investors as well as social entrepreneurs. Funding Options for
innovations
5 Capital Markets & Access to Finance: Financial innovations to support 5+1
savings & Investments of asset poor households, framework for managing
inflation risks, etc. global and Indian experiences. Micro-SIP& Pension,
investment linked insurance products. Investment and Insurance-linked
Products : Credit-insurance based financing arrangement
| Learning Resources: |
1 | Text Books Inclusive Growth = Indian Institute of Banking & Finance, Microfinance — Somnath —
Excel Books
2 | Reference New Trends in Banking — VV Ravi Kumar — ICFAI Press, Principles & Practice of
Books Banking — lIBF — Macmillan Publishing,
3 | Supplementary | Einangcial Inclusion — Sameer Kochharm, R. Chandrashekar, Advanced Financial
Reading Management — M.A. Kohok — Everest Publishing
Material
4 | Websites Www.impactinvesting.in
www.oecd.org
5 | Journals Indian Journal of Finance
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Semester Specialization ‘ Information Technology

30517 Specialization - Core

Course Title |.T. Management

| Course Objectives:

1 To get a thorough update of Information Technology used in Business Organizations.

2 To develop understanding of managerial aspects so as to use Information technology effectively
and efficiently.
3 To develop capability to integrate different but related aspects of Information Technology
4 To develop a view of IT Management, especially, for a large organization
5 To appreciate IT Management as an independent and important field of work, different from IT for
Management

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions

1 Hardware Management — Historical Review - Types of Computers— Computer | 7+2
Peripherals - Input Technologies and Devices— Qutput Technologies and
Devices - Storage Technologies and Devices - Euture Scenario — Managerial
considerations in acquisition, maintenance, controlling, replacement of
Hardware

2 Application Software Management - Overview of General Purpose 7+2
Application Software such as Software Suites, Messaging, Groupware,
Conferencing Commercial and Corporate Tools and Overview of Application
Specific Software such as Programming languages, ERP, e-Commerce, CRM,
Scientific and Engineering Programs.

System Software Management=Overview of Operating Systems, Network
Management Programs, Database Management Programs, Servers, System
Utilities, Performance and Security Monitors, System Development Programs.
Managerial considerations in selection, maintenance, controlling, replacement
of Software

3 Networking Management — Networking Trends — Internet Basics — Intranet 7+2
and Extranet — Overview of Networking Alternatives, Networking types,
Networking media, Networking processors, Networking software, Networking
architecture, and Networking protocols

4 Data. Management—Database Concepts and Development - Types of 7+2
Databases — Application Development thru DBMS - Database Administration
Data Resource Management —Data warehouse and Data Mining - Data
Recovery Practices and Technologies

5 (a) Security Management—Need, Case Studies — Types of Computer Crime — | 7+2
Cyber Law - Tools of security Management - Security Defenses — System
Controls and Audit

(b) People Management-- I.T. Organization of a large corporation — Selection
and Recruitment — Training — Retention — Performance Measurement
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| Learning Resources:
1 | Text Books

Management Information System Laudon, Laudon and Dass 11" Edition
Pearson

Management Information Systems Obrien, Marakas, Behl 9" EditionTata
McGraw Hill

Management Information Systems W S Jawadekar, 4" Edition Tata McGraw Hill

2 Reference Books

IT system Management by Rich Schiesser
Enterprise Computing by Alan R. Simpson

3 | Supplementary
Reading Material

The Influence of IT Management Practice on IT Use in Large Organizations
Journal MIS Quarterly Author: Boynton Andrew, Zmud Robert & Jacobs Gerry

4 Websites

www.csus.edu
whatis.techtarget.com

5 Journals

MIS Quarterly, University of Minnesota
CSI Communications, Computer Society of India
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Semester 1] Specialization ‘ Information Technology

3061T Specialization - Core

Course Title E-Business

| Course Objectives:
1 To appreciate e-Business as a significant business segment of the future
2 To get on overview of technological aspects of e-business
3 To understand strategic aspects of e-business
4 To develop capacity to initiate/lead an e-business venture/ business segment

Syllabus:
Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Introduction, Background and Current Status, Case studies 6+2
2 e-Business Architecture - Enabling Technologies- Information distribution and 7+2
messaging Technologies- Information Publishing Technology

3 e-Business Infrastructure - e-Business Design, Capacity Planning, 7+2
Performance Modeling- Mobile commerce- framework and models

4 e-Business Models - e-Marketing, e-CRM, Internet advertising - e-Business 8+2
Security/Payment Services - e-SCM, e-Procurement - Portals- Search Engines
— Online Community building

5 e-Business Strategy into Action, Challenges, Legal Issues - Business Plan 7+2
Presentation and Demonstration “Launching e-Business: From Idea to
Realization”.

| Learning Resources:
1 | Text Books E-business by Rayudu, Himalaya Publication

2 Reference Books | Knowledge Management by Jawadekar, McGraw-Hill
e-Commerce A Manager’s Guide to e-Business by Parag Diwan & Sunil

Sharma
3 | Supplementary E-Government, E-Business, and National Economic Performance Journal:
Reading Material | Communications of AIS , Shirish Shrivastava
4 | Websites e-business.com
WWW.ecommercetimes.com
5 | Journals Journal of Electronic Commerce Research

International Journal of Electronic Commerce
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Semester Specialization Information Technology

30711 Subject - Elective

Course Title Software Engineering

| Course Objectives: |
1 To develop theoretically sound understanding of Software Engineering Methods
2 To develop understanding of object oriented software Engineering
3 To develop ability to represent diagrammatically and in descriptive form, software engineering

schemas
Syllabus:
‘ Unit Contents Number of ‘
Number Sessions
1 Nature of Software, Software Engineering, Software Process, Unigue Nature of | 6+1
WebApps, Basic System Development Life Cycle

2 Different approaches and models for System— Generic.Process Model, 6+1
Waterfall, Spiral, Prototyping, RAD, JAD

3 Requirements Anticipation, Requirements Investigation, Requirements 6+1
Specifications

4 Use-case Driven Object oriented Analysis - Use case Diagram, Activity 8+2
Diagram, Sequence diagram, Collaboration Diagram and Class Diagram

5 User Interface design 4

| Learning Resources: |
1 | Text Books Software Engineering Pressman, TMH,7th Edition

2 Reference Books | System Analysis and.Design Jalote, Narosa Publication, 3rd Edition

Software Engineering W S Jawadekar, TMH.

System Analysis & Design Elias'Awad, Galgotia Publication

Object Oriented Analysis and-Design with Applications by Grady Booch.,
Benjamin / Cummings , 1994., Pearson,3rd Edition

3 | Supplementary Management Information System for Enterprise Applications, Adamantions
Reading Material | Koumpis

4 | Websites WWW.unesco-ihe.org

5 | Journals International Journal of Software Engineering & Knowledge Management

TSE - IEEE Transactions on Software Engineering
SPE - Software - Practice and Experience
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Semester Specialization Information Technology

3081T Subject - Elective

Course Title Mobile Computing with Android

| Course Objectives: |
1 To understand technical aspects of M-computing

2 To appreciate impact of M-computing on Information Technology scenario

3 To understand M-computing applications; initiate new applications

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Introduction:Generations of mobile computing, Spectrum allocation,-Standard™ | 5+1

Bodies, Players in the Wireless Space, three tier architecture of mobile
computing, Mobile Computing through Internet, Basic cellular system; coneept
of frequency reuse channels, hand-off mechanism, cell.splitting

2 GSM &GPRS :GSM features and Architecture , Network Aspects in.GSM, 5+1
GSMFrequency Allocation, Mobility management;. hand-off mechanisms, cell
splitting, Security issues used in GSM, GPRS features and architecture,
network operations, data services in GPRS, applications and limitations, SMS
and MMS services architecture and operation details

3 Emerging Telecommunication Technologies :Introduction, Bluetooth, 5+1
EDGE, UMTS, Wireless Broadband (WiMAX),Mobile IP, Java Card, WLAN, Ad-
hoc Networks, Sensor Networks, SpreadSpectrum technology, CDMA, Third
generation networks and applications,WAP: Model; architecture & protocol
stack.

4 Security Issues in Mobile Computing:introduction, Information security, 4+1
Security techniques and Algorithms,security Protocols, Public Key
Infrastructure, Trust, Security Models, SecurityFrameworks for Mobile
Environment.

5 M-Commerce :Introduction to m-commerce :Emerging applications, different 6+1
playersin m-commerce, m-commerce life cycleMobile financial services, mobile
entertainment services, and proactive serviceManagement

Management of mobile commerce services:Content development and
distribution;to hand-held devices, contentcaching, pricing of mobile commerce
services The emerging issues in mobile commerce: The role of emerging
wireless LANs and 3G/4G wireless networks, personalized content
management, implementation challenges in m-commerce, futuristic m-
comimerce services.
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Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Mobile Computing (Technology, Applications and Service Creation) , Asoke. K
Talukder and Roopa R. Yavagal. Tata McGraw Hill

2 Reference Books | Mobile Communication : Jachan Schiller, Adison-Wesley.Wireless and Mobile
Network Architecture : Yi-Bing Lin, Wiley
Mobile Commerce: Technology, Theory and Applications by BrianMennecke
and Troy J. Strader, Idea Group Publishing

3 | Supplementary

Reading Material

4 | Websites techbits.co.in
www.zslinc.com

5 | Journals Wireless communication & mobile computing

IEEE Transactions on Mobile Computing
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Semester Specialization Information Technology

30917 Subject - Elective

Course Title RDBMS with Oracle

| Course Objectives: |
1 To understand theoretical concepts in Relational Data Base Management
2 To develop working level proficiency for writing SQL commands
3 To develop capability to design applications for a real life DBMS problem

Syllabus:
Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Overview of DBMS : Architecture, Data models, constraints 3
2 Relational model concept: Relational model constraints ,relational Algebra, 6+1

Relational database language, Data definition in SQL, Views and Queries in
SQL, Specifying constraints and Indexes in SQL, Specifying.constraints
management systems,

3 SQL Functions: 6+1
Date - Sys_date , next_day, Add_months, last_day, months_between.

Numeric - round, trunc, abs, ceil, cos, exp, floor.

Character - initcap, lower, upper, Itrim, rtrim, translate,.length, Ipad.
rpad, replace. Conversion - to_char, to_date, to_number.

Miscellaneous - Uid, User, nvl, vsize, decode, rownum.
Group function - avg, max, min, sum, count, with Group by and Having Clause.

Nested functions.
4 Joins: 5+1

Simple join Equijoin Non equi join Self join Outer join

Set operators (Union, union all, intersect, minus)

Sub queries and Correlated query

DML statements (Insert, Update, Delete with whereclause)

TCL (Commit, Rollback, Saveint)
5 Tables 6+1

Create, Alter, Drop, Truncate, Rename

Constraints ( Primary key, Foreign Key, Unique Key, Check,

Default, Not Null, On delete, Cascade) Column level and Table level constraints
Oracle Objects

Views, Sequences, Synonyms, Index (Define, Alter and Drop)
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Learning Resources: |
1 | Text Books Data Base System Concept by Korth, TMH, 5" Edition

Oracle by Ivan Bayros

2 Reference Books | Introduction To Database Systems By C.J.Date, Pearson.

Data Management Systems by Alexis Leon, Mathew Leon

Principles of Database Management by James Martin, PHI.

SQL - The complete Reference by Groff James & Weinberg Paul., TMH,2"

Edition.

3 | Supplementary Oracle 7 by Ivan Bayross, BPB Pub.

Reading Material

Websites www.thinkoracle.in

Journals Development of a Relational Database Management System

[S20F
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Semester Specialization Information Technology

31017 Subject - Elective

Course Title Software Quality Assurance

| Course Objectives: |
1 To understand concepts and methodology related to Software Quality Assurance
2 To Know software Quality standards specifies by regulatory authorities
3 To develop capability to design Quality Testing processes in software development environment

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Software quality - Definition 5+1

Software errors, software faults and software failures
Software quality assurance — definition and objectives
Software quality assurance vs. software quality control
The objectives of SQA activities

2 Pre-project SQA Components 5+1
Contract Review
Development and Quality Plan
3 SQA components in Project life cycleactivities assessment. 5+1
Verification and Validation
Various types of Reviews
Inspections

Walkthrough

Software testing

Impact of CASE Tools

4 Software Quality Factors 5+1
Mccall’'s Quality Model

Product, Process quality metrics
5 Standardization 5+1
ISO 9001 and 1SO 9000-3
SEI-CMM

IEEE 1012 standard
ISO/IEC 12207 standard.

| Learning Resources: |
1 | Text Books Handbook of Software Quality Assurance

Software Quality Assurance: Principles and Practices by Nina Godbole

2 Reference Books |, Software Quality Assurance from theory to implementation — Danial Galin
Software Project management - Edwin Bennatan

Project Management Body of Knowledge — PMI

3 | Supplementary Software Engineering Roger S. Pressman, TMH, 7" Edition.

Reading Material
4 | Websites www.softwarecertifications.org
www.softwareqatest.com

5 | Journals Software Quality Journal
SEINES G Specialization Information Technology

3LUT Subject - Eleciive

Course Title E-Learning
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| Course Objectives:

1 To understand e-learning as an emerging educational technology
2 To learn use of tools/ technologies used for e-learning based pedagogy
3 To develop capability to initiate e-learning project(s)
Syllabus:
Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Introduction:e-learning- definition. Why e-learning? Elements of e- learning, e- | 5+1
learning content- dimensions, Risks in e-learning, ROI , e- learning cycles,
Implementation.

2 Types of e-learning and technologies required:Learner- led e-learning 5+1
Facilitated e-learning, Instructor- led e-learning, Embedded e-learning
Tele-mentoring and e-coaching, Categories of software tools

3 Hardware and Networks for e-learning:Selection of e-learning Hardware, 5+1
network for e-learning, types of networks, private network, private networks,
internet, TCP/IP , wireless internet connection.

4 Tools for accessing e-learning:Web browsers, media players and.viewers 5+1
Tools for offering e-learning:Web servers, LMS- Learning Management
Systems , Learning Content Management Systems, Collaboration tools,
Virtual- School systems, media servers
Tools for creating e-learning content:Course authering tools, web site
authoring tools, how they work?, an overview,of popular web site authoring
tools, alternatives to web authoring tools, blogging tools, testing and
assessment tools
Other Tools:Media Editors, Content Converters

5 Standards For e-learning:Standards for packaging, communication, 5+1
Metadata, Quality standards , other standards and regulation
Trends in e-Learning:Always Online, All infarmation online, All Media digital,
Emergence of HDTV video.standard, Force or haptic feedback, Telepresence,
immersive simulations, embedded system.
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Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books E- learning strategies — How to get implementation and delivery right first time
by Don Morrison, John Wiley and sons Ltd.
Methodologies, Tools and New Developments for E-Learning

2 Reference Books | Delivering E- learning : A complete strategy for design, application and
assessment — by Kenneth Fee , Kogan Page London and Philadelphia, 2009
E- Learning Tools and Technologies a consumer’s guide for trainers, teachers,
educators and instructional designers — William Horton, Katherine Horton,
Wiley.

3 | Supplementary

Reading Material

4 | Websites www.e-learningconsulting.com
www.elearningnc.gov

5 | Journals Journal of e-Learning and Knowledge Society
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Semester Specialization Information Technology

3127 Subject - Elective

Course Title Software Marketing

| Course Objectives: |
1 To understand facets of software marketing as a field of study
2 To develop in depth of understanding of Software Marketing Practices
3 To assist in developing capability to market the software

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Global and Indian Software Industry Environment: Historical Growth of the 5+1

Industry, Market Size, Nature of Products, Projects and Services, Major. Players,
Industry Associations and their role in market development, Overview.of ‘India’s
Software Export Industry

2 Services Marketing Mix: 7 Ps of Services Marketing — Service Life Cycle 5+1
Strategic Aspects of Software Marketing - Identification of potential markets,
Industry/ Business analysis and creating/ sustaining competitive advantage -
Segmenting, Targeting and Positioning.

3 Promotion: Role of Promotion in Software Marketing; Personnel Selling, 5+1
Advertising and Sales Promotion; Trade Shows, Role of Relationship Marketing
in promoting software

4 Distribution: Place — Distribution Strategies for Software Products / Services; 5+1
Challenges in distribution of Software Praducts and Services; Role of Internet in
distribution of Software Products and Services.

Pricing: Factors involved in pricing software Products, Price estimating for
Software Projects

5 Customer Satisfaction & Service Quality: Monitoring and Measuring customer 5+1
satisfaction. Applying.technology to service settings, e-services. Role of People,
Process and Physical Evidence in Software Products and Services

 Learning Resources:
1 | Text Books Services Matketing - Zeithaml, Bitner, Gremler&Pandit, TMGH, 4 "Edition.
2 Reference Books |, Services Marketing — Rampal& Gupta
Software That Sells : A Practical Guide to Developing and Marketing your
Software Project, Edward Hasted

3 | Supplementary Services Marketing - Christopher Lovelock
Reading Material
4 | Websites www.softwaremarketingresource.com
www. softwareceo.com
5 | Journals Journal of Services Marketing
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Semester Specialization Information Technology

31317 Subject - Elective

Course Title Business Intelligence and Analytics

| Course Objectives: |
1 To understand principles of Bl and Analytics at conceptual level
2 To understand application areas for implementing Bl and Analytics
3 To develop skills to design Bl and Analytics projects

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Business Intelligence: definition , concept and need for Business Intelligence, |.5+1

Case studies

Bl Basics : Data, information and knowledge, Role of Mathematical models
2 Business Analytics at the strategic level:Strategy and BA, Link between 5+1
strategy and Business Analytics, BA supporting strategy.at functional level;
dialogue between strategy and BA functions, information as strategic resource

Business Analytics at Analytical level : Statistical data mining, descriptive
Statistical methods, lists, reports, automated reports,. hypothesis driven
methods, data mining with target variables, cluster.analysis, Discriminate
analysis, logistic regression, principal component analysis.

3 Business Analytics at Data Warehouse Level; Designing physical 5+1
database, Deploying and supporting DW/BI system
4 Business Intelligence Architectures: Cycle of Business Intelligence Analysis, | 5+1

Development of Business Intelligence System, spread sheets, concept of
dashboard, OLAP, SOA, decision engineering.
Bl Tools: Concept of dashboard.

5 Bl Applications in different domains- CRM, HR, Production 5+1
| Learning Resources: |
1 | Text Books Decision.Support and Business Intelligence Systems, Turban, Sharda, Delen,
Pearson

2 Reference Books | Business Intelligence Success Factors Tools for aligning your business in the
global economy by Olivia Parr Rud, John Wiley and sons , 2009

The  Profit impact of Business Intelligence by Steve Williams and Nancy
Williams , Morgan Kauffman Publishers/ Elsevier, 2007

Business Intelligence: Practices, Technologies, and Management- Rajiv
Sabherwal, Irma Becerra-Fernandez

Business Analytics for Managers : Taking Business Intelligence beyond
reporting by GERT H.N. Laursen, Jesper Thorlund, Wiley and SAS Business
Series, 2010

3 | Supplementary The Great Mind Challenge for Business, Vol. 1 and 2, IBM (1) Pvt. Ltd,
Reading Material | Bangalore

4 | Websites WWW.Ssas.com
www.smartdatacollection.com
5 | Journals International Journal of Business Intelligence Research ,
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Semester Specialization Information Technology

31T Subject - Elective

Course Title Cyber Laws

| Course Objectives: |
1 To understand legal provisions of Information Technology Act, 2000
2 To know Case Law and practical ramifications of the Act

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Object and Scope: Genesis, Object, Scope of the Act 5+1

Encryption - Symmetric Cryptography- Asymmetric Cryptography- RSA
Algorithm - Public Key Encryption

2 Digital Signature: Technology behind Digital Signature - Creating a Digital 5+1
Signature - Verifying a Digital Signature - Digital Signature and PKI - Digital
Signature and the Law.

E-Governance and IT Act 2000: Legal recognition of electronic records- Legal
recognition of digital signature - Use of electronic records and digital signatures
in Government and its agencies.

3 Certifying Authorities: Need for Certifying Authotity and Powers - 5+1
Appointment, function of Controller - Who can be a Certifying Authority? -
Digital Signature Certifications - Generation, Suspension and Revocation of
Digital Signature Certificate.

Cyber Regulations Appellate Tribunal: Establishment & Composition of
Appellate Tribunal - Powers of Adjudicating officer to Award Compensation -
Powers of adjudicating officer to Impose Penalty.

4 Domain Name Disputes and Trademark Law :"Concept of Domain Names - 5+1
New Concepts in Trademark= Jurisprudence - Cybersquatting, Reverse
Hijacking, Meta tags, Framing, Spamming - Jurisdiction in Trademark Dispute.
5 Cyber Crimes: Tampering with-Computer Source Documents - Hacking with 5+1
Computer System - Publishing of Information which is obscene, in Electronic
Form - Offences related to.Breach of Confidentiality& Privacy — Offences
related to Digital Signature Certificate.
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Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Cyber Law in India by Farooq Ahmad — Pioneer Books

2 Reference Books | Information Technology Law and Practice by Vakul Sharma — Universal Law
Publishing Co. Pvt. Ltd.
The Indian Cyber Law by Suresh T Vishwanathan —Bharat Law house New
Delhi.
Guide to Cyber Laws by Rodney D. Ryder -Wadhwa and Company Nagpur.
The Information Technology Act,2000 — Bare Act —Professional Book
Publishers — New Delhi

3 | Supplementary Hand book of Cyber & E-commerce Laws by P.M. Bakshi & R.K.Suri — Bharat

Reading Material | Law house New Delhi.

4 | Websites www.cyberlawindia.net
www.asianlaws.org

5 | Journals Cyber Times
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SEINESER

Specialization Information Technology

31517 Subject - Elective

Course Title

IT for Retailing

| Course Objectives:
1 To understand IT in Retail as an important field of practice

2 To know concepts and technologies related to IT in retail

Syllabus:
Unit
Number

1

Contents

Introduction:Role of IT in Retail Trade, Advantages of IT in Retail Trade like
Cost productivity benefits and Marketing benefits, Competitive advantages of
Information technology, limitations of using IT, Essential Requirements of an
Information System for retail.

Number of
Sessions
5+1

Applications of IT in Retail Management:Inventory control, POS - Point of sale,
Sales Analysis, Planning and Forecasting, CPFR- Collaborative Planning,
Forecasting and Replenishment.

Capturing and transmitting data at POS , advantages, elements of
data capture —

coding system

code symbology

Means of data capture

Database marketing, Data Mining, Data Mart

5+1

Technology for retail Management:POS - Point of Scale Technologies available
Barcode scanning, electronic shelftags, self-checkouts, RFID tags, fingerprint
authentication.

Evolution of Retail Management Systems: Introduction to self-service,
supermarkets, atomistic retail to regional networks/ chain stores, POS to point of
purchase, push action to push strategy, Point of Differentiation, Point of
Customer.

5+1

Web_based retailing/ E- Retailing/ E Commerce (B2C): Kinds of retailers
engaged in.electronic.eemmerce: virtual retailers, two channel retailers,
Multichannel retailers Role of Internet, Benefits of Internet, Monitoring the
progress of an internet e- retail business, limitations of the web.

Emergence of “eBay, Amazon and others, comparison of web based retailing and
other forms of retailing.

5+1

Future trends : Smart cards, E-cash, Multimedia kiosks, Customer specific offers,
Electronic body scanners, Electronic shelf front

Retail management Systems in the market:ERP systems like SAP and
PeopleSoft, Specialized retail software providers like JDA, Retek, Essentus,
SANDMAR RM 6000 and others, Open source software.

5+1

University of
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Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Information Technology for retailing by Khurana Pub McGraw Hill

2 Reference Books | Retail Business Management by R. Perumalsamy, Anmol Publications, 2010
Retail Managementby Arif Sheikh and Kaneez Fatima , Himalaya Publishing
House , 2008.

3 | Supplementary Advanced Technologies Management for Retailing - Framework and Cases by

Reading Material | Eleonora Pantano and Harry Timmermans, Business Science Reference ,

2011

4 | Websites www.retailsystems.com

5 | Journals Journal of Retailing and Consumer Services
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Semester 1] Specialization Information Technology

31617 Subject - Elective

Course Title Technical Writing

| Course Objectives: |
1 To understand Technical Writing at conceptual level
2 To learn tools and techniques as well as approaches to technical writing
3 To develop expertise with a view to taking up technical writing as a career

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 What is technical writing? — Case studies 5+1

Role of technical writer- creating

user guides, reference, readme, release notes, documentation procedure
technical presentations, training slides, online help (preparation and
integration.)marketing brochures, web pages, concept note, specs, project
proposals company newsletter, CVs, effective emailing guidelines

2 Quality Characteristics for technical writing 5+1
Ease of use: Task orientation, Accuracy, Completeness
Easy to understand: Clarity, correctness, strike

Easy to find: Organization, Retrievability, Visual effectiveness

3 Audience analysis: tailoring documents for a specific audience. Creating a thesis 5+1
statement, developing an outline, pre-writing, refinement. Overcoming writer's
block/writer's anxiety. Adding emphasis in.writing. Annotated bibliographies.
Avoiding plagiarism. Conciseness, clarity. Establishing arguments. Paragraphs
and paragraphing. Quoting, paraphrasing;-and summarizing. Sentence variety.
Using appropriate language. Proofreading your writing; parallels in proofreading
and debugging.

4 Writing white paper/ technical report, research paper, report abstracts, manuals 5+1
and documentation. Effective workplace writing: accentuating the positives,
prioritizing your concerns for effective business writing; memo writing, email
etiquette, revision in business writing, tone in business writing, model letters for
various purposes.

5 (a)Document types to be covered Business Writing — RFI ( Request for 5+1
information),and RFP (Request For proposal) structure, Writing RFI ,RFP
Contents of an:nstallation manual , Writing an Installation manual

Contents of.a s/w user manual , Writing a s/w user manual

What is a white paper? Contents of a white paper , writing white papers

CBT( Computer based training) , Structure of CBT, Preparing CBT

Preparing a tutorial

(b)Tools of technical writing MS Word, Ms Excel, Ms- PowerPoint, TechSmith
SnaglT, Adobe PDF, Adobe Robohelp
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Learning Resources:
1 | Text Books Technical Writing, Process and Product, Sharon Gerson, Steven Gerson,
Pearson

2 Reference Books | Engineers Guide to technical writing by Kenneth G. Budinski, ASM International
, 2001

Science and Technical Writing A Manual of style edited by Philip Reubens,
Routledge

The Best Software Writing | selected and introduced by Joel Spolsky, Apress,
2005

Technical Communication' by Mike Markel

3 | Supplementary Developing Quality Technical Information A Handbook of Writers.and Editors,
Reading Material | IBM Press, 2004

4 | Websites The Online Writing Labs (OWL) family of websites
http://owl.english.purdue.edu/;

specially, http://owl.english.purdue.edu/workshops/hypertext/
http://www.twin-india.org/ - Twinbook 1.chm and Twinbeok2.chm
http://techwhirl.com

www.tc.eserver.org-The most comprehensive virtual library for technical
communicators on the Web.

http://mysite.verizon.net/resnx4g7/

http://www.greatuserdocs.com

http://www.io.com/~hcexres/textbook/ - Basic online textbook on technical
writing.

http://en.wikiversity.org/wiki/Technical_writing. -Provides a basic online course
in technical writing.

http://www.indexers.org.uk" -Indexing:user manuals
http://mww.g2meyer.com/gallery/ -Collection of screen captures of various
online help systems:

http://www.itauthor.com

5 | Journals Journal of Technical Writing and Communication
Editor: Charles H. Sides
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SYLLABUS: !
OPERATIONS MAN
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Semester Specialization Operations Management

3050PE Specialization —Core

Course Title Planning & Control of Operations

| Course Objectives: |

1 To give an overview of Planning & Control of Operations

2 To explain the role of forecasting in the operations planning process.

3 To explain the need for aggregate planning and the steps in aggregate planning.
4

5

To explain how is capacity planning done in organizations and what is its relationship with MRP.
To highlight the importance of scheduling in operations management.

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Planning & Control of Operations: Need, Functions - Routing, Scheduling, 7+2

shop loading and dispatch, follow up. Relations with other departments,
Routing-Process layout indicating flow Chart of material from'machine to
machine. Dispatch in production control-documentation.

2 Demand Forecasting: Forecasting as a planning tool, Why do we forecast, 7+2
Forecasting time horizon, Design of forecasting systems, Developing the logic
of forecasting, Sources of data, Models for forecasting, Extrapolative methods
using time series, Causal methods of forecasting, Accuracy of forecasts, Using
the forecasting system.

3 Aggregate Production Planning: Planning Hierarchies in operations, 7+2
Aggregate Production planning, Need for Aggregate Production planning,
Alternatives for managing demand, Alternatives for managing supply, Basic
strategies for aggregate praduction planning, Aggregate production planning
methods, Master Production Scheduling.

4 Resources Planning: Dependent Demand Attributes, Planning a framework — | 7 + 2
the basic building blocks: Multiple levels in products, Product Structure, The Bill
of Materials, Time phasing of the requirements, Determining the Lot Size,
Incorporating Lead time information, Establishing the planning premises. MRP
Logic, Using the:MRP.system, Capacity Requirements planning, Manufacturing
Resources Planning (MRP 11), Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP), Resource
Planning in services.

5 Scheduling,of Operations: Need for Scheduling, Scheduling — Alternative 7+2
terms, Loading of machines, Scheduling Context, Scheduling of Flow Shops,
Scheduling of Job Shops, Input-Output Control, Operational Control Issues in
Mass production systems.

184
University of Pune - MBA Revised Syllabus 2013



| Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Operations Management: Theory and Practice by B Mahadevan, Pearson, 2"
Edition.

2 Reference Books | Operations Management by Terry Hill, Palgrave, 2" Edition
The fundamentals of Production Planning and Control by Stephen Chapman,
Pearson, 1° Ed.

3 | Supplementary Operations Now by Byron Fitch, TMGH, 3™ Edition.

Reading Material
4 | Websites www.apics.org
5 | Journals Demand Forecasting and Smoothing Capacity Planning for products with high

random demand volatility by Huang, M.-G.; Chang, P.-L.; Chou,Y.-C.,
International Journal of Production Research, Jun2008, Vol. 46 Issue 12
Adaptive Exponential Smoothing versus Conventional Approaches for lumpy
Demand Forecasting: case of production planning for a manufacturing lineby
Quintana, R.; Leung, M. T., International Journal of Production Research,
Nov2007, Vol. 45 Issue 21, p4937-4957, 21p

Forecasting Inventory: Using Demand to Determine Supply by Wilson, Eric.,
Journal of Business Forecasting, Fall2008, Vol. 27 Issue 3

Forecasting Demand for Single-period products: A case study in the Apparel
Industry by Mostard, Julien; Teunter, Ruud; de Koster, René., European Journal
of Operational Research, May2011, Vol. 211 Issue 1

Modeling of Multi-period Multi-product Production Planning considering
ProductionRoutes by Mahdavi, Iraj; Taghizadeh, Kaveh; Bagherpour, Morteza;
Solimanpur, Maghsud., International Journal of Production Research, Mar2012,
Vol. 50 Issue 6

Forecasting AggregateDemand: An‘Analytical Evaluation of Top-down versus
Bottom-up Forecasting in a Production Planning frameworkby Widiarta, Handik;
Viswanathan;S.; Piplani, Rajesh. International Journal of Production
Economics, Mar2009, Vol. 118 Issue 1

Making MRP Workby Diehl, Gregory W.; Armstrong, Aaron J.. Industrial
Engineer: IE, Nov2011, Vol. 43 Issue 11
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Semester Specialization Operations Management

3060PE Specialization —Core

Course Title Inventory Management

| Course Objectives:
1 To give an overview of various aspects of inventory.
2 To explain the impact of types of inventory costs on inventory management decisions.
3 To explain the principles of JIT

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Elements of Inventory Management: Inventory concepts, Pressures for Low 7+ 2

Inventory, Pressures for High Inventory, Role of inventory in Operations,. Types
of inventory — seasonal, decoupling, cyclic, pipeline, Safety stock. Inventory
costs — carrying costs, ordering costs, shortage costs.

2 Inventory Control systems: Continuous Review (Q) systems, Periodic Review | 7 + 2
(P) systems, ABC Classification system, Issues.in.the P and Q systems of
inventory control.

3 Economic Order Quantity Models: The Basic EOQ Model, Production 7+2
Quantity Model, Computer Solution of EOQ model with MS Excel, Quantity
Discounts, Computer Solution of Quantity Discounts model with MS Excel,
Reorder Point, Safety Stocks, Service Level, Reorder point with variable
demand, Computer Solution of Reorder point with MS Excel, Order quantity for
periodic inventory system, Order quantity with variable demand, Computer
Solution of fixed period model with MS Excel

4 Just-In-Time: Principles of just-in-time, Core logic of JIT, Main features for 7+2
stocks, Achieving just-in-time operations, Other effects of JIT, Benefits and
disadvantages of JIT, Comparison with.other methods of inventory
management. KANBAN as a control tool. Vendor managed inventory.

5 Make Or Buy Decisions: Factors.influencing Make Or Buy Decisions-cost, 7+2
quality, capacity core vis noncore, management strategy. Evaluation of
performance of Materials function: cost, delivery, quality, inventory turnover
ratio methodology of evaluation, Use of ratios and analysis like FSN: Fast slow,
Nonmoving, HML-High Medium, Low, XYZ. Materials Management In JIT
Environment:
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| Learning Resources:
1 | Text Books

nd

Operations Management: Theory and Practice by B Mahadevan, Pearson, 2
Edition.

Operations Management-Process and Value Chains by Krajewski, Ritzman,
Malhotra, Pearson, 8" Edition.

2 Reference Books

Operations Management: Quality and Competitiveness in a Global Environment
by Russell and Taylor, Wiley India.
Introduction to Materials Management by J.R.Tony and Arnold.

3 | Supplementary
Reading Material

In\d/entory Control and Management by Donald Waters, Wiley Student Edition,
2" Ed.

Just-in-Time Manufacturing by Korgaonker, Macmillan

Essentials of Inventory Management by Max Muller, JAICO Publishing, 1*
Edition.

4 Websites

www.inventorymanagementreview.org
www.effectiveinventory.com

5 Journals

Material Management Review- Institute of Material Management
Production & Inventory Management - APICS
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Semester Specialization Operations Management

3070PE Subject - Elective

Course Title Productivity Management

| Course Objectives:
1 To understand and appreciate significance of productivity management
2 To study various productivity management methods
3 To learn applicability of popular productivity management tools

Syllabus:
Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Introduction: Importance and significance of productivity, Productivity 3+1
concepts — Macro and Micro factors of productivity, productivity from product
and service perspective, different inputs and productivity measures, Various
ratios related to finance, material and service.
2 Value Analysis and Value Engineering: Concept of Cost, Price and Value, 3+1
Role in Productivity, Procedure — Application and:productivity benefit model.
3 Work Study: Importance of work study — Method. Study and Work 6+1

Measurement — Pioneers of Performance Measurement

Method Study: Need for Method Study — Procedure of Method Study —Process
Flow charts, Man machine diagrams ,Principles of Motion Economy

4 Work Measurement: Techniques of Work Measurement including Estimating, 8+1
Stopwatch Time Study, Predetermined Time Standards, Synthetic Estimates of
Work, Times, Activity Sampling. Computation of Standard Time — Elements —
Types of Elements — Performance Rating — Allowances — Need for Allowances
— Types of Allowances

5 Advanced Methods of Productivity and service level enhancements: 5+1
Overview of JIT, Lean, 5S,-TPM, BPR, Six Sigma, World Class manufacturing,
Use of Technology in productivity and service enhancements: ITeS, CAD,
CAM, CIM, CMML.

| Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Productivity Measurement for Business Excellence by Prem Vrat, G.D.
Sardana, B.S. Sahay, Narosa Publishing House.
Operations Management for Competitive Advantage by Richard B Chase,
Jacobs, Aquilano, Agarwal, TMGH, 11™Edition.
2 Reference Books | Introduction to Work Study Edited by Geirge Kanawaty, Universal Publishing,
4th Edition.
3 | Supplementary Production and Operations Management by S.N.Chary, TMGH, 4th Edition
Reading Material
4 | Websites www.npcindia.org
5 | Journals International Journal of Operations & Production Management
International Journal of Business Performance Management
Journal of Applied Economics
International Journal of Management
Journal of Management Information Systems
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Semester Specialization Operations Management

3080PE Subject - Elective

Course Title Maintenance Management

| Course Objectives:
1 To understand importance and role of Maintenance Management
2 To acquaint with various alternatives of Maintenance Management
3 To understand use of decision tools for Maintenance Management

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Need and Importance of Maintenance Management: Maintenance versus S5+1

Aggregate production planning, Maintenance versus Scheduling, Maintenance
versus Quality Control, Equipment Life Cycle, Measures of Maintenance
Performance — Mean Time Between Failure (MTBF) and Mean Time to Repair
(MTTR) , Availability.

2 Requirements for Effective Maintenance Management: Catalogues of 5+1
Equipment, Maintenance Policy, Maintenance Manual, Troubleshooting
Mechanisms, Fault — tree Analysis, Maintenance Information Systems.
3 Maintenance Alternatives: Routine Inspection, Preventive Maintenance, 5+1
Predictive Maintenance, Breakdown Maintenance, Planned Shutdowns / Major
Overhaul, Equipment Replacement.

4 Decision tools for Maintenance Management: Optimum Preventive 5+1
maintenance policy, group replacement policy, equipment replacement
decision, Spare parts management: Types of spares, Vital Essential and
Desirable, Inventory planning for spares.

5 Total Productive Maintenance: TPM Overall equipment effectiveness , TPM 5+1
Methodology , TPM implementation, Technology in maintenance
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| Learning Resources:

1 Text Books

Operations Management : Theory and Practice by Mahadevan, 2"
TMGH

Operations Management by Norman Gaither & Greg Frazier, Cengage
Learning, India Ed.

Edition,

2 Reference Books

Production & Operations Management by Alan Muhlemann, John Oakland,
Keith Lockyer, Macmillan India Ltd.

3 | Supplementary
Reading Material

Operations Management by Norman Gaither

4 Websites

www.lifetime-reliability.com
www.authorstream.com

5 Journals

Empirical Analysis of MaintenancePerformance Measurement in Belgian
Industries by Muchiri, Peter N.; Pintelon, Liliane; Martin, Harry; De Meyer,
Anne-Marie., International Journal of Production Research. O¢t2010, Vol. 48
Issue 20, p5905-5924

Development of Maintenance Function Performance Measurement Framework
and Indicators by Muchiri, Peter; Pintelon, Liliane; Gelders; Ludo; Martin, Harry.,
International Journal of Production Economics. May2011, Vol. 131 Issue 1,
p295-302

Measuring MaintenancePerformance: A Holistic Approach by Tsang, Albert H.
C.; Jardine, Andrew K. S.; Kolodny, Harvey. International Journal of Operations
& Production Management., 1999, Vol. 19 Issue 7, p691-715

Effect of Maintenance Policies on the Just:In-Time Production System by
Abdulnour, G.; Dudek, R.A.; Smith, M.L.; International Journal of Production
Research. Feb1995, Vol. 33 Issue 2, p565.

Effective Component Importance Analysis for the Maintenance of Systems With
Common-Cause Failures by Liudong Xing; Amari, Suprasad V., International
Journal of Reliability; Quality. & Safety Engineering. Oct2007, Vol. 14 Issue 5,
p459-478.

Failure Reduction in Manufacturing Systems through the Risk Management
Approach and the Development of a Reactive Maintenance Model by
Karuppuswamy;:-P:;-Sundararaj, G.; Devadasan, S. R.; Elangovan, D.;
Savadamuthu, L., International Journal of Risk Assessment & Management.
2006; Vol. 6 Issue 4/5/6, p545-564.

Plant-Level Maintenance Decision Support System for Throughput
Improvement by Li, Lin; Ambani, Saumil; Ni, Jun., International Journal of
Production Research. Dec2009, Vol. 47 Issue 24, p7047-7061.

Measuring Efficiency of TotalProductiveMaintenance (TPM): A Three-Stage
Data Envelopment Analysis (DEA) Approach by Jeon, Jeonghwan; Kim,
Chulhyun; Lee, Hakyeon., Total Quality Management & Business Excellence.
Aug2011, Vol. 22 Issue 8, p911-924.

Relationship between TotalProductiveMaintenance and Performance by Brah,
S. A.; Chong, W K., International Journal of Production Research. 6/15/2004,
Vol. 42 Issue 12, p2383-2401.

Justification of TotalProductiveMaintenance Initiatives In Indian Manufacturing
Industry for Achieving Core Competitiveness by I.P.S. Ahuja; J.S. Khamba.
Journal of Manufacturing Technology Management. Jun2008, Vol. 19 Issue 5,
p645-669.

Operations and Maintenance Practices and Their Impact on Power Plant
Performance by Shyong Wai Foon; Terziovski, Milé., Academy of Management
Annual Meeting Proceedings. 2008, p1-6.
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Semester Specialization Operations Management

3090PE Subject - Elective

Course Title Facilities Planning

| Course Objectives:
1 To emphasize the importance of facilities planning in view of the size of investment.
2 To make the student understand the linkages of facilities planning with other activities
3 To underline the importance of facilities location

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Introduction to Facilities Planning: Facilities planning defined, Significance S5+1

of Facilities Planning, Objectives of Facilities Planning, Long Range Capacity
Planning, Facilities Planning process, Strategic Facilities Planning, Developing
Facilities Planning Strategies, Examples of Inadequate Planning..Impact of
Environmental Issues on Facilities Planning.

Product, Process and Schedule Design: Introduction, Product Design, Process
Design, Schedule Design, Facilities Design.

2 Logistics and Facilities Location: Logistics, Decisions related to Logistics, 5+1
Issues in Facilities location — Market related factors, Cost-related factors,
Regulatory and Policy Issues, Location Planning Methods = Location Factor
rating, Centre-of-gravity method, Load-distance method, Transportation Model.
Locating Service Facilities, Relocation aspects,

3 Layout Planning: Concept of Layout; Basic Layout Types, Layout Procedures, | 6 + 1
Algorithmic approach, Department Shapes.and Aisles, Multi-floor facility layout,
Commercial Facility Layout, Impact of change, Developing alternative layouts.
Introduction to ALDEP and-CORELARP;

Facilities design for various Facilities Functions: Warehouse operations —
Functions of Warehouse, Receiving and Shipping Operations, Dock Locations,
Storage Operations, Order. Picking Operations.

4 Service Facilities Layout: Nature of Services, Operational Classification of 4+1
services, Structuring the service encounter, Service blueprinting and fail-safing,
Role of floor manager:in service sectors such as — Hospital, Hotel, Airlines and
airports.

5 Flow:Space and Activity Relationships: Departmental Planning, Activity 5+1
Relationships, Flow Patterns, Flow Planning, Measuring Flow, Space
Requirements.

Personnel Requirements: Employee-Facility Interface, Restrooms, Food
Services, Health Services, Barrier-Free Compliance, Office Facility Planning.

Material Handling: Scope and Definition of Material Handling, Material
Handling Principles, Designing Material Handling Systems, Unit Load design,
Material Handling Equipment, Estimating Material Handling costs, Safety
Considerations.

191
University of Pune - MBA Revised Syllabus 2013



 Learning Resources:

rd

1| Text Books Facilities Planning by Tompkins, White, Bozer and Tanchoco, Wiley India 3
Edition.
Operations Management — Theory and Practice by B Mahadevan, Pearson, 2"
Edition.
2| Reference Operations and Supply Management by Chase, Shankar, Jacobs and Aquilano,
Books TMGH, 12" Edition.
3| Supplementary | Operations Management by Terry Hill, Palgrave, 2™ Edition.
Reading Operations Management — Quality and Competitiveness in a Global Environment by
Material Russell and Taylor, Wiley India, 5" Edition
4 | Websites http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=zkKFf7iLph4
http://mww.youtube.com/watch?v=zkKFf7iLph4&feature=results_main&playnext=1&I
ist=PL7768A320362EA93D
5| Journals Ergo-Centric Facilities, Dohrmann, Mark. Industrial Engineer: IE, Jun2009, Vol. 41

Issue 6

Organization of facilities management in relation to core business, Jensen, Per
Anker. Journal of Facilities Management, 2011y Vol. 9 Issue 2

5 facility planning mistakes (and how to avoid them), Weitzner, Wendy M.,
May2006, Vol. 60 Issue 5

Facilities planning for greener hospitals by Scheeres, D. Junell. Industrial Engineer:
IE, Mar2012, Vol. 44 Issue 3

A Conceptual model for barrier free facilities planning, Seares, Marcelo M.; Jacobs,
Karen; Bittencourt, R.S.; de M.Guimaraes; L.B:Work, 2012, Vol. 41

192

University of Pune - MBA Revised Syllabus 2013




Semester Specialization Supply Chain Management

3100PE Subject - Elective

Course Title Manufacturing Resource Planning

| Course Objectives:
1 To understand role and importance of Manufacturing Resource Planning (MRP 1)
2 To know the inputs, processing and outputs of MRP Il

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Master Production Scheduling (MPS):Introduction to MPS, Need, objectives. | 5 +.1

& functions of MPS, Role of MPS in management- as a “Link between strategic
and tactical planning”, Logical flow of materials in different manufacturing
scenarios (VAT Analysis), Planning horizons and Time periods (Buckets) of
MPS, Order management in MPS, Safety and hedges, Projected Available
Balance (PAB) and Available To Promise (ATP), Time Fences & effect of
changing MPS decisions on time fences, Final Assembly Schedule (FAS).

2 Material Requirements Planning (MRP-I):Introduction to MRP-I, Roles & 5+1
functions of MRP-I, Independent & Dependent Demand, Bill of Materials
(BOM), Types of BOM, Numerical Problems on BOM, Lot-sizing, MRP-I as
Input & Output Process, MRP-I Spreadsheet problem, Pegging reports &
where-used files.

3 Capacity Management:Introduction to ‘Capacity’ and ‘Capacity management’, | 5+ 1
Capacity Expansion Strategies, Capacity Planning levels vis-a-vis
Manufacturing planning levels, Capacity measurement, Rough Cut Capacity
Planning (RCCP), Capacity:Requirement Planning (CRP), Shop Calendar,
Scheduling strategies- Backward & Forward scheduling, Infinite & Finite
loading, Production smoothing policies:

4 Manufacturing Resource Planning (MRP-II)- (Module-I):Introduction to MRP- | 5 + 1
II, Roles & functions of MRP=l, MRP-lI framework, Information flow in MRP-II,
Relation of MRP-II with Demand management and Capacity management,
Manufacturing calendar.

5 Manufacturing Resource Rlanning (MRP-I1)- (Module-II): Transition from 5+1
MRP-1 to MRP:ll, Closed loop MRP, Comparison between MRP-I and MRP-II,
Plant'& supplier scheduling, Problems associated with MRP-II, Benefits and
prospects of MRP:Il, Compatibility between MRP-II & Just-in-Time (JIT).
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| Learning Resources:

1 | Text Books Manufacturing Resource Planning (MRP Il) with introduction to ERP, SCM and
CRM by Khalid Sheikh, TMGH, 1° Edition
Operations Management — Theory & Practice by B. Mahadevan , Pearson Pub.,
2" Edition

2 Reference Books | Plossl, George, Orlicky’s Material Requirement Planning, McGraw-Hill, Inc, 2™
Edition, 1994

3 | Supplementary Operations management by William J, Stevenson, Tata McGraw Hill

Reading Material | Companies — 9" Edition
4 | Websites www.apics.org/
5 | Journals Materials and Capacity Requirements Planning: (APICS) CPIM Certification

Review Course, Student Guide by John, Ralph E St., APICS, Revision 3, 1993
Managing in an Age of Modularity by Baldwin, Carliss Y and Kim B Clark,
Harvard Business Review, Vol. 75, No. 5, September-October 1997

Assemble to Order Manufacturing: Implications for Materials Management by
Wemmerlov, U, Journal of Operations Management, Vol. 4,(4), 1984

Shop floor Control edited by Wassweiler, William R in James H Greene (Editor),
Production and Inventory Control Handbook, 3" Edition, McGraw-Hill, 1997
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Semester 1] Specialization Operations Management

3L10PE Subject - Elective

Course Title Technology Management

| Course Objectives: |
1 To highlight the role of technology and innovation as drivers of value and competitive advantage.
2 To provide conceptual foundations in managing innovation and technology.

Syllabus:
Unit Contents Number
Number of

Session

S
1 Introduction & Importance of Technology Management: Technology.- 5+1
Definition and Characteristics, Technology trends, Market Based and Resource
Based view, Impact of technology on business, Forms ofitechnological change,
Concept and significance of management of technology, Technological
environment-meaning, importance : recent developments in Technological
environment - Globalization, Time Compression, Technology integration, Induced
& Autonomous changes in the Technological environment, Competitive
advantages through new technologies.
2 Innovation Management: Concept of Innovation; invention and creativity: role and | 5+ 1
relationship with innovation, Drivers and process of innovation— firm & technology
level, Classification of innovation management of innovation. Technology Evolution
— S curve of technology evolution, Technology progression, Technology change
agents, Evolutionary characteristics of technological change, uncertainty and
technological insularity.
3 Technology Sources and Research & Development Management: Sourcesof |5+ 1
technology, Process of new.product development; Reasons of failures of hi-tech
products: Strategy to avoid product failure in market. Process of bringing hi-tech
product from development to market:  Managing R& D Organization —issues and
recent trends. Linkage between technology, development and competition,
Significance of managing Intellectual Property Rights in context of technology
management, strategic issues,in managing IPR.
4 Technological Forecasting: Meaning of Technology forecasting, uses of 5+1
Technology:forecasting;:-Technology forecasting techniques : Exploratory and
Normative: technique; Process and application of techniques like Delphi, Growth
Curves; S- curve, Pearl Curve, Gompertz curve : Relevance Tree, Morphological
Analysis, Mission Flow Diagram

Technology strategy: concept, key principles, framework for formulating
technology: strategy, Linkage of technology strategy with business strategy, Issues
in technology strategy,

5 Technology and Organizational Issues: Technological change and Industrial 5+1
Relations, Technology Assessment and Environmental Impact Analysis Integration
of People and Technology, Organizational and Psychological Factors,
Organizational Structure.
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| Learning Resources:

1| Text Books

Strategic Technology Management by Betz. F. , McGraw-Hill

Managing Technology and Innovation for Competitive Advantage by V K
Narayanan, Pearson Education Asia

Management of Technology by Tarek Khalli , McGraw-Hill

Strategic Management of Technological Innovation by Schilling , McGraw-Hill, 2"
Edition

2 | Reference
Books

Strategic Management of Technology & Innovation by Burgelman, R.A., M.A.
Madique and S.C. Wheelwright , Irwin

Handbook Of Technology Management by Gaynor, McGraw Hill

Managing New Technology Development by Souder, W.C. and C.M.,Crawford,
McGraw-Hill

3| Supplementary

Managing Technological Innovation by Twiss, B., Pitman

Reading Bringing New Technology to Market by Kathleen R Allen, Prentice Hall India
Material Management of New Technologies for Global Competitiveness by Christian N
Madu, Jaico Publishing House
4 | Websites http://www.tifac.org.in/
http://ec.europa.eu/enterprise/policies/innovation/index_en.htm
5| Journals The use of Manufacturing Technologies,- An External Influence Perspective by

Das, Ajay; Nair, Anand., International Journal of Production Research, Sep 2010,
Vol. 48 Issue 17

Research on Technical Strategy for New Product Development based on TRIZ
Evolution Theory by Fu-ying Zhang; Yan:shen Xu., International Journal of Product
Development, 2007, Vol. 4 Issue %

A Framework for the Assessment of an Organization’s Innovation Excellence by
Dervitsiotis, Kostas N., Total Quality Management & Business Excellence, Sep
2010, Vol. 21 Issue 9
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Semester Specialization Operations Management

3120PE Subject - Elective

Course Title Six Sigma

| Course Objectives: |

1 To provide a comprehensive understanding of six sigma
2 To introduce the six sigma methodology and philosophy
3 To learn how to manage change and sustain benefits
4
5

To learn how to listen and map customer requirements
To start executing and delivering project

Syllabus:

Unit Contents Number of
Number Sessions
1 Enterprise-wide Deployment 5+1

1.1 Six Sigma and Lean : Brief history of performance initiatives- Quality
Control, TQM, Cost of Quality, Customer quality Management, SPC,
Reengineering, Six Sigma, Theory of Constraint, Lean manufacturing.
1.2 Business Process Management : Introduction te.Six Sigma-As a metric,
As a methodology, As a management System. Sixisigma Evolution and
approach Lean as a Business Management Strategy, Key elements of lean.
Types of lean initiatives, Implementing lean initiatives
2 DMAIC model for implementing Six Sigma. 7+1

2.1 Define: Project Selection, Developing the team, DMAIC & DMADV,
Deliverables, Tollgate Questions

2.2 Measure: Determining X variables, Cause and Effect Diagram & Matrix,
Overview of MSA, Data Collection Plan — Forms, Baselining the y data, DPMO,
Capability Indices, COPQ, Yield, Tollgate Questions

2.3 Analyze: Toals for identifying Root Causes: Histogram, Boxplot, Scatter
Plot, Matrix Plot, DotPlot,:Run Chart, Multi-Vari Chart, 5 Why's

2.4 Improve: Generating Solutions, Random Simulation, Six Thinking Hats,
Mind:Mapping, Challenge Assumptions, Decision Making Tools for Selecting
Solutions — Pairwise Ranking, Solution Matrix, Force Field Analysis, Costs and
Benefits, Pilot Plan, Potential Problem Analysis — Mistake Proofing, Risk
Assessment Matrix and Control Assessment Matrix, FMEA, Contingency Plan,
Verification Plan, Tollgate Questions

2.5 Control: Solution Planning, Process Control Plan, Review Meetings,
Updated flowcharts & procedures, Control Charts, Out Of Control Action Plan,
Project Conclusion Activities
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Financial and Performance measurement: Lack of Clear Goals and Metrics
linked to Measurable Business Goals, Mismatches between Traditional
Accounting and Improvement Campaigns. Metrics That Impact — Revenue
Growth, Cost Savings, Productivity Improvement, Reduced Cost of Poor
Quality, Cash Flow Improvement, Faster product / service cycle times, Freed
up engineering and /or sales / service time, Freed up other indirect time, Cost
avoidance savings. Seven Elements of Six Sigma Scorecard

3 Six Sigma Impact measurement 5+1

4 Six Sigma in non-manufacturing environments:MSA in the DMAIC Cycle. 5+1
MSA Psychology. Why Non-Manufacturing Processes are Different, MSA
Repeatability & Reproducibility (R&R) Studies. Gauge R & R. Comparison of
MSA Acceptance Criteria

5 Projects in Six Sigma-Use of DMAIC Cycle 3+1

| Learning Resources:
1 | Text Books

The Six Sigma Black Belt Handbook by MacCarty, Daniels, Bremer and Gupta,
TMGH, 2010 Edition

Juran Institute’s Six Sigma Breakthrough and Beyond by De Feo and Barnard,
TMGH.

What is Six Sigma? by Peter Pande, TMGH

Six Sigma Management by Blashka, TMGH

All about Six Sigma by Warren Brussee, TMGH.

N

Reference Books

TPS-Lean Six Sigma by Hubert Ramprasad, Sara Books Pvt.Ltd.

3 | Supplementary
Reading Material

The Certified Six Sigma Black Belt Hand Book, Donald Benbow, Pearson
Publication

Achieving Business Excellence by Pravin Rajpal, Om Books International, India.

4 Websites

http://asq.org

5 Journals

What , Why and How: The importance of statistical thinking for SixSigma ,
Krishnamoorth, K. S., Industrial Engineer: IE, Oct 2011, Vol. 43, Issue 10

In pursuit of implementation patterns: the context of Lean and SixSigma, Shah,
R.; Chandrasekaran; A.; Linderman, K.. International Journal of Production
Research, Dec2008, Vol. 46 Issue 23

Critical analysis of ‘SixSigma implementation , Moosa, Kamran; Sajid, Ali. Total
Quality Management & Business Excellence, Jul2010, Vol. 21 Issue 7
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